
 

Wednesday, April 12, 2023 
In-Person with a virtual option 

Join by computer:  
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86048479609 

Meeting ID 860 4847 9609 

Executive Board 
Meeting Agenda 

 v 

Chairman Bobby Compton will convene a meeting of the Centralina Executive Board on Wednesday, April 
12, 2023, at 5:00 pm. The meeting will be held in person at the Centralina office (located at 10735 David Taylor 
Dr., Suite 250, Charlotte, NC 28262) with a virtual attendance option via Zoom. 

Time Item Presenter 

5:00 p.m. Call to Order Bobby Compton 

Roll Call 

Moment of Silence 

Amendments to the Agenda (if any) 

Consent Items: 
Consent agenda items may be considered in one motion and without discussion except for those items 
removed by a Board Member. 
5:05 p.m. 
Item 1 
5 minutes 
Pages 5-11 

Approval of March 8, 2023, Executive Board Meeting Minutes 
Approval of March 8, 2023, Executive Board Meeting Minutes. 
The minutes from March 8, 2023, meeting has been distributed 
to all members of the Executive Board and should be approved 
if correct.  

Action/Recommendation:  
Motion to approve the March 8, 2023, Executive Board meeting 
minutes.  

Bobby Compton 

Item 2 
Pages 13-14 

Centralina Economic Development District Board 
Appointments 
The Executive Board will review and approve recommendations 
for CEDD Board Appointments so that vacant seats can be filled 
ahead of the April 20th CEDD Board Meeting.  

Action/Recommendation: 
Motion to approve the recommendations of CEDD Board 
Appointees. 

Narissa Claiborne 

Item 3 
Pages 16-19 

FY22-23 Budget Amendment: 
The Executive Board will review and approve the FY22-23 
budget amendments for the operating and grant budgets. 

Action/Recommendation: 
Motion to approve the FY22-23 budget amendments for the 
operating and grant budgets.  

Denise Strosser 

Item 4 
Pages 21 - 87 

FY23-24 Employee Compensation Adjustment and Personnel 
Policy Amendments 
It has been Centralina’s practice to receive authorization from 
the Executive Board for the implementation of employee 
compensation increases each fiscal year; the compensation 
adjustments have already been budgeted in the FY23-24 
placeholder budget and approved by the Board of Delegates on 
February 8, 2023.  The purpose of this agenda item is to inform 
the Executive Board of the details of the FY23-24 compensation 
approach and seek approval of personnel policy modifications 
that clarify the organization's compensation approach.   

Geraldine Gardner 

1



 

Wednesday, April 12, 2023 
In-Person with a virtual option 

Join by computer:  
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86048479609 

Meeting ID 860 4847 9609 

Executive Board 
Meeting Agenda 

Time Item Presenter 

Action/Recommendation: 
Motion to approve the FY23-24 Employee Compensation 
Adjustment and Personnel Policy Amendments. 

Regular Business 

5:10 p.m. 
Item 5 
5 minutes 
Pages 89-91 

Centralina Spotlight: Planning – Updates to plans, and codes 
for 160D 
Centralina staff will provide a short portrait of our work in the 
region related to the numerous land use plan updates and 
municipal code updates that were performed after the State’s  
adoption of Chapter 160D 

Action/Recommendation: 
Receive as presentation. 

Michelle Nance 

5:15 p.m. 
Item 6 
10 minutes 
Pages 93-164 

Contract Placeholder – Audit Contract 
The Executive Board  will review and approve the Finance 
Committee's recommendation to award the next multi-year 
audit contract to Cherry Bekeart and to authorize the Executive 
Director to enter into a contract with said firm

Action/Recommendation: 
Motion to approve Finance Committee's recommendation of 
Cherry Bekaert as Centralina's auditor and to authorize the 
Executive Director to enter into a contract with the said firm for 
a four year term in an amount not to exceed $182,000 plus any 
additional single audit fees if applicable annually. 

Denise Strosser 

5:25 p.m. 
Item 7 
10minutes 
Pages 166-168 

Federal Relations Update 
Leslie Mozingo, Strategics Consulting, will present an update on 
Centralina’s federal relations efforts, including a performance 
report of activities for January- March 2023. 

Action/Recommendation: 
Motion to approve the Strategic Consulting Performance 
Reports for January-February 2023 and March 2023. 

Leslie Mozingo 

5:35 p.m. 
Item 8 
10 minutes 
Pages 170-178 

Centralina Tax Status Documentation Discussion 
The Executive Board is asked to determine the next steps to be 
taken, if any, to document Centralina's tax-exempt status as a 
government instrumentality under U.S. Code § 115(1).     

Action/Recommendation: 
Due to the costs of the PLR, staff recommends to the Board that 
we take no further action other than preparing detailed internal 
records and memos to the file for future reference.  

Geraldine Gardner 

2



 

Wednesday, April 12, 2023 
In-Person with a virtual option 

Join by computer:  
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86048479609 

Meeting ID 860 4847 9609 

Executive Board 
Meeting Agenda 

Time Item Presenter 

5:45 p.m. 
Item 9 
15 minutes 
Pages 180-182 

Broadband and Digital Inclusion Update 
Centralina received the BAND-NC grant which is funded by the 
Institute for Emerging Issues (IEI) at NC State to address the 
digital divide across the region and promote digital equity. 

Action/Recommendation 
Receive as Information 

Christina Danis and 
Anna Lu Wilson 

6:00 p.m. 
Item 10 
15 minutes 
Pages 184-187

USAging Aging and Disability Vaccination Collaboration 
Vaccine Grant Award Revisit 
The Centralina Area Agency on Aging has been awarded 
$295,750 in federal funds by the USAging Aging and Disability 
Vaccination Collaborative. Based on feedback from the 
Executive Board, Centralina has adjusted the grant scope to 
focus on influenza and shingles vaccination activities only. 
Funds will support staff salaries to educate, inform, conduct 
outreach, and assist older and disabled adults with procuring 
vaccinations as requested. 

Action/Recommendation 
Request a motion to accept the USAging Aging and Disability 
Vaccination Collaboration Vaccine grant award in the amount 
of $295,750 with amended grant activities and scope of work for 
influenza and shingles vaccines only 

Linda Miller 

6:15 p.m. 
5 minutes 

Comments from the Executive Board and Centralina Staff Board Members and 
Staff 

6:20 p.m. 
5 minutes 

Comments from the Executive Director Geraldine Gardner 

6:25 p.m. 
5 minutes 

Comments from the Chair Bobby Compton 

6:30 p.m. Adjournment Bobby Compton 

Centralina Regional Council complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability. Centralina Regional Council will make reasonable 
accommodations in all programs/services to enable participation by an individual with a disability who 
meets essential eligibility requirements. Centralina Regional Council’s programs will be available in the 
most integrated setting for each individual. If any accommodation is necessary for participation, please 
contact the Clerk to the Board, 10735 David Taylor Drive, Charlotte, NC 28262, phone (704) 348-2728. Please
allow 72 hours advance notice for preparation. Visit our website: www.centralina.org.

3



Item 1 

4



Executive Board Virtual Meeting Minutes 
March 8, 2023 

Officers Present Board Members 
Present 

Board Members 
Not Present 

Centralina Staff and 
Guests Present 

Bobby Compton, Chairman 
Jay McCosh, Vice Chairman 
Jarvis Woodburn, Secretary 

Donte Anderson 
Patricia Crump 
Cathy Davis 
Martha Sue Hall 
Brian Helms 
Corinthia Lewis-
Lemon 
Tony Long 
Jerry Oxsher 
Elaine Powell 
Shawn Rush 
David Scholl 
Jennifer Stepp 
Jennifer Teague 

Kevin Demeny 
Cathy Davis 
Gene Houpe 
Bob Hovis 
Lynn Shue 

Narissa Claiborne 
Geraldine Gardner 
Venecia Rock 
Denise Strosser 
Kelly Weston 

Guests 
None. 

Call to Order 
Chairman Bobby Compton, Town of Mooresville, called the meeting to order. 

Narissa Claiborne, Clerk to the Board, called roll and noted a quorum present. 

Moment of Silence 
Chairman Compton called for a moment of silence. 

Consent Agenda 
1. Approval of January 11, 2023, Executive Board Meeting Minutes
2. Approval of the USAging Aging and Disability Vaccination Collaboration

Vaccine grant award
3. Approval of NC Department of Transportation FY24 Public Transportation

Program
4. Centralina Economic Development District Board Appointments
5. . Approval of the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)

Amendments to the Agenda. 
Centralina Board Chair notes that there was an update to the Centralina Board Consent 
Agenda. Item 4. Centralina Economic Development District (CEDD) Board Appointees. 1 name 
has been added to the CEDD Board Appointees list, Centralina Workforce Development Board 
Director, David Hollars.  

5



Chairman Bobby Compton called for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. Commissioner 
Brian Helms of Union County called Consent Agenda Items 2 (two)- USAging and Disability 
Vaccination Collaboration-Vaccine Grant Award for discussion. Commissioner Bobby Compton 
stated the discussion surrounding item 2(two), Approval of the USAging Aging and 
Disability Vaccination Collaboration Vaccine grant award would be tabled until after the 
last regular agenda item. 

Martha Sue Hall made a motion to Approve the Agenda with correct items 1,3, and 4. Jay 
McCosh seconded the motion. 

The motion passed. 

Regular Agenda Items 

6. Swearing in of the Centralina Executive Board Secretary
Chairman Compton advised the Board that due to the absence of Secretary Jarvis Woodburn; 
he would know to be sworn in. Commissioner Woodburn read off the Oath of Office aloud. 
Chairman Compton thanked Commissioner Woodburn for his continued service.  

7. Executive Board Orientation & FY23-24 Forecast
Centralina Executive Director Geraldine Gardner shared with the Board a presentation 
surrounding the Executive Board Role and responsibilities. Ms. Gardner also shared with the 
Board the FY23-24 Workplan and Board Meeting forecast. Ms. Gardner highlighted Key 
Initiatives and Implementation. Lastly, Ms. Gardner gave a high-level overview of both the 
Executive Board and Board of Delegates meeting forecast detailing topics based on Board 
member interests and feedback. In closing, Ms. Gardner informed the board that we have 
invited Senator Tom Tillis to attend the August Centralina Board of Delegates meeting.  

Mayor Pro Tem Martha Sue Hall asked Centralina Executive Director Geraldine Gardner to give 
a background on the invitation of Senator Tom Tillis and Ted Budd. Geraldine asked the Board 
if there were any other items, they would like to see moving forward they she may not have 
mentioned.  
Mayor Pro Tem also made a comment regarding the Request for proposals for fiscal years 
2023-2025.  

8. Raleigh Relations
Kelly Weston, Government Affairs & Member Engagement Coordinator shared with the Board 
the history and the initiatives of the Raleigh Relations Engagement Strategy. Ms. Weston 
emphasized the importance of expanding the engagement at the State level including 
relationship building, Statewide Advocacy, and Regional Advocacy. Ms. Weston shared with 
the Board the formal advocacy priorities, including Funding for Centralina, Monitoring, and 
lastly Alignment with other organizations. Ms. Weston shared with the Board areas where 
Board members can support the Advocacy Agenda priorities. Finally, Kelly Weston shared with 
the Board the 2023 Advocacy Agenda. Ms. Weston petitioned the Board to give feedback 
regarding areas of the agenda.  

Martha Sue Hall commented on the need to collaborate with other organizations that have 
already taken the lead regarding advocacy.  

6



Kelly summarized the discussion reifying that the Board wished to add Medicaid Expansion as 
an initiative to add to “Alignment With Others”. Councilman Brian Helms responded by stating 
that he wishes to leave Medicaid expansion in the Advocacy Category, “Monitoring.” 
Commissioner Patty Crump agreed and stated that she wished to keep the Advocacy Category 
in the Monitoring phase. Chairman Bobby Compton asked Ms. Weston if this topic could be 
reviewed later. Executive Director Gardner added that since the session just started, we could 
do an update at the April Executive Board meeting. Mayor Pro Tem Marth Sue Hall proposed 
a motion that both the Priority Issue Area, 4. Aging Infrastructure and 5. Taxing Authority for 
Local Municipalities both moved to be placed in the Advocacy Category “Alignment with Other 
Organizations”. Commissioner Helms posed the question to Geraldine Gardner, What are we 
trying to accomplish - approving existing facilities or expansion to water and wastewater 
utilities? Ms. Gardner answered by stating that in the initial conversation, the BOD priorities 
lay in the condition of existing infrastructure. Ms. Hall repeated her previously stated motion. 
Council member Jennifer step seconded the motion. The motion carried. Ms. Weston closed 
by highlighting Legislative Engagement and shared with the Board how Centralina Regional 
Council can assist. Councilman Oxsher asked if there was a way to expedite that process. 
Chairman Compton, stated he could reach out to Kelly Weston with any questions or concerns. 

9. Advancing the Plan Committee Update
Centralina Planning Director, Michelle Nance shared with the Board the CONNECT Beyond 
progress and background on the step taken thus far including the committee members, 
upcoming meeting schedule, first-year Committee goals, highlights from the Advancing the 
Plan Kick-off, major successes, and lastly upcoming steps.  Jason Wager, Senior Planner 
engaged the Board in an interactive activity surrounding the Centralina CONNECT Beyond 
Plan by polling them to answer questions that ask- “Which audiences including State 
Lawmakers, Local Elected Officials, Stakeholders, Business Community, and the General 
Public best resonate- Specially, 1. For which audiences does the message “Working together 
as a region makes us more competitive for federal transportation grants best resonate? 2. 
For which audiences does the message “We need better mobility to increase economic 
competitiveness for industries and business best resonate? 3. Which audience does the 
message, “Help employers access more employees”, best resonate with? 4. For which 
audience does the message “Residence need seamless travel to get to work/educational 
opportunities/medical appointments “improving access for all” best resonate? Ms. Hall asked 
for clarification on who exactly are the “stakeholders” Michelle Nance responded funders and 
transit providers.  5. For which audiences does the message “quality of life”-creating places 
where people want to live and have mobility options, “best resonate? 6. For which audience 
does the message “Making the region future ready planning for growth in a way that maintains 
the quality of life,” best resonate? 7. For which audience does the message “Environmental 
benefits,” best resonate? 8. For which audience does the message “Supports the preservation 
of rural communities and agriculture, “best resonate? 9. For which audience does the message 
“increasing the efficiency of current infrastructure (all modes, including roads),” best 
resonate? 10. For which audience does the message “Mobility choices offer alternative to 
congestion”, best resonate? Ms. Nance closed by sharing that the results will be incorporated 
into a FAQ sheet that the ATP committee will use for collateral when making their 
determination. 

10. Aging Programs Update
Centralina Aging Programs Director provided an Aging Program Update on the progress, 
including funding/grants. Ms. Miller also shared that those mentioned funding has now run 
out. Ms. Miller shared that as a result, of less funding, the aging community will receive fewer 
services. She shared that because of the special need surrounding COVID-19, restrictions to 
receive services were lessened and resulted in easier access for people and organizations that 

7



utilized those services, which was great for non-profits that were previously unable to access 
services. Ms. Miller shared though, that those services were set to end in September of 2024- 
and the result would be serviced resuming normal practices making the services again 
restrictive to organizations and programs including Medicaid and Medicare. She added that 
inflation would also make it harder and more expensive for individuals to receive services. 
Ms. Miller continued by sharing ways the Aging Program will promote sustainability moving 
forward including working to improve nutrition services, alternative funding sources, and 
increasing purchasing power for meals and nutrition in a regional way instead of each county 
working individually. Finally, Ms. Miller shared ways and resources that the Board can assist 
with. She offered Centralina Regional Council’s services to the Board as well.  

Mayor Pro Tem Hall confirmed that the funding that is provided to the Aging Department came 
directly from the Federal Government. Ms. Miller confirmed.  

Commissioner Jarvis Woodburn commented on Meals on Wheels regarding who delivers food 
to residents.  

Chairman Compton followed up with consent agenda item 2. Approval of the USAging Aging 
and Disability Vaccination Collaboration Vaccine grant award raised by Commissioner Brian 
Helms for more discussion. 

Brian Helms shared that he had severe concerns with what he read in the March 8- agenda 
packet. Mr. Helms started on Page 11 and read the language regarding vaccinations for adults. 
He continued by stating that he believes that we are instead of treating patience we are 
shooting for numbers. He shared that instead of caring for patients, we are setting numbers 
and working, instead to reach that goal.  He added that he also had severe concerns with 
information being disseminated regarding vaccinations as propaganda and not fully 
informative on the dangers of vaccinations. Commissioner Helms expressed that he is not 
pulling the above-mentioned agenda item to be a “troublemaker” but because he cares about 
the elderly people in our region. Mr. Helms especially pointed out “in-home vaccination” and 
the dangers that could come from that practice. He continues by saying he is not an “anti-
vaccination”. But he wants it to be recognized that all vaccinations may not be safe for all 
that are targeted with the “propaganda campaigns”. Commissioner Helms questioned the 
Board by asking, “How do we define “credible information?”. Mr. Helms added that there is 
“very real data” that supports vaccine injury from the COVID-19 vaccination. He added that 
for too long our region, counties and municipalities, and our state and federal government 
have been chorused into taking the vaccination. He mentioned his Board supported the 
resolution of House Bill 98- Medical Freedom Act. Mr. Helms asserted that he cannot support 
the motion to support the funding/grant award with the limited information that has been 
brought forth in the Agenda Packet.  

Commissioner Helms made a motion to deny consent item 2. Approval of the USAging Aging 
and Disability Vaccination Collaboration Vaccine grant award. Commissioner Patty Crump 
seconded the motion adding that her Board also approved House Bill 98.  

Commissioner Crump added that she spoke with House bill representative Wayne Sasser. She 
stated that he felt strongly that the House Bill will pass. She added that this would give our 
students K- collegiate wouldn’t have to choose between playing sports and being vaccinated. 
She added that House Bill 98 would be eliminating unfair quarantine rules. She shared that 
the passing of House Bill 98 would be a victory. Commissioner Crump shared with the Board 
that this topic has touched her family and that she feels very strongly about the vaccination 
process. Commissioner Crump stated that she fully supports rejecting the grant funding to 
protect older Americans that may not have a voice themselves.  

8



Brian Helms shared that his Board also had a professional pediatrician speak at his Board 
meeting who stated that the COVID-19 vaccination does not prevent the transmission of 
Covid-19. Lastly, Commissioner Helms shared that in conversation with an elderly woman in 
his community, she had received at least 5 vaccinations that she knows of.   
Ms. Linda Miller shared that the funding would come from the Federal Government and pointed 
out that this grant money would not only be specific for COVID-19 vaccination but also 
included influenza and shingles vaccination.  Ms. Miller also shared that people are free to 
make their own choices without being forced. Ms. Miller shared that individuals are not 
required to get a vaccination to receive other medical services. Ms. Miller added that 
information is given by doctors and other medical facilities sharing risks regarding 
vaccinations.  

Commissioner Crump shared that information handed out and Atrium is not informed consent 
and is in fact a “lie”. 

Council Member Jennifer Stepp shared that she has personal feelings regarding the 
vaccination. She added that her mother died because of the vaccine because of what her 
family thought was true. She shared that she was the only person to vote against the incentive 
program within her city. She stated that only 35% had chosen to be vaccinated. She stated 
the incentive was a horrible thing to incentivize vaccinations.  

Mayor Pro Tem Hall added that she appreciated all her constituent’s comments. She also 
shared that she also knows people that died from both receiving the vaccination and not 
receiving the vaccination. She directed the Board to “get back to the agenda”.  She 
emphasized that “this money is not solely for Covid-19 but includes the above-mentioned 
vaccination- vaccinations that no one until Covid-19 was questioned. Mayor Pro Tem Hall 
confirmed when this money would be available through Spring 2024.  

Mayor Pro Tem Hall shared that she would be in support of passing the motion to approve the 
USAging Aging and Disability Vaccination Collaboration Vaccine grant award because it is 
inclusive of other vaccinations.  

The Board went on to discuss the language in the agenda packet regarding the inclusion of 
not only the Covid 19 vaccination but other vaccinations including shingles, influenza, etc.  

Centralina Executive Director Geraldine Gardner shared that what was in the agenda packet 
is limited to the general scope of work at a national level. She asked if Commissioner Helms 
and Commissioner Crump would be in favor of the Centralina Regional Council and the Area 
Agency on Aging presenting at the next Centralina Executive Board meeting a more 
comprehensive and specific scope of work to what we will do in the Centralina Region. Adding 
that they will need to speak with the USAging Partners about only focusing on vaccinations, 
not including the COVID-19 vaccinations.  

Commissioner Crump and Commissioner Helms responded, stating they would not be in favor 
of the grant under even those circumstances.  

Chairman Bobby Compton added to the discussion and stated that if it weren’t for the 
vaccination, he wouldn’t be here. He added that he has asthma. He shared with the Board 
they he stopped breathing twice and shared other complications that he has experienced from 
Covid-19. 

Commissioner Helms restated the motion. to deny consent item 2. Approval of the USAging 
Aging and Disability Vaccination Collaboration Vaccine grant award. 

The motion passed by 8/7. 

9



Mayor Pro Tem Hall proposed a motion that would authorize staff to contact the USAging 
about modifying the grant perimeters.  

Commissioner Elaine Powell asked if the grant could move forward in coordination with the 
Board’s concerns by limiting the scope. 

Executive Director Geraldine Gardner confirmed that they will reach out to USAging to confirm 
perimeters.  

Commissioner Powell seconded the motion brought forth by Mayor Pro Tem Hall to authorize 
staff to contact the USAging about modifying the grant perimeters.  

Council Member Oxsher stated one of the main reasons he supported the motion to deny the 
grant is because of the language surrounding specific Covid 19 vaccination training. He also 
stated that he would be in favor of the grant if it focused more on collaborative efforts, 
development, training, and peer-to-peer engagement as opposed to numbers, and 
vaccination hesitancy training. 

Jennifer Teague asked if there were benchmarks tied to the amount of money received with 
the grant. 

Ms. Miller responded the number isn’t only tied to how many people get vaccinated, but how 
many individuals are reached through outreach efforts. 

Chairman Compton restated the motion that would authorize staff to contact the USAging 
about modifying the grant perimeters that was seconded by Commissioner Powell.  

The motion passed. 

Comments from the Executive Board and Centralina Staff  
Geraldine Gardner reiterated that Centralina will revisit the Grant Award after Centralina staff 
contacts USAging about modifying the grant perimeters.  

Mayor Pro Tem Martha Sue Hall shared that at the last Board of Delegates, meeting delegates 
were called to share information. Ms. Hall asked if Board of Delegate Handbooks were 
available to share.  

Centralina Executive Director shared that Board of Delegates Handbooks were sent to all 
delegates and are also available upon request. 

Mayor Pro Tem Hall asked about the Mecklenburg County stormwater meeting. 
Commissioner Elaine Powell shared the meeting location and virtual meeting information. 

Council Member Dante’ Anderson stated that if at the upcoming meeting, we could state 
names before speaking 

Chairman Compton agreed and stated that we would remind Board members. 

Commissioner shared that what happened tonight- regarding different viewpoints allows for 
Board members to make better decisions and better meetings. 

Comments from the Executive Director 
Geraldine shared that tonight’s meeting was an example of regionalism in action. 

10



She also shared with the Board that with ARPA reporting approaching Centralina is making 
personal phone calls are being made to support communities in meeting deadlines and 
guidelines.   

Comments from the Chair 
Chairman Compton encouraged the Board, if they haven’t already, to complete the 
Centralina Board of Delegate interest survey form. He also reminded the Board of the 
upcoming grant writing workshop, held on May 18. 

Adjournment 
With no further business to be discussed, Chairman Compton adjourned the meeting at 8:32 
p.m.

11



Item 2 

12



Executive Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 
Board Meeting 
Date: March 8, 2023 Agenda Item 

Type:  Consent: x Regular: 

Submitting Person: Claiborne Presentation 
Time: N/A 

Presenter at 
Meeting: N/A 

Phone Number: 717-434-2284
Email: nknight@centralina.org 

Alternate Contact: Geraldine Gardner 
Phone Number: 704-351-7130
Email: ggardner@centralina.org 

Submitting 
Department: 

Administration Department 
Head Approval: Geraldine Gardner 

Title of documents as shown in the Agenda: CEDD Board Appointments 
Description of Agenda Item: (This wording will be used to summarize the item on the agenda cover 
page.) 
The Executive Board will review and approve recommendations for CEDD Board Appointments 
so that vacant seats can be filled ahead of the April 20th CEDD Board Meeting.  

Background & Basis of Recommendations: 

Per the bylaws of the Centralina Economic Development District, the Centralina Regional 
Council's Executive Board approves all nominations to the District's Board of Directors.  The 
attached memo provide the list of individuals nominated by their respective jurisdictions and 
organizations.  

Requested Action / Recommendation: 

Motion to approve the recommendations of CEDD Board Appointees. 

Time Sensitivity: 
(none or explain) N/A 

Budget Impact: 
(none or explain) N/A 

Attachments: 
(none or list) 1. CEDD Board Appointments Memo, April 1, 2023

13



MEMORANDUM 

To: Centralina Regional Council Executive Board 

CC: Miles Atkins, Chair, Centralina Economic Development District 

From: Geraldine Gardner, Executive Director 

Date: April 1, 2023 

RE: Appointees to the Centralina Economic Development District 
Board of Directors  

Per the bylaws of the Centralina Economic Development District, appointees 
to the Board of Directors shall be approved by the Centralina Regional Council 
Executive Board.   The following individuals are being nominated to serve as 
CEDD Board Directors and fill current vacancies. 

The above individuals were active in the recent five-year regional economic 
development strategy planning process and will bring a diverse set of 
experiences to our efforts to implement this plan.  

Name Title Organization Board Seat 
(Focus Area) 

Danny Chavez Chief Business 
Recruitment 
Officer 

Charlotte Regional 
Business Alliance 
(CLT Alliance) 

Centralina At Large 

Page Castrodale Executive 
Director 

Cabarrus County 
Economic 
Development 
Corporation 

Cabarrus County 

Thomas Cureton Board Member Anson Economic 
Development 
Corporation 

Anson County 

14



Item 3 

15



Executive Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 
Board Meeting 
Date: April 12, 2023 Agenda Item 

Type: Consent: X Regular: 

Submitting Person: Denise Strosser Presentation 
Time: 5 minutes 

Presenter at 
Meeting: Denise Strosser 

Phone Number: (704) 372-2416
Email: dstrosser@centralina.org 

Alternate Contact: Geraldine Gardner 
Phone Number: (704) 248-2703
Email: ggardner@centralina.org 

Submitting 
Department: 

Finance Department 
Head Approval: Denise Strosser 

Title of documents as shown in the Agenda: FY22-23 Budget Amendment 
Description of Agenda Item: (This wording will be used to summarize the item on the agenda cover 
page.) 

The Executive Board will review and approve the FY22-23 budget amendments for the 
operating and grant budgets. 

Background & Basis of Recommendations: 

A placeholder budget was approved by the Executive Council on January 13, 2022 and adopted 
by the Board of Delegates on February 9, 2022 as required by Centralina Regional Council’s 
Charter.   This initial “placeholder” budget is developed prior to receiving information from various 
state and federal agencies.  This second amendement represents changes to reflect Federal and 
State grant allocations as of March 27, 2023 as well as other contracts received and confirmed 
since the adoption of the budget.  We will continue to update the budget as new funds are 
received from new business contracts or grants from state and federal agencies.  The attached 
amendments are to replace the placeholder budget and any prior amendments with current 
and up to date fundings and expenditures. 

Requested Action / Recommendation: 

Motion to approve the FY22-23 budet amendmends for the operating and grant budgets. 

Time Sensitivity: 
(none or explain) Before June 30, 2023 

Budget Impact: 
(none or explain) As indicated on attached 

Attachments: 
(none or list) FY22-23 Operating and Grant Budget Amendment 

16



17



Placeholder 12.31.2022 3.24.2023
ANTICIPATED REVENUES FY2022-2023 FY2022-2023 FY2022-2023

Budget Budget Budget Net change

Program Revenues
Restricted Intergovernmental Revenue 5,699,605  4,871,482 5,194,238  322,756 
Technical Assistance Projects 621,569  1,840,777 1,929,080  88,303 
Other Program Revenue 257,473  790,831 724,230  (66,601)  
Fund Balance Appropriated - -  -  
Total Program Revenue 6,578,647  7,503,090 7,847,548  344,458 

Other Revenues
Member Dues Support 929,000  928,715 930,000  1,285 
Interest and Other Revenue 1,000  20,000 27,050  7,050 
Total Other Revenues 930,000  948,715 957,050  8,335 

TOTAL ANTICIPATED REVENUES 7,508,647  8,451,805 8,804,598  352,793 

EXPENSE APPROPRIATIONS
Member services, Board and committees 225,000  706,768 710,947  4,179 
Management and Business Operations 1,935,000  1,903,372 1,627,673  (275,699)  
Information Technology 165,000  208,720 233,860  25,140 
Community and Economic Development Depart. 696,188  1,173,886 1,191,212  17,326 
Planning Department 620,509  1,405,622 1,447,509  41,887 
Area Agency on Aging Department 4,656,950  3,863,622 4,127,143  263,521 
Workforce Development Department 830,000  961,048 941,614  (19,434)  
Indirect Costs Representation (1,620,000) (1,771,233)  (1,475,360) 295,873 

TOTAL EXPENSE APPROPRIATIONS 7,508,647  8,451,805 8,804,598  352,793 

- -  -  

Fiscal Year 2022 - 2023  Operating Budget Ordinance Amendment

18



Placeholder 12.31.2022 03.24.2023
FY2022-2023 FY2022-2023 FY2022-2023

Program Budget Budget Budget change

Area Agency on Aging
HCC Block Grant 9,850,000  11,500,000  11,500,000 -  
USDA Supplement 650,000  (1) 650,000  650,000 -  
Title III-B Legal 85,000    102,922  102,922 -  
Family Caregiver 520,000  572,818  572,818 -  
Disease Prevention/Health Promotion 40,000    52,300  52,300 -  
State Senior Center General Purpose 120,000  116,616  116,616 -  
Heat Fan Relief 15,000  14,363  14,363 -  
Supplemental Nutrition -  45,973  46,985 1,012  
ARPA Support Services - 209,103 214,103 5,000  
ARPA Congregate Nutrition - 1,727,801 1,727,801 -  
ARPA Home Delivered meals - 1,107,478 1,107,478 -  

11,280,000  16,099,374  16,105,386 6,012  

(1) Decrease due to placeholder budget inadvertently included Centralina's internal funding.

Workforce Development
WIOA - XX-4010 Administrative Cost Pool 450,000     (2) 23,495  23,495 -  
WIOA XX-4020 Adult Services 1,275,000  1,188,627  1,460,427 271,800  
WIOA XX-4030 Dislocated Worker 950,000     940,887  504,071 (436,816)  
WIOA XX-4040 Youth Services 1,250,000  1,180,392  1,085,155 (95,237)  
WIOA XX-4050 Youth Initiative 65,000    62,586  62,587 1  
WIOA XX-4050 Finish Line Grant 105,000  108,871  108,872 1  
WIOA XX- XXXX Infrastructure Cost 85,000    90,249  90,249 -  
NDWG COVID 2X-3130 - 214,637 214,638 1  

4,180,000  3,809,744  3,549,494 (260,250)  

(2) Decrease due to placeholder budget inadvertently included Centralina's internal funding.

Total Grant 15,460,000  19,909,118  

Fiscal Year 2022-2023  Grant Pass Through Budgets Amendment

19



Item 4 

20



Executive Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 
Board Meeting 
Date: April 12, 2023 Agenda Item 

Type: Consent: X Regular: 

Submitting Person: Geraldine Gardner Presentation 
Time: 

Presenter at 
Meeting: Geraldine Gardner 

Phone Number: 704-351-7130
Email: ggardner@centralina.org 

Alternate Contact: Venecia White 
Phone Number: 
Email: Vrock@centralina.org 

Submitting 
Department: 

Executive Department 
Head Approval: Geraldine Gardner 

Title of documents as shown in the Agenda: FY23-24 Employee Compensation Adjustment 
and Personnel Policy Amendments   

Description of Agenda Item: (This wording will be used to summarize the item on the agenda cover 
page.) 

It has been Centralina’s practice to receive authorization from the Executive Board for 
implementation of employee compensation increases each fiscal year; the compensation 
adjustments have already been budgeted in the FY23-24 placeholder budget and approved by 
the Board of Delegates on February 8, 2023.  The purpose of this agenda item is to inform the 
Executive Board of the details of the FY23-24 compensation approach and seek approval of 
personnel policy modifications that clarify the organization's compensation approach.  

Background & Basis of Recommendations: 

FY23-24 Compensation Approach 
• 3% Across the Board Increase: awarded to all staff in good standing.  CPI in North

Carolina for Feb 2023 is 6.4% (U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics)
• 3% Merit Increase Pool: qualification for merit increase to be determined based on

Trakstar performance evaluation for FY22-23; individual employee award amounts are
recommended by Department Directors and approved by HR.

• For FY24 Centralina will continue to implement recommendations from the 2023 Pay &
Classification Study, including adjustments to address salary compression for a targeted
list of employees.

Fiscal Impact: The total incremental cost of the above compensation adjustments is 
$241,800.  Of this 85% will be charged to federal and state grants, technical assistance contracts, 
and direct/indirect cost allocation. Only 15% or approximately $36,000 is expected to be covered 
by membership dues allocation.   

Benchmark & Last FY Increase: FY22-23 Compensation Adjustment was a 5% across the board 
increase and no merit.  Centralina's FY23-24 compensation is competitive with other Councils of 
Government, including Triangle J COG: 6% (3% COLA and 3% Merit); Western Piedmont: 5.75% 
plus 1% increase to 401K; Land of Sky: 7%. 

21



Personnel Policy Amendments: 
As part of the implementation of the 2023 Pay & Classification Study, we are proposing to amend 
Centralina's personnel policies to provide clear and consistent organization wide guidance on 
compensation.  The proposed amendment clarifies existing language for starting salary 
guidance for hiring, promotion, transfers, as well as bonus in lieu of increases for staff above the 
pay grade range for their positions. 

The purposes of the clarifications and additions to the policies are to provide clear guidance to 
Directors and managers in making compensation recommendations; ensure consistency in 
approach across departments; and to offer transparency to staff. 

The attached summary page provides further details on the proposed changes.   

Requested Action / Recommendation: 

Motion to approve the FY23-24 Employee Compensation Adjustment and Personnel Policy 
Amendments. 

Time Sensitivity: 
(none or explain) 

Approval is sought in April so that management can proceed with 
performance evaluation and department budget preparation on 
schedule. 

Budget Impact: 
(none or explain) 

The total incremental cost of the above compensation adjustments is 
$241,800, which has been appropriated in the FY23-24 budget on 
February 8, 2023.  

Attachments: 
(none or list) 

1. Summary of Personnel Policy Amendments
2. Personnel Policy with amendments in track changes

22



Personnel Policy Amendments:  
As part of the implementation of the 2023 Pay & Classification Study, we are proposing 
the following amendments to Centralina's personnel policies.   

The proposed amendments clarify existing policy language and provides guidance to 
the organization on the following items: 

• Pay Plan
• Starting/hiring salaries
• Promotion
• Lateral Transfers
• Merit Increases
• Bonuses

The purpose of the clarifications and additions to the policies is to provide clear 
guidance to Directors and managers in making compensation recommendations; 
ensure consistency in approach across departments, and offer transparency to staff.  

Section Item Summary of Updates Page 
Number 

Employment 
Relationship 

Pay Plan • Updated with an explanation
of how the pay plan fits into
the organization’s broader
“compensation philosophy”
or approach and relevance of
the salary range mid-point to
employee salary
considerations

Page 24 

Employment 
Relationship 

Starting 
Salaries 

• Updated with a consistent
approach to start highly
qualified candidates

Page 25 

Employment 
Relationship 

Promotion • Updated with consistent
approach to apply
promotions and includes the
timing for supervisors in
making promotion requests

Page 27 

Employment 
Relationship 

Lateral 
Transfer 

• Updated to clarify the time
staff must be in a position for
transfer consideration

Page 28 

Employment 
Relationship 

Merit 
Increases 

• Deleted requirement for
newly promoted employees
to be in the new position for
at least six months for a merit
increase

Page 29 

Employment 
Relationship 

Bonuses • Outlines the framework for
department directors
utilizing the staff
performance bonus

Page 30 

23



Additional Updates to the Personnel Manual 
Centralina  
Core Value 
Statements 

Core Values • Updated with new language
from Centralina staff that
reflect core values

Page 7 

Equal 
Opportunity, 
Commitment  
to Diversity and 
Complaint 
Procedures 

Title VI 
Compliance 

• Updated with revised Policy
Statement consistent with
Centralina’s Title VI Plan

Page 12 

Workplace 
Guidelines 

Other 
Employment 

• Updated to clarify the
instances when outside
employment must be
approved

Page 44 

24



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF 
EMPLOYEE PERSONNEL MANUAL  

AND AT-WILL EMPLOYMENT 

The statements contained in the Personnel Manual are intended to provide only general 
information about the current existing policies and practices of employment. Nothing contained 
herein is intended to create, or shall be construed as creating, an expressed or implied contract 
or guarantee of employment for a definite or indefinite term. 

Nothing contained in this policy should be considered as a contract between Centralina and an 
employee. Employment with Centralina is “at-will”. Centralina or the employee may terminate the 
employment relationship at any time, with or without reason or notice.  

Centralina retains the right at any time, in its own discretion, to delete, add to, alter and amend 
any and all information, statements, employee benefits, or terms and conditions of employment 
contained herein. 

My signature below acknowledges my understanding that my employment with Centralina is at-
will. Also, my signature represents that I have received the adopted Personnel Manual and agree 
to abide by the guidelines. Further, I agree that if there is any policy or provision within this 
document that I do not understand, I will seek clarification from Human Resources.  

Signature:  ______________________________________________________ 

Date:  ___________________________________________________________ 

The Personnel Manual is located at the following link: 

CENTRALINK Library / Human Resources / Personnel Policy Manual 

25



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

WELCOME TO CENTRALINA ......................................................................................... 5 

BACKGROUND OF CENTRALINA ................................................................................... 6 

CENTRALINA CORE VALUE STATEMENTS ..................................................................... 7 

GENERAL PROVISIONS ............................................................................................... 9 
SECTION 1: Purpose of the Policy .................................................................................... 9 
SECTION 2: Amendments to the Policy ............................................................................. 9 
SECTION 3: Responsibilities of the Board of Delegates ........................................................ 9 
SECTION 4: Responsibilities of the Executive Director ......................................................... 9 

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY, COMMITMENT TO DIVERSITY AND COMPLAINT PROCEDURES ...... 10 
SECTION 1: Equal Opportunity ...................................................................................... 10 
SECTION 2: Commitment to Diversity and Inclusion ......................................................... 10 
SECTION 3: Title VI Compliance .................................................................................... 11 
SECTION 4: Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and Reasonable Accommodation ............... 11 
SECTION 5: Recruitment, Selection and Appointment of New Employees .............................. 12 
SECTION 6: Anti-Harassment ........................................................................................ 12 
SECTION 7: Complaint and Appeal Procedures ................................................................. 14 
SECTION 8: Whistleblower Policy ................................................................................... 16 

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST, CONFIDENTIALITY AND CODE OF CONDUCT ...................... 17 
SECTION 1: Conflicts of Interest .................................................................................... 17 
SECTION 2: Confidentiality ........................................................................................... 17 
SECTION 3: Record-Keeping, Financial Controls and Disclosures ......................................... 18 
SECTION 4: Personnel Actions ....................................................................................... 18 
SECTION 5: Access to Personnel Records ........................................................................ 18 
SECTION 6: Public Information ...................................................................................... 19 
SECTION 7: Penalties for Permitting Access to Personnel Records and Files .......................... 19 
SECTION 8: Examining and/or Copying Confidential Material .............................................. 19 
SECTION 9: HIPAA Compliance ..................................................................................... 19 
SECTION 10: Code of Conduct ...................................................................................... 20 

EMPLOYMENT RELATIONSHIP ................................................................................... 21 
SECTION 1: Employment Categories .............................................................................. 21 
SECTION 2: Positions Classification Plan ......................................................................... 22 
SECTION 3: Pay Plan ................................................................................................... 22 
SECTION 4: Administration and Maintenance of the Position Classification and Pay Plans ........ 23 
SECTION 5: Starting Salaries ........................................................................................ 23 
SECTION 6: Trainee Designation and Provisions ............................................................... 23 
SECTION 7: Introductory Period .................................................................................... 23 
SECTION 8: Promotion ................................................................................................. 24 
SECTION 9: Demotion ................................................................................................. 24 
SECTION 10: Transfer .................................................................................................. 25 
SECTION 11: Reclassification ........................................................................................ 25 

26



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 3 

SECTION 12: Merit Increases ........................................................................................ 26 
SECTION 13: Bonuses, Across-the-Board Pay Adjustment and Other Awards ........................ 26 
SECTION 14: Timesheets ............................................................................................. 27 
SECTION 15: Payday ................................................................................................... 27 
SECTION 16: Hardship Policy ........................................................................................ 27 
SECTION 17: Separation of Employment ......................................................................... 28 
SECTION 18: Reinstatement and Rehiring ....................................................................... 30 

WORKPLACE SAFETY & EMERGENCIES ...................................................................... 31 
SECTION 1: Commitment to Safety ................................................................................ 31 
SECTION 2: Drug-Free Workplace Policy ......................................................................... 31 
SECTION 3: Workplace Violence Prevention ..................................................................... 32 
SECTION 4: Emergency Closings and Inclement Weather .................................................. 32 
SECTION 5: Administrative Leave with Pay Due to Emergency Closing ................................. 33 

WORKPLACE GUIDELINES......................................................................................... 34 
SECTION 1: Residency ................................................................................................. 34 
SECTION 2: Employee Orientation ................................................................................. 34 
SECTION 3: Office Location and Hours ............................................................................ 34 
SECTION 4: Work Schedules and Alternative Arrangements ............................................... 34 
SECTION 5: Employment of Relatives ............................................................................. 39 
SECTION 6: Outside Employment .................................................................................. 40 
SECTION 7: Political Activity ......................................................................................... 40 
SECTION 8: Performance Evaluation .............................................................................. 41 
SECTION 9: Dress Code ............................................................................................... 42 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS ................................................................................................ 44 
SECTION 1: Eligibility .................................................................................................. 44 
SECTION 2: Group Health Insurance .............................................................................. 44 
SECTION 3: Group Life Insurance .................................................................................. 44 
SECTION 4: Supplemental Health and Life Insurance ........................................................ 44 
SECTION 5: Retiree Health Insurance ............................................................................. 44 
SECTION 6: NC Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System  .................................. 46 
SECTION 7: Supplemental Retirement Benefits  ............................................................... 46 
SECTION 8: Social Security .......................................................................................... 46 
SECTION 9: Workers’ Compensation .............................................................................. 46 
SECTION 10: Unemployment Compensation .................................................................... 47 
SECTION 11: Disability Insurance .................................................................................. 47 
SECTION 12: Short-term Disability ................................................................................ 47 
SECTION 13: Employee Assistance Program .................................................................... 47 
SECTION 14: Flexible Spending Accounts ........................................................................ 48 
SECTION 15: NC Local Governmental Employees’ Federal Credit Union ................................ 48 
SECTION 16: Professional Development .......................................................................... 48 
SECTION 17: Professional Memberships and Dues ............................................................ 48 

TIME OFF AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE ......................................................................... 49 
SECTION 1: Policy ....................................................................................................... 49 
SECTION 2: Vacation Leave: Accrual Rates ..................................................................... 49 

27



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 4 

SECTION 3: Vacation Leave: Maximum Accumulation ....................................................... 49 
SECTION 4: Excess Vacation Leave ................................................................................ 50 
SECTION 5: Vacation Leave: Manner of Taking ................................................................ 50 
SECTION 6: Vacation Leave: Payment upon Separation ..................................................... 50 
SECTION 7: Sick Leave ................................................................................................ 50 
SECTION 8: Sick Leave: Accrual Rates and Accumulation .................................................. 51 
SECTION 9: Transfer of Sick Leave from Previous Employer ............................................... 51 
SECTION 10: Sick Leave: Payment upon Separation ......................................................... 51 
SECTION 11: Compassionate Leave Transfer ................................................................... 51 
SECTION 12: Bereavement Leave .................................................................................. 53 
SECTION 13: Medical Leave of Absence (Non-FMLA Leave ................................................. 53 
SECTION 14: Military Leave .......................................................................................... 53 
SECTION 15: School Visitation Leave ............................................................................. 54 
SECTION 16: Jury Duty and Civil Leave .......................................................................... 54 
SECTION 18: Leave Without Pay.................................................................................... 54 
SECTION 19: Continuation of Fringe Benefits ................................................................... 55 
SECTION 20: Holidays ................................................................................................. 55 

UNSATISFACTORY JOB PERFORMANCE AND FAILURE IN PERSONAL CONDUCT .......... 56 
SECTION 1: Unsatisfactory Performance ......................................................................... 56 
SECTION 2: Failure in Personal Conduct.......................................................................... 56 
SECTION 3: Disciplinary Actions .................................................................................... 57 
SECTION 4: Employee Appeal ....................................................................................... 58 

28



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 5 

WELCOME TO CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL 

Welcome to Centralina Regional Council! We are delighted that you have chosen to join our 
organization and hope that you will enjoy a long and successful career with us. As you become 
familiar with our culture and mission, we hope you will take advantage of opportunities to enhance 
your career and further Centralina’s goals. 

You are joining an organization that has a reputation for outstanding leadership, innovation, and 
expertise. Our employees use their creativity and talent to invent new solutions, meet new 
demands and offer effective services to the governments and entities that we serve. With your 
active involvement, creativity and support, Centralina will continue to achieve its goals. We 
sincerely hope you will take pride in being an important part of Centralina’s success. 

All the activities of Centralina are interrelated and dependent upon each other and members and 
staff must work together to accomplish the organization’s goals. For any group to work together 
and to function efficiently there must be: 

 A climate of cooperation;
 A basic understanding of purposes and objectives; and
 A common interpretation of the policies, rules, and regulations that govern the organization.

Please take time to review the policies contained in this manual. Although this policy manual has 
been designed in the best possible manner, its contents cannot be considered as all-inclusive. 
Allowances must be made for judgment on the part of the Executive Director, department directors 
and supervisors. An Operations Manual has been created to provide more clarification on certain 
policies and provide information on proper procedures and course of action.  

If you have questions, feel free to ask your supervisor or contact the Human Resources Manager. 

29



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 6 

BACKGROUND OF CENTRALINA 

Centralina Regional Council is a public organization that was established to serve the needs of the 
greater Charlotte region, including Anson, Cabarrus, Gaston, Lincoln, Iredell, Mecklenburg, Rowan, 
Stanly and Union counties. Our mission is to strengthen regional collaboration and improve quality 
of life, which we accomplish in three distinct ways. We identify regional opportunities and spark 
action by facilitating areawide planning, collaboration and problem-solving. We support local 
governments by giving them the technical support, training and expertise they need to serve their 
communities. Finally, we provide direct health, aging and workforce services to individuals. 
Through these three levels of engagement and impact, we seek to unite our region by a common 
vision for a thriving and prosperous place to live, work and play. 

Our Mission: 
Centralina Regional Council leads regional collaboration and sparks local action to expand 
opportunity and improve quality of life. We do this through creative problem solving, innovative 
service delivery and support to our local governments. 

30



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 7 

CORE VALUES 

We are wholeheartedly dedicated to serving our communities and making a meaningful difference 
in our region. To do this we LEAD in the way we ACT with each other and our constituents. 
We LEAD in the way we ACT with each other and our customers.  

 Listen and speak with care 
 Embrace boldness and flexibility
 Affirm that differences matter 
 Drive Collaboration 

 Act with integrity
 Commit to our communities 
 Take care of ourselves and each other 

We LEAD in the way we 
ACT with each other and 
our customers.  

What does this look like?  

Listen and Speak 
With Care  

 We take time to
praise each other and 
practice gratitude.  

 We actively listen before 
being heard, practicing 
empathy and speaking 
with precision and care.   

 We are open to feedback 
on how we can adapt and 
improve.  

Embrace boldness and 
flexibility  

 We are innovative and 
not afraid to take 
risks.  

 We are flexible in both
independent and 
collaborative tasks while 
working remotely.   

 We are open minded
leaders that look to the 
future and anticipate 
what’s next.  

Affirm that differences 
matter  

 We acknowledge and
appreciate that we 
are all unique 
individuals.  

 We actively engage to
understand other 
unique perspectives, 
needs and experiences.  

 We adapt how we present
our expertise so that it is 
accessible to all.  

Drive  
Collaboration  

 We serve as subject-
matter experts (SMEs) 
to ensure our 
organization is able to 
meet critical business 
needs.  

 We acknowledge that
we are better together!  

 We adopt a One Centralina
mindset   by creating 
opportunities for teamwork 
within and across all areas.  

Act with integrity   We are mindful of the
impact that our 
actions and decisions 
have on others.  

 We work to build trust
through honest 
relationships and acting 
in good faith.  

 We adhere to the highest 
level of ethics and 
authenticity.  

Commit to our 
communities  

 We are proactive in
engaging our 
communities.  

 We invest in learning
about our communities.  

 We foster relationships 
with local leaders to build 
bridges for our 
communities.  

Take care of ourselves 
and each other  

 We practice and
support a healthy 
work-life balance.  

 We intentionally take
action to improve our 
physical and mental 
health.  

 We are aware when our
teammates are in need and 
offer support.  

31



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 8 

32



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 9 

33



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 10 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

SECTION 1:   Purpose of the Policy 

It is the purpose of this policy and the rules and regulations set forth to establish a fair and uniform 
system of personnel administration for all employees of Centralina under the supervision of the 
Executive Director.  

Nothing contained in this policy should be considered as a contract between Centralina and an 
employee. Employment with Centralina is “at-will”. Centralina or the employee may terminate the 
employment relationship at any time, with or without reason or notice.  

SECTION 2:   Amendments to the Policy 

Centralina reserves the right to add, change, or delete personnel policies and/or procedures as it 
deems necessary. Amendments to this Policy Manual that are substantive in nature will be made 
by the Executive Director and/or designated staff with final approval from the Executive Board. 
Employees will be made aware of these changes as soon as reasonably possibly.  

SECTION 3:   Responsibilities of the Board of Delegates 

The Board of Delegates and its Executive Board is responsible for adopting all plans, programs, 
objectives and policies of Centralina. Project review and adoption of a budget are also 
responsibilities of the Delegates. The Executive Board shall be responsible for establishing and 
approving personnel policies, the position classification and pay plan and may change the policies 
and benefits as necessary. The Executive Board, however, delegates the actual employment and 
discharge responsibilities to the Executive Director. The Executive Director and staff carries out 
the approved and budgeted activities of Centralina.  

SECTION 4:   Responsibilities of the Executive Director 

It shall be the responsibility of the Executive Director to administer these policies and procedures 
and any subsequent amendments or additions as may be adopted by the Board of Delegates or 
its Executive Board. As delegated by the Executive Board, the Executive Director shall make 
appointments, dismissals and suspensions in accordance with the policies and procedures outlined 
in this Policy.   

The Executive Director may designate an employee, i.e. a Human Resources Manager, to perform 
certain responsibilities related to administration of the personnel program. This designee shall 
maintain the position classification plan and the pay plan and perform such other duties in 
connection with an effective human resources program.  All matters dealing with human resources 
shall be routed through this designee who shall maintain a complete system of personnel files and 
records.  

34



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 11 

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY, COMMITMENT TO DIVERSITY AND COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 

SECTION 1:   Equal Opportunity 

Centralina is an Equal Employment Opportunity employer. It is against Centralina’s policy for any 
employee to discriminate against an applicant for employment or an employee on the basis of 
race, color, religion, age, sex, national origin, disability status, genetics, protected veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, or any other characteristic protected by federal, 
state or local laws. 

The policies and principles of equal employment opportunity also apply to the selection and 
treatment of independent contractors, personnel working on our premises who are employed by 
temporary agencies and any other persons or firms doing business for or with Centralina. 

This policy of Equal Employment Opportunity applies to all policies and procedures relating to 
recruitment and hiring, compensation, benefits, dismissal and all other terms and conditions of 
employment.  

Department Directors and supervisors are responsible for implementing equal employment 
practices within each department. The Executive Director is responsible for Centralina’s overall 
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Employees' questions or concerns should be 
referred Human Resources. 

Violations of this policy, regardless of whether or not an actual law has been violated, will not be 
tolerated. Centralina will investigate every issue that is brought to its attention in this area, will 
take corrective actions and will take appropriate disciplinary action when appropriate. 

SECTION 2:   Commitment to Diversity and Inclusion 

An inclusive workplace is essential to carrying out Centralina’s mission of expanding opportunity 
and improving quality of life while upholding our core values. Centralina has a responsibility 
to create and sustain a work environment where employees of all races, ethnicities, nationalities, 
cultures, religions, gender identities or expressions, sexual orientations, 
ages, neurodiversities, and physical abilities feel safe, respected, and empowered to bring their 
unique identities to work. We welcome the contributions these differences 
offer and recognize that having an array of perspectives fosters creativity and innovation. 

To promote diversity, equity, and inclusion within our organization, Centralina commits to: 
 Providing ongoing training and resources on cultural competency and overcoming personal

biases.
 Zero tolerance for harassment of any kind.
 Resolving conflicts and addressing grievances expediently and effectively.
 Ensuring equity in hiring, advancement, and salary setting practices.
 Regularly reviewing and assessing the organization’s cultural inclusivity and sensitivity.

35



  
 

  
CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 12  

 

SECTION 3:   Title VI Compliance – Policy Statement and Notice of Non-Discrimination 
(Updated April 2023) 
 
Centralina Regional Council, as a recipient of federal financial assistance, assures that no person 
shall, on the grounds of their race, color, age, disability, or national origin be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in any 
agency-sponsored program or activity, regardless of whether those programs and activities are 
federally funded or not. Centralina’s Non-Discrimination Policy is in keeping with Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, the Americans with Disabilities Act, 
Section 188 of the Workforce Investment Opportunity Act and related federal policies that address 
non-discrimination as outlined in the following document.  
 
Centralina’s Non-Discrimination Policy applies to all employees, contractors and subrecipients of 
Centralina, as well as all recipients of and participants in all Centralina programs, services and 
activities. 
 
Further, in the event that Centralina distributes federal financial aid funds to a subrecipient, 
Centralina will include the appropriate non-discrimination language and references to federal laws, 
such as Title VI, in all written agreements and will monitor those subrecipients for compliance as 
and when required. 
 
This policy statement not only identifies the guiding principles of Centralina’s Title VI plan but is 
also an expression of our organization’s broader commitment to non-discrimination.  
 
Centralina values the diversity of all the people and communities we serve and welcomes 
participation from all interested parties in its programs, services and activities, regardless of cultural 
identity or background. Centralina is also committed to promoting the comprehensive realization 
of equal opportunity and equal access to all of its programs, services and activities regardless of 
race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability, marital or family status, sexual orientation, 
gender identity or expression or any other characteristic protected by law. Centralina is an Equal 
Employment Opportunity/Affirmative Action employer.  
 
Centralina will not tolerate any form of proscribed discrimination in employment efforts or in any 
of its programs, services  or activities. Further, Centralina will not tolerate any form of retaliation 
directed against an individual who complains of discrimination pursuant to this policy or who 
participates in any investigation concerning discrimination pursuant to this policy. 
 

A RESOLUTION REGARDING TITLE VI AND 
ADOPTION OF A TITLE VI POLICY STATEMENT 

 
WHEREAS, the Centralina Council of Governments (Centralina COG) is the state-designated lead 
regional organization for the nine-county region in and around Charlotte, North Carolina; and 
 
WHEREAS, Centralina COG’s role is to coordinate the efforts of federal, state and local 
governments and organizations to grow our region’s economy and jobs, control the cost of 
government and improve quality of life; and  
 

Formatted: Font: Bold

36



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 13 

WHEREAS, to fund its many program activities and initiatives, Centralina COG receives direct or 
pass-through federal funding from agencies such as the US Department of Transportation (Federal 
Highway Administration and Federal Transit Administration); the US Department of Health and 
Human Services; and the US Department of Labor; and  

WHEREAS, Centralina COG, as a recipient and sub-recipient of federal funding will ensure full 
compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 which prohibits discrimination based on 
race, color and national origin, specifically 42 USC 2000d, which states that: 

No person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be 
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination 
under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance; and  

WHEREAS, Centralina COG will also comply with the Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 
amended and its related statutes, regulations and all additional protections set forth; and 

WHEREAS, Centralina COG has developed a Title VI Policy Statement that will direct the 
administration and implementation of the Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 within the 
organization and authorizes Centralina COG’s Executive Director to further develop and provide 
any other Title VI assurances, plans and programs, as required. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Centralina COG certifies that it will comply with the 
provisions of the Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (as amended) and the associated 
responsibilities of the law and adopts the 2018 Title VI Policy Statement. 

Approved by the Centralina Board of Delegates October 10, 2018 

SECTION 4:   Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and Reasonable Accommodation 

It is the policy of Centralina to comply with all federal and state laws concerning the employment 
of persons with disabilities and to act in accordance with regulations and guidance issued by the 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC). Further, Centralina will make reasonable 
accommodations, including modification of organizational policies and procedures in appropriate 
cases for qualified individuals with disabilities, if Centralina can do so without undue hardship.  

Employees who may require a reasonable accommodation should contact Human Resources. 

SECTION 5:   Recruitment, Selection and Appointment of New Employees 

Job Requisition Process. Department Directors shall complete a job requisition form whenever 
the department has a need to: 

 Create and fill a new position, or
 Refill an existing position when there is a termination of employment.

The job requisition form details the request for the position, explains the need, determines the 
budget available for the role and identifies any resources or technology needed. The Executive 
Director with input from the Finance Director shall approve the job requisition prior to posting the 
positing for recruitment. 

37



  
 

  
CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 14  

 

 
Recruitment Sources. When position vacancies occur, Centralina shall publicize these 
opportunities for employment, including applicable salary information and employment 
qualifications. Job openings will be advertised in local newspapers, professional publications and 
other such means in order to establish a diverse and qualified applicant pool. In addition, notice 
of vacancies shall be posted internally at a designated conspicuous place at the Centralina office 
where notices are customarily posted and/or on the Centralina website.  
 
Application for Employment. All persons expressing interest in employment with Centralina 
shall be given the opportunity to file an application for employment for positions that are vacant. 
All applications shall be delivered and maintained by Human Resources. 
 
Travel Expenses and Relocation Assistance. On occasion, recruitment for an open position 
may require a search over a wide geographic area. In these circumstances the Executive Director 
may authorize the payment of travel expenses for candidates and payments for part or all of 
moving expenses for relocating new employees. 
 
Selection. Department directors, with the assistance of Human Resources, shall make such 
investigations, schedule and conduct such examinations as necessary to assess accurately the 
knowledge, skills, experience and other qualifications required for the position.  All selection 
devices administered by Centralina shall focus on knowledge, skills, abilities, and suitability to 
perform the job.  
 
Appointment. Before any commitment is made to an applicant, either internal or external, the 
Department Director shall make recommendations to the Executive Director and Human Resources 
of the position to be filled, the salary to be paid, and the reasons for selecting the candidate over 
other candidates. The Executive Director shall approve all appointments and starting salaries with 
input from the Finance Director. Human Resources shall be responsible for the processing of new 
employees.  
 
SECTION 6:   Anti-Harassment 
 
Centralina explicitly forbids harassment of one employee by another employee, supervisor or third 
party (including contracted service providers or members of the Board) for any reason. Such 
behavior undermines the integrity of the employment relationship and goes against Centralina’s 
Core Values.  
 
Violation of this policy will result in disciplinary action, up to and including immediate termination. 
 
Definitions of harassment are contained below. If employees have further questions about what 
constitutes harassing behavior or what conduct is prohibited by this policy, they should discuss 
these questions with Human Resources and/or their immediate supervisor. 
 
Unlawful Harassment. “Unlawful harassment” is conduct that has the purpose or effect of 
creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment because of: 
 
1. The individual’s membership in a protected class (to include race; color; religion; genetic 

information; national origin; gender; sexual orientation; pregnancy, childbirth, or related 

38



  
 

  
CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 15  

 

medical conditions; age; disability; or any other category protected under federal, state, or 
local law), or 

 
2. Substantially and unreasonably interferes with an individual’s work performance; or otherwise 

adversely affecting an individual’s employment opportunities, regardless of protected class 
designation. 
 

Unlawful harassment includes, but is not limited to, epithets; slurs; jokes; pranks; innuendo; 
comments; written or graphic material; stereotyping; or other threatening, hostile or intimidating 
acts. 

 
Sexual Harassment. “Sexual harassment” is generally defined under both state and federal law 
as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and other verbal or physical conduct 
of a sexual nature where: 

 
1. Submission to or rejection of such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or 

condition of any individual’s employment or as a basis for employment decisions; or 
 

2. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work 
performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment. 
 

Other sexually oriented conduct, whether intended or not, that is unwelcome and has the effect 
of creating a work environment that is hostile, offensive, intimidating or humiliating to workers 
may also constitute sexual harassment. 
 
Retaliation. Centralina also absolutely forbids retaliation, which includes: threatening an 
individual or taking any adverse action against an individual for (1) reporting a possible violation 
of this policy, or (2) participating in an investigation conducted under this policy. 
 
Centralina staff and Board Members are covered by this policy and are prohibited from engaging 
in any form of harassing, discriminatory, or retaliatory conduct. None of the aforementioned 
individuals has the authority to suggest to any applicant or employee that employment or 
advancement will be affected by the individual entering into (or refusing to enter into) a personal 
relationship with the supervisor or member of the Board or for tolerating (or refusing to tolerate) 
conduct or communication that might violate this policy. Such conduct is a direct violation of this 
policy. 
 
Even non-employees are covered by this policy. Centralina prohibits harassment, discrimination, 
or retaliation of our employees in connection with their work by non-employees.  Employees should 
immediately report any harassing or discriminating behavior by non-employees, including 
contractors and/or subcontractors.  
 
Reporting. If you have any concern that Centralina’s Anti-Harassment policy may have been 
violated by anyone, you must immediately report the matter. Due to the very serious nature of 
harassment, discrimination and retaliation, you must follow Centralina’s complaint procedure 
contained in the following sections. 
 

39



  
 

  
CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 16  

 

Employees should report any actions they believe violates this policy no matter how slight the 
actions may seem. Centralina is committed to investigating the report and then taking prompt, 
appropriate remedial action. Employees shall not be penalized or retaliated against for reporting 
improper conduct, harassment, discrimination, retaliation, or other actions that they believe may 
violate this policy. 
 
SECTION 7:   Complaint and Appeal Procedures 
 
It is Centralina’s policy to provide a just procedure for the presentation, consideration, and 
disposition of employee complaints. The purpose of this section is to outline the procedure and to 
assure all employees that a response to their complaints and complaints will be prompt and fair. 
 
Employees utilizing the complaint procedure shall not be subjected to retaliation or any form of 
harassment from supervisors or employees for exercising their rights under the complaint 
procedure. Supervisors, or other employees who violate this policy, shall be subject to disciplinary 
action up to and including termination. 
 
It is the responsibility of supervisors at all levels, consistent with authority delegated to them, to 
consider and take appropriate action promptly and fairly on a complaint or adverse action appeal 
of any employee. 
 
In adopting these procedures, Centralina sets forth the following objectives: 

 Assure employees of a way in which they can get their problems or complaints considered 
rapidly, fairly, and without fear of reprisal. 

 Encourage the employee to express himself/herself about how the conditions of work affect 
him/her as an employee. 

 Get better employee understanding of policies, practices, and procedures which affect 
him/her. 

 Provide employees with assurance that actions are taken in accordance with policies. 
 Provide a check on how policies are carried out by supervisors, and 
 Give supervisors a greater sense of responsibility in their dealings with employees. 

 
Appeal Procedure – Non-Discrimination. Any Centralina employee having a problem or 
complaint arising out of or due to his/her employment and who does not allege discrimination 
because of his/her age, sex, race, color, national origin, religion, creed, physical disability or 
political affiliation shall follow the procedure below: 
 

Step One.  The employee with a complaint shall present the matter orally or in writing to 
his/her Department Director as promptly as possible, with the objective of resolving the 
matter informally.  The Department Director should consult with any individual deemed 
necessary to reach a correct, impartial and equitable determination and shall give the 
employee an answer as promptly as possible. If the employee’s complaint is against the 
Department Director, the employee should begin at Step Two. 

 
Step Two.  If the decision is not satisfactory to the employee in Step One, or if he/she fails 
to receive an answer within the designated period provided in Step One, he/she may file 
the complaint with the Executive Director, who shall hear the complaint and render a 
decision in writing as promptly as possible.  

40



  
 

  
CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 17  

 

 
Step Three. If the decision is not satisfactory to the individual in Step Two, or if he/she fails 
to receive an answer within the designated period provided in Step Two, the individual may 
file the complaint with the Centralina’s Board Chairman and Executive Board who shall hear 
the complaint appeal and render a decision in writing as promptly as possible.  This decision 
shall be final regarding the complaint. 

 
Appeal Procedure – Discrimination. Any current or former employee who has reason to believe 
that employment, promotion, training, or transfer was denied him/her or that demotion, layoff, or 
dismissal of employment was forced upon him/her because of race, color, religious creed, gender, 
age, sexual orientation, national origin, genetic predisposition, or any other classification protected 
by applicable discrimination laws, shall follow the procedure below. 
 
This procedure shall also apply to complaints involving the availability of services and programs 
and benefits to disabled persons as defined by the Americans with Disabilities Act. 
 

Step One.  The employee with a complaint shall present the matter orally or in writing to 
the Executive Director. The Executive Director should consult with any individual deemed 
necessary to reach a correct, impartial, and equitable determination and shall give the 
individual an answer as promptly as possible. 

 
Step Two.  If the decision is not satisfactory to the individual in Step One, or if he/she fails 
to receive an answer within the designated period provided in Step One, he/she may file 
the complaint in writing to Centralina’s Board Chairman and Executive Board, who shall 
hear the complaint and render a decision in writing as promptly as possible. This decision 
shall be final regarding the complaint.  

 
Appeal Procedure – Adverse Action. Any Centralina employee or former employee having a 
problem or complaint arising out an adverse action (demotion, dismissal, reduction in pay, layoff 
or an undesirable transfer or suspension), shall follow the procedure below:  
 

Step One.  The individual with a complaint regarding an adverse action shall present the 
matter orally or in writing to his/her Department Director who shall render a response as 
promptly as possible. 

 
Step Two.  If the decision is not satisfactory to the individual or if he/she fails to receive an 
answer within the designated period provided in Step One, he/she may file the adverse 
action appeal with the Executive Director, who shall hear the complaint and render a 
decision in writing as promptly as possible. This decision shall be final regarding the adverse 
action appeal. 

 
SECTION 8:   Whistleblower Policy 
 
A whistleblower as defined by this policy is an employee of Centralina who reports an activity that 
he/she considers to be illegal or dishonest to one or more of the parties specified in this Policy. 
The whistleblower is not responsible for investigating the activity or for determining fault or 
corrective measures; appropriate management officials are charged with these responsibilities. 
 

41



  
 

  
CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 18  

 

This policy is intended to cover protections for employees that raise concerns on issues such as: 
 Incorrect financial reporting. 
 Unlawful activity. 
 Activities that are not in line with Centralina’s policies. 
 Activities, which otherwise amount to serious improper conduct. 

 
If an employee has knowledge of or a concern of illegal or dishonest fraudulent activity, the 
employee is to contact his/her immediate supervisor or the Human Resources Manager. The 
employee must exercise sound judgment to avoid baseless allegations. An employee who 
intentionally files a false report of wrongdoing will be subject to discipline up to and including 
termination. 
 
Whistleblower protections are provided in two important areas – confidentiality and against 
retaliation. Insofar as possible, the confidentiality of the whistleblower will be maintained. 
However, identity may have to be disclosed to conduct a thorough investigation, to comply with 
the law and to provide accused individuals their legal rights of defense. Centralina will not retaliate 
against a whistleblower. This includes, but is not limited to, protection from retaliation in the form 
of an adverse employment action such as termination, compensation decreases or threats of 
physical harm. Any whistleblower who believes he/she is being retaliated against must contact the 
Human Resources Manager as promptly as possible. The right of a whistleblower for protection 
against retaliation does not include immunity for any personal wrongdoing that is alleged and 
investigated. 
 
  

42



  
 

  
CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 19  

 

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST, CONFIDENTIALITY & CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
SECTION 1:   Conflicts of Interest 
 
Centralina actively prohibits any actual or appearance of conflict of interest with clients, the 
community, member governments or within the organization by employees and members of the 
Board of Delegates. 
 
A conflict of interest is considered an actual or perceived interest by a staff member in an action 
that results in (or could potentially result in) personal or professional gain.  
 
It is not possible to list every activity or relationship that would create a conflict of interest but 
examples of activities that violate this policy include the following: 
 

 An employees’ interest in an outside business which conflict or appears to conflict with their 
ability to act and make independent decisions in the best interest of Centralina. 

 Employees, members of employee’s immediate family, and members of the Board soliciting 
or accepting gifts, money or gratuities (in excess of minimal value) from the following: 
o Persons receiving benefits or services from the organization. 
o Any person or organization performing or seeking to perform services under contract 

with the organization, and 
o Persons who are otherwise in a position to benefit from the actions of any employee of 

the organization. 
 Using the resources of Centralina for personal gain, and 
 Using your position at Centralina for personal advantage. 
 

Any violation of this policy by a Centralina employee is subject to review under Centalina’s Policy 
on Disciplinary Actions which are found in the Centralina Personnel Policy Manual.  
 
Any violation of this policy by the Executive Director will be referred to the Board of Delegates.   
 
Any violation of this policy by any member or members of the Centralina Board of Delegates will 
face appropriate action by the rest of the Board Members and in accordance with jurisdictional 
Code of Ethics policies.   
 
Note: The conflict of interest policy described above, may be superseded by higher requirements 
established by external funding sources or grant requirements.  
 
SECTION 2:   Confidentiality 
 
During the course of employment staff may have access to confidential or proprietary information. 
Confidential information includes information disclosed to or known by the employee because of 
their employment or relationship with Centralina that is not generally known to people outside of 
the organization. This information might be disclosed through your participation on a Centralina 
project, program or initiative. Proprietary information might include non-public information that 
might be of use to competitors or harmful to the Centralina or its customers/clients if disclosed.   
 

43



  
 

  
CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 20  

 

Any breach of confidentiality or misuse of information could result in disciplinary action up to and 
including termination of employment, even if the employee does not actually benefit from the 
disclosed information. The obligation to preserve proprietary information continues even after 
employment ends. 
 
If there is any doubt regarding the types of information that is deemed to be confidential, the 
employee should seek counsel from the Executive Director, Department Director or Human 
Resources. 
 
Members of the Centralina Board of Delegates also have an obligation to maintain confidential or 
proprietary information entrusted to them by the organization or its customers/clients, except 
when disclosure is authorized in writing by the Executive Director or required by laws or 
regulations.  
 
If there is any doubt regarding the types of information that is deemed to be confidential, the 
Board of Delegates should seek counsel from the Executive Director. 
 
SECTION 3:   Record-Keeping, Financial Controls and Disclosures 
 
Centralina requires honest, accurate and timely recording and reporting of information in order to 
make responsible business decisions. All business expense accounts must be documented and 
recorded accurately in a timely manner. If you are not sure whether a certain expense is 
legitimate, please ask the Finance Director. Policy guidelines are also available from the Human 
Resources Manager. All of the organization’s books, records, accounts and financial statements 
must be maintained in reasonable detail; must appropriately reflect the organization’s 
transactions; must be promptly disclosed in accordance with any applicable laws or regulations 
and must conform both to applicable legal requirements and to the organization’s system of 
internal controls. 
 
SECTION 4:   Personnel Actions 
 
Human Resources will prescribe necessary forms and reports for all personnel actions and will 
retain records necessary for the proper administration of the personnel system.  
 
SECTION 5:   Access to Personnel Records 
Centralina shall maintain the records deemed necessary for the proper administration of the 
personnel system. The official personnel files are maintained by Human Resources. These files 
contain documents such as employment applications, records of personnel actions, performance 
reviews, performance warnings, pay records, retirement and insurance records, and other 
personnel related documents. Only documents included in these files constitute official personnel 
records. The Executive Director and/or Human Resources are the only persons authorized to 
release information or provide access to an employee or ex-employee’s Personnel File.  
 
Records of Former Employees. The provisions for access to records apply to former employees 
as they apply to present employees.  
 

44



  
 

  
CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 21  

 

Employee Objections to Material in File. An employee who objects to material in his/her file 
on grounds that it is inaccurate or misleading may seek to have the material removed from the 
file or may place in the file a statement relating to the material. 
 
SECTION 6:   Public Information 
 
Certain information included in an employee’s personnel file shall be considered public record; 
while other information in the employee’s personnel file shall be treated as confidential in 
accordance with NC General Statute 153A-98; Privacy of Employee Personnel Records.  
 
In accordance with General Statute 153A-98, the following information is a matter of public record: 
name, age, date of original employment or appointment to public service, current position title, 
current salary, date and amount of most recent increase or decrease in salary, date of most recent 
promotion, demotion, transfer, suspension, separation or other change in position classification, 
and the office to which the employee is currently assigned. Any person may have access to this 
information for the purpose of inspection, examination, and copying, during regular business 
hours. 
 
All information contained in an employee’s personnel file, other than the information mentioned 
above, is confidential and shall be open to inspection only in the instances listed in accordance 
with NC General Statute 153A-98.  Confidential records are kept in a locked fire-retardant cabinet. 
 
SECTION 7:   Penalties for Permitting Access to Personnel Records and Files 
 
A public official or employee who knowingly, willfully and with malice permits any person to have 
access to information contained in a personnel file, except as is explicitly permitted, is guilty of a 
Class 3 misdemeanor and upon conviction shall only be fined an amount not more than five 
hundred (500) dollars. 
 
SECTION 8:   Examining and/or Copying Confidential Material Without Authorization 
 
Per NC General Statutes, any person, not specifically authorized to have access to a personnel file 
designated as confidential, who shall knowingly and willfully examine in its official filing place, 
remove or copy any portion of a confidential personnel file shall be guilty of a Class 3 misdemeanor 
and upon conviction shall only be fined in the discretion of the court but not in excess of five 
hundred (500) dollars. 
 
SECTION 9:   HIPAA Compliance 
 
Centralina is committed to protecting the privacy, security, confidentiality, integrity and availability 
of individually identifiable protected health information in compliance with the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and the regulations described there under. 
These policies and procedures apply to protected health information (PHI) created, acquired, 
maintained or disclosed by Centralina employees, subcontractors, business associates, vendors, 
volunteers and interns. All individuals representing Centralina will take responsibility for 
safeguarding protected health information to which they have access. The organization has 
designated a HIPAA Compliance Officer for breach reporting and action. More detailed information 

45



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 22 

regarding HIPAA policy and procedures can be found in Centralina’s Operations and Procedures 
Manual.  

SECTION 10:   Code of Conduct 

The Code of Conduct covers a wide range of business practices and procedures. It does not cover 
every issue that may arise but sets out basic principles to guide all Centralina employees and 
members of its Board of Delegates. The following Centralina policies specifically pertain to the 
organization’s expectations regarding Code of Conduct: 

 Equal Opportunity
 Conflicts of Interest
 Confidentiality
 Record-Keeping, Financial Controls and Disclosures
 Outside Employment

All employees and Board of Delegates must conduct themselves accordingly and seek to avoid 
even the appearance of improper behavior.  

Centralina employees and Board of Delegates are responsible for understanding policy 
requirements and reporting any suspected violations of law, this code or Centralina policy.  

Those who violate the standards of this policy will be subject to disciplinary action, including 
possible termination of employment or Board assignment. Furthermore, violations of this code 
may also be violations of the law and may result in civil or criminal penalties.  

46



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 23 

EMPLOYMENT RELATIONSHIP 

SECTION 1:   Employment Categories 

It is the intent of Centralina to clarify employment classifications so that employees understand 
their employment status and benefit eligibility.   

Regular, full-time. Employees (not on term status) regularly work at Centralina full-time 
schedule of 40 hours per week. Regular, full-time employees receive full sick and vacation leave 
and holiday pay and are eligible for Centralina’s medical, life insurance, and retirement benefits 
according to Centralina personnel policies. 

Regular, part-time. Employees (not on term status) regularly work less than the full-time 
schedule. Regular, part-time employees receive sick and vacation leave and holiday pay on a 
prorated basis and are eligible for Centralina’s medical, life insurance, and retirement benefits if 
they continue to work on the average at 30 hours or more per week. 

Introductory employee. A full time or part time regular employee who has not yet successfully 
completed the six-month introductory period of employment.  

Term employee. A term employee is hired to assist with a specific project or to temporarily 
supplement the work force. A term employee is paid according to the terms of hire. Term 
appointments can be short-term in duration or for a period of time determined by the Department 
Director to meet the service needs of a particular program or project but shall not exceed limits 
set by the NC Local Governmental Retirement System. Personnel employed on term status only 
receive those benefits mandated by state or federal law. Term employees do not receive: 
vacation/sick leave, holiday pay, COLA’s, health insurance, or retirement benefits.  A term 
employee’s work performance and status should be evaluated on a schedule determined by the 
Department Director or recommended by the Human Resources Manager. This ultimately ensures 
project goals and requirements are met. The terms of the employment agreement, assignments 
and any salary adjustments may be made at that time.  

Non-Exempt Employee. Non-Exempt employees are covered by the Fair Labor Standards Act 
(FLSA) requirements regarding overtime and are entitled under specified conditions to overtime 
pay. (The FLSA requires overtime compensation at time and one-half for hours worked over 40 
hours per week, for "nonexempt" employees.) 

Overtime. Centralina employees may be requested to work overtime hours as necessitated 
by the needs of the organization and determined by the employee’s supervisor and/or 
department director. In these instances, the employee’s supervisor must give final approval 
of the additional hours worked.  Employees who work overtime hours without prior approval 
from their supervisor may face disciplinary action.  

Hours worked beyond the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) established limit of forty (40) 
hours per week will be compensated in either compensatory time or pay at the established 
rates. Under the provisions of the FLSA, “non-exempt” employees must be paid overtime 
for hours worked over forty (40) in a workweek at a rate of one and one-half (1.5) times 
their regular hourly rate of pay. 

47



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 24 

Employees in positions determined to be “exempt” from the FLSA are not paid overtime and 
are expected to work the hours required to do their job in an effective and efficient manner. 

Compensatory Time. Compensatory time off is time off with pay in lieu of overtime pay for 
irregular or occasional overtime work. As prescribed by the U.S. Department of Labor, 
employees of State or local government agencies may receive compensatory time off, at a 
rate of not less than one and one-half hours for each overtime hour worked, instead of cash 
overtime pay.  

Any compensatory time accrued in excess of forty (40) hours must be used within forty-
five (45) days of its accrual. There shall be no payout of these hours, except upon 
separation. No employee shall exceed the maximum balance of hours of compensatory leave 
allowed by FLSA.  

An employee will be permitted to use compensatory time on the date requested unless 
doing so would “unduly disrupt” the operations of the agency. Employees who have accrued 
compensatory time must be granted compensatory time off rather than personal leave when 
leave is requested. 

The employee’s supervisor is responsible for the administration of compensatory time off in 
lieu of overtime pay. An agreement between employees and the supervisor must be arrived 
at prior to the employees' actually performing the work, as to the method to be used in 
compensating overtime hours worked.  

Exempt Employee. Exempt employees are not covered by the overtime provisions because of 
standards and criteria established by the FLSA with regards to job duties. Under the FLSA, exempt 
employees are not entitled to overtime pay or compensatory time.  

SECTION 2:   Position Classification Plan 

The Position Classification Plan provides a complete inventory of all authorized positions in 
Centralina, and an accurate description and specification for each class of employment. The plan 
standardizes job titles, each of which is indicative of a definite range of duties and responsibilities. 
The Position Classification Plan shall be used as follows:  

 As a guide in recruiting and examining applicants for employment.
 In determining lines of promotion and in developing employee training programs.
 In determining salary to be paid for various types of work.

SECTION 3:   Pay Plan (Updated April 2023) 

The Pay Plan includes the basic salary schedule and the “Assignment of Classes to Grades and 
Steps” adopted by the Executive Board of Delegates.  The schedule consists of the minimum and 
maximum rates of pay for all classes of positions.  

Centralina seeks to recruit, develop, and retain qualified, high performing and motivated 
employees to fulfill the organization’s mission and strategic priorities while honoring the 
organization’s values. Fair, equitable compensation of employees is integral to this goal. Stated in 

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

48



  
 

  
CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 25  

 

simple terms, the compensation philosophy helps us in: recruiting and retaining top talent, 
improving job performance, being confident about compensation discussions with employees  
 
The compensation philosophy will be reviewed periodically and modified based on how well it 
continues to support the recruitment and retention of exceptional employees and aligns with the 
organization’s core values 
 
The Pay Plan includes the basic salary schedule and salary range representing the minimum, 
midpoint, and maximum rates. The midpoint is set to provide market competitive, fair and 
equitable salaries based on the competitive marketplace for the organization. Best practice defines 
the midpoint means the employee meets essential responsibilities over time. Range maximums 
set the ceiling for a particular pay grade. Range minimums set the floor.  
 
 
 
 
SECTION 4:   Administration and Maintenance of the Position Classification and Pay 
Plans 
 
Centralina’s Human Resources Manager, in coordination with the Executive Director, shall be 
responsible for the administration and maintenance of the Position Classification and Pay Plan and 
shall periodically review portions of the plans and recommend appropriate changes to the 
Executive Director.  
 
SECTION 5:   Starting Salaries (Updated April 2023) 
 
All persons employed in positions approved by the Position Classification Plan shall be employed 
in at least the minimum rate for the classification in which they are employed except for employees 
in trainee status. Exceptionally well qualified applicants, however, may be employed above the 
minimum rate of the established salary range upon approval of the Executive Director.  
 
As the budget allows, Centralina shall apply the following compensation guidelines for new hires 
when the level of experience exceeds the position minimum years of experience: 
 

 Calculate 2% above the minimum for each year of directly related full-time experience, at 
the same level of position, in excess of the minimum requirements (excluding internships 
or fellowships). 

 Calculate 1% above the minimum for each year of full-time work experience that is not 
directly related to the position functions, in excess of the minimum requirements. 

 Calculate 2% above the minimum to reflect related industry certification or related advanced 
degree that exceeds the minimum requirement of the position. 

 
The initial offer may go as high as the pay range midpoint. Centralina will also review salary 
determinations for internal equity. 
 
SECTION 6:   Trainee Designation and Provisions 
 

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Add space between paragraphs of the same
style,  No bullets or numbering, Allow hanging punctuation,
Font Alignment: Auto

Formatted: Font: (Default) Verdana, 11 pt, Font color:
Gray-70%

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Font color: Auto, Text Fill

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Font color: Auto, Text Fill

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Add space between paragraphs
of the same style, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0.25" +
Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the same
style, Don't allow hanging punctuation, Font Alignment:
Baseline

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Font color: Auto

49



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 26 

Applicants being considered for employment or Centralina employees who do not meet all the 
requirements for the position for which they are being considered may be hired, promoted, 
demoted, or transferred to a “trainee” status, at the recommendation of their supervisor to the 
Executive Director. In such cases, a plan for training the employee to meet the qualifications of 
the job, including a time schedule within which the employee should meet the job qualifications, 
must be prepared by the employees’ supervisor and/or Department Director. “Trainee” salaries 
may be no more than two grades below the minimum salary established for the position for which 
the person is being trained.  

If the training is not successfully completed to the satisfaction of Centralina, the trainee may be 
transferred or dismissed. If the training is successfully completed, the employee shall be paid at 
least the minimum rate established for the position for which the employee was trained.  

SECTION 7:   Introductory Period 

New employees and regular employees being transferred into new positions, shall complete an 
initial six months of satisfactory performance in the appointed position. This shall be referred to 
as "introductory employment period". The introductory employment period may be extended for 
an additional three months by the Executive Director. 

The introductory employment period provides an opportunity for the appointee to adjust to the 
new job. Likewise, it serves as an orientation period during which one must demonstrate his/her 
ability to perform the work, to accept additional responsibility, to develop a desirable attitude and 
to work well for the public and with his/her fellow employees. 

An employee serving an introductory employment period following initial employment may be 
dismissed at any time by the Executive Director without benefit of redress through the complaint 
procedure. 

A regular employee serving a probationary employment period following a promotion may be 
demoted or dismissed if unable to satisfactorily perform the assigned duties of the new position. 
A regular employee may appeal such action in accordance with the complaint procedure.  However, 
a regular employee who accepts a promotion does thereby waive any rights of expectations of 
returning to his previous position in the event he/she fails to succeed in the position to which 
he/she was promoted. 

During their introductory employment period, new employees shall be entitled to all benefits 
possessed by regular employees.  

During the introductory period, supervisors shall monitor the employee’s performance and 
communicate with the employee concerning performance progress. Introductory employees shall 
receive a performance review at the end of six (6) months to discuss accomplishments, strengths 
and any needed improvements. (See the section on Performance Evaluations) The supervisor shall 
then recommend in writing to the Human Resources Manager whether the introductory period 
should be completed, extended or otherwise. Completion of the introductory period does not alter 
at-will status of employment. 

50



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 27 

SECTION 8:   Promotion (Updated April 2023) 

Promotion is a change in duty assignment and title of an employee from one position to another 
in a higher salary pay grade, involving a higher level of responsibility and increased qualifications, 
such as greater skills or longer experience. Requests for staff promotions will be reviewed as 
submitted for consideration. 

Candidates for promotion shall be chosen based on their qualifications. When a current employee 
is chosen for promotion, the promoting supervisor shall forward the request to the Human 
Resources Manager with recommendations for classification and salary along with reasons for 
selecting the employee over other internal applicants. After considering the supervisor’s 
recommendation in consultation with the Human Resources Manager and Finance Director, the 
Executive Director shall confirm or reject the appointment. If the Executive Director confirms the 
appointment, he or she shall approve the starting salary for the employee. Employees within their 
initial probationary period of employment with Centralina are not eligible for a promotion. 

Based on available budget, employees being promoted will be given the minimum of the new 
paygrade or up to 7.5% promotional base salary increase. An internal equity review will also be 
conducted whenever a staff member is promoted. The purpose of the promotion pay increase is 
to recognize and compensate the employee for taking on increased responsibility. This decision, 
however, shall be at the Executive Director’s discretionapproval and again based on business 
conditionsavailable budget. 

The first six (6) months in the new position is the introductory period and a performance evaluation 
shall be conducted at the completion of this period. 

When an employee is promoted, the employee’s salary shall normally be advanced to the minimum 
of the new position or to a salary which provides an increase of at least five (5) percent over the 
employee’s salary before the promotion, provided, however, the new salary does not exceed the 
maximum rate of the new salary range. The purpose of the promotion pay increase is to recognize 
and compensate the employee for taking on increased responsibility. This decision, however, shall 
be at the Executive Director’s discretion and based on business conditions. 

SECTION 9:   Demotion 

Demotion is the movement of an employee from one grade level to a lower grade level. An 
employee whose work or conduct in the current position is unsatisfactory may be demoted 
provided that the employee shows promise of becoming a satisfactory employee in the lower 
position. Such demotion shall follow the disciplinary procedures outlined in this Personnel Manual 
and be made in accordance with Centralina’s Classification and Pay Plan. 

When a current employee is identified for a demotion based on unsatisfactory work or conduct, 
the employee’s supervisor shall forward the request to the Human Resources Manager with the 
recommendations for classification and salary along with reasons for the demotion. After reviewing 
the supervisor’s recommendation and in consultation with the Human Resources Manager, the 
Executive Director shall confirm or reject the action. If confirmed, the employee shall then be 
provided with written notice citing the recommended effective date of the demotion, the reasons 
for the demotion and the appeal rights available to the employee as stated in this manual. 

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

51



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 28 

An employee who wishes to accept a position with less complex duties and reduced responsibilities 
may request a voluntary demotion. A voluntary demotion is not a disciplinary action and is made 
without using the procedures related to corrective action. 

SECTION 10:   Lateral Transfer 

A Lateral Transfer is the movement of an employee from one position to a position in a class in 
the same salary range. If a vacancy occurs and an employee in another department is eligible for 
a transfer, the employee can apply for the transfer using the usual application process. The request 
for transfer shall be subject to approval of the Executive Director. 

The department director wishing to transfer an employee to a different department or classification 
shall make a recommendation to the Executive Director with the consent of the receiving 
department director. An employee who has successfully completed the introductory employment 
period may be transferred into the same classification without serving another orientation period. 
The salary of an employee reassigned to a position in the same class or to a position in a different 
class within the same salary range shall not be changed by the reassignment. 

Staff must be in their current position/role for a minimum of 6 months for transfer consideration; 
for transfer consideration the employee must also have a good performance and attendance 
record.  

The first six (6) months in the new position is the introductory period and a performance evaluation 
shall be conducted at the completion of this period. 

SECTION 11:   Reclassification 

A reclassification is a change in a position from one grade to another based on a significant change 
in job duties and level of responsibility.  

It is the responsibility of the supervisor to identify significant changes in job responsibility and to 
initiate a reclassification review. The department director may make a recommendation to the 
Human Resources Manager for the review of a position for reclassification. Along with the position 
and salary recommendations the department director should also include and any recommendation 
for a new job title. The position review could result in a higher classification, a lower classification 
or no change to the position.    

An employee whose position is reclassified to a class having a higher salary range shall receive a 
pay increase of at least five (5) percent or an increase to the minimum rate of the new pay range, 
whichever is higher. This decision, however, shall be at the Executive Director’s discretion and 
based on business conditions.  

If the position is reclassified to a lower pay range, the employee’s salary shall remain the same. 
If the employee’s salary is at the maximum established for the new range, the salary of that 
employee shall be maintained at the current level until the range is increased above the 
employee’s salary.  

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

52



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 29 

SECTION 12:   Merit Increases 

Depending upon the allocation of funds by the Centralina Executive Board, employees may be 
eligible for consideration for increases in compensation based on the performance evaluation 
process. Recommendations shall be submitted in writing by the supervisors and final decision on 
the allocation of merit increases shall be made by the Executive Director with input from the 
Finance Director. Merit increases may occur until such time as the employee achieves the top 
salary in their range.  

To be eligible for a merit increase, an employee must be employed with at least six months of 
continuous service prior to the merit award effective date. 

Similarly, newly promoted employees must be in the new position for at least six months before 
the merit award date in order to receive the merit increase. 

SECTION 13:   Bonuses, Across-the-Board Pay Adjustment and Other Awards 

Staff performance bonuses. At certain times during the year, Centralina may decide to 
implement a bonus plan as a means to promote productivity and to provide an immediate and 
visible recognition of employee contributions. These bonuses may recognize individual employee 
contributions in instances where the employee has exceeded expectations for exceptional 
performance or may be awarded to the entire Centralina staff in recognition of the organization’s 
good works.  The authorization of a performance bonus plan shall be approved by the Executive 
Board upon the recommendation of the Executive Director.   

Individual recommendations for staff performance bonus shall be made by supervisors department 
directors and subject to the approval of thefollowing framework outlined.:  

 Department directors can recommend a staff performance bonus for staff engaged in
temporary but ongoing work responsibilities that is in addition to or beyond an employee’s
current job classification.

 For staff to be considered for this bonus they must be:
o Doing something that is not in their job description or encompassed within the

department’s work; 
o Doing temporary but regularly occurring work (meaning more than one or two times).

 For every 3 months of time incurred in this work the staff member will receive up to $500.

 Staff Performance Bonuses shall be grossed up and shall be paid out on a quarterly basis.

 Bonuses are dependent on available budget and must be reviewed by finance and approved
by the Executive Director 

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Font color: Text 1, Kern at 12 pt, Text Fill

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Font color: Text 1, Kern at 12 pt, Text Fill

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Font color: Text 1, Kern at 12 pt, Text Fill

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Add space between paragraphs
of the same style, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0.25" +
Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Font color: Auto, Text Fill

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Font color: Auto, Text Fill

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Font color: Text 1, Kern at 12 pt, Text Fill

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Font color: Text 1, Kern at 12 pt, Text Fill

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Font color: Text 1, Kern at 12 pt, Text Fill

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Font color: Text 1, Kern at 12 pt, Text Fill

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering, Allow hanging punctuation, Font Alignment:
Auto

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

Formatted: Font: Font color: Auto, Text Fill

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering, Allow hanging punctuation, Font Alignment:
Auto

53



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 30 

 Staff performance bonuses will be available to regular full or part-time employees who have
completed their introductory employment period as indicated by the employee’s supervisor.

Bonus in lieu of salary adjustments. Employees who are at or near the maximum of the salary 
range for their position classifications are eligible to be considered for a performance bonus 
following the completion of their annual performance evaluation. Performance bonuses shall be 
awarded generally based upon the performance of the employee as described in the performance 
evaluation and shall be the same percentage of review period as employees within the salary 
range with the same performance level. Performance bonuses do not become part of base pay 
and shall be awarded to the employee on a quarterly basis. in a lump sum payment.  

Across-the-Board Pay Adjustment. Depending on financial conditions, the Centralina 
Executive Board may approve an Across-the-Board Adjustment in appreciation of staff’s 
commitment and collective organizational achievements, in recognition of any increases in cost of 
living or to maintain market compatibility. To be eligible for an Across-the-Board pay adjustment 
an employee must be employed with at least three months of continuous service prior to the 
effective date of the pay adjustment. 

Peer-to-Peer awards. The peer-to-peer award program is an opportunity for Centralina staff to 
appreciate and recognize contributions of their colleagues. Through this program, a staff member 
can nominate a colleague as a gesture of their appreciation and the nominee will receive a gift 
card in a nominal amount. 

All regular full-and-part time staff, interns, temporary staff and SCSEP program participants will 
be eligible to receive an award under this program. 

The Human Resources Manager shall manage this awards program, in coordination with the 
Finance Director. Amounts of the individual award, frequency and total budget will be determined 
on an annual basis. 

SECTION 14:   Timesheets 

Employees are required to provide an accurate accounting of hours worked and leave used during 
a pay period on the biweekly timesheet. Employees will be provided with the appropriate cost 
center(s) in which to charge their time which corresponds to the work that the employee is 
assigned. Centralina employees must complete an electronic timesheet, which will be verified and 
approved by the employee’s supervisor. These timesheets will then be retrieved electronically by 
the Finance Department for processing. To ensure timely processing, timesheets will be due at a 
time established by the Finance Department.  

SECTION 15:   Payday 

Any payments for compensation issued by Centralina will be paid by direct deposit. The regular 
payday for all Centralina employees and other individuals receiving compensation from Centralina 
shall be every other Friday by method of direct deposit to their designated bank account.  

Formatted: List Paragraph, Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned
at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5", Don't allow hanging
punctuation, Font Alignment: Baseline

Formatted: Font: Font color: Auto

54



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 31 

If the agency’s financial position necessitates, the Executive Director shall have the authority to 
combine all the pay periods during a month to pay the employees on the last regularly scheduled 
Friday payday in the month.  

The Executive Director shall have the authority to issue checks to deliver pay in the event direct 
deposit becomes infeasible or temporarily inoperable. 

Final Pay. An employee that has separated employment for any reason will be paid through the 
last day of work, plus any unused vacation (not to exceed the limit of accrued maximum days) 
and sick (at the rate of one-third days’ pay for each day of accumulated sick leave, not to exceed 
a maximum of 15 days if employed before January 1, 2018) leave that is owed.  

It is the responsibility of the employee's supervisor and/or department director to ensure that 
Finance receives the terminating employee’s timesheet in sufficient time for processing. 

An employee’s payout of any accrued and unused leave shall normally occur two weeks after the 
regular payday. 

SECTION 16:   Hardship Policy 

Centralina has created a Hardship Policy to help prevent a debt spiral for Centralina employees, 
when a specific emergency event creates an acute financial problem that can be solved with a 
limited payout of earned vacation leave.  

Employees must submit a written request of the specific hardship that necessitates a payout of 
earned vacation leave.  The employee’s request must include the specific hardship, the 
circumstances involved, and the amount needed. 

The employee may request a payout of earned vacation leave in the amount of $500 to $1,200. 
Employees are limited to one (1) hardship payout every three (3) years, must be in good standing 
with their supervisor and a full-time employee. 

1. Eligible Hardships: In order for the hardship request to be approved, the employee must have
suffered one of the following hardships within the three months preceding the request:
 Severe illness, injury, or emergency dental work of employee;
 Severe illness or injury of employee’s immediate family member;
 Death of employee's immediate family member;
 Major loss/damage to primary residence due to disaster such as fire, flood, or hurricane;
 Job loss by a household member that creates a deficit in household income; or
 Victim of domestic violence with immediate need for safe housing

2. Ineligible: Non-emergency reasons for which requests cannot be granted include:
 Money needed to pay for vacation expenses; or
 Personal purchases or gifts for others on holidays or special occasions

3. Financial difficulties that pre-date this hardship (three months) or are ongoing in nature are
beyond the scope of this policy.

55



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 32 

4. All applicable taxes will be deducted from the payout amount including FICA, Medicare and
Retirement and Federal and State taxes (depending on the payout amount).

5. After the payout amount, the employee must still have at least 25% of available leave in their
vacation bank.

6. Payouts will ordinarily be available within three to five business days following review and
approval of the request.

7. Employees will be limited to one (1) hardship payout of vacation leave every three (3) years.

SECTION 17:   Separation of Employment 

All separation of employees from positions in the service of Centralina shall be designated as one 
of the following types and shall be accomplished in the manner indicated: resignation, reduction 
in force, furlough, disability, voluntary retirement, dismissal, or death. 

Resignation. Varying circumstances can cause employees to voluntarily resign employment. 
Employees are asked to follow the procedure below to ensure minimal disruption to ongoing work 
functions.  

A minimum of two (2) weeks' notice is requested of all resigning personnel. Such notice should be 
given to the department director (or in the case of department director, to the Executive Director) 
and forwarded to Human Resources for appropriate action. Employees who provide the requested 
amount of notice will be considered to have resigned in good standing and generally will be eligible 
for rehire.  

Not providing the requested two (2) weeks’ notice could result in the forfeiture of accumulated 
vacation and sick leave payouts (if applicable) and the individual may be deemed ineligible for 
rehire. The Executive Director has the right to waive the resignation requirement when it is in the 
best interest of the organization. 

Please note that three (3) consecutive days of absence without contacting the immediate 
supervisor or department director may be considered to be a voluntary resignation. (However, in 
the case of an extreme circumstance such as serious illness that has caused the absences, the 
employee should contact or have his/her agent contact the organization as soon as practicable to 
explain the situation.) 

Sick leave will only be approved during the final two (2) weeks of a notice with a physician’s 
certification or comparable documentation. 

In most cases, Human Resources will conduct an exit meeting on or before the last day of 
employment to collect all company property and to discuss final pay. If applicable, information 
regarding benefits continuation through the Consolidated Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) will 
be sent to the employee’s home address.  

Reduction in Force. In the event that a reduction in force becomes necessary, consideration 
shall be given to the quality of each employee's past performance, organizational needs and 

56



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 33 

seniority in determining those employees to be retained. When possible, employees who are laid 
off because of reduction in force shall be given at least two (2) weeks’ notice of anticipated lay-
off or generally two (2) weeks’ severance pay or an amount determined by the Executive Director. 
No regular employee shall be laid off while there are temporary employees serving in the same 
class in the department, unless the regular employee is not willing to transfer to the position held 
by the temporary employee. 

Furlough. Furlough is the placement of an employee in a temporary leave without pay status for 
a specified number of hours or days within a specified time frame. This may be necessitated by 
financial emergency, including revenue shortfalls, caused by events such as a natural disaster, 
pandemic and/or sudden, dramatic and unexpected conditions outside the control of the 
organization where operational needs may have changed and it may become necessary to 
implement furloughs as one cost-saving measure.  

A furlough may consist of (a) reduced number of work hours in a day with proportionate reduction 
in pay; (b) reduced number of workdays in a week with proportionate reduction in pay; or (c) 
specific days off without pay. A furlough is not a layoff or reduction in force. Furloughs will be 
conducted in a manner that is fair and consistent and Centralina will continue to take responsible 
steps to address its economic and operational circumstances. Once a furlough has ended, affected 
employees will usually be reinstated to the position held at the time of the furlough. 

Disability. The NC Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (LGERS) disability 
retirement provides payments to its members in the form of monthly disability retirement benefits 
an employee is vested in the retirement system and becomes disabled while they are a regular 
employee under LGERS and meets certain eligibility requirements. The employee must refer to 
the LGERS Disability Retirement Eligibility Requirements for more information. 

Voluntary Retirement. An employee who meets the conditions set forth under the provision of 
the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System may elect to retire and 
receive all benefits earned under the retirement plan.  

Dismissal. An employee may be dismissed in accordance with the provisions and procedures 
outlined in the Unsatisfactory Job Performance and Failure in Personal Conduct section. 

Death. The date of death shall be recorded as the separation date for computing compensation 
due. Any death benefits will be paid to the estate of a deceased employee. 

SECTION 18:   Reinstatement and Rehiring 

An employee who is separated because of reduction in force may be reinstated within one year of 
the date of separation, upon recommendation of the department director, and upon approval of 
Executive Director.  An employee who is reinstated in this manner shall be re-credited with his/her 
previously accrued sick leave.  

A former employee who was employed in a regular position for at least one (1) full year or more 
and who resigned in good standing, may be considered for re-employment provided his/her 
qualifications are suitable for a vacant position.  

57



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 34 

Recovery of Leave Status. The re-hired employee will regain his/her previous years of service 
eligibility for vacation leave accrual. On all other benefit terms and conditions, the re-hired 
employee shall be treated as a new employee. 

58



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 35 

WORKPLACE SAFETY & EMERGENCIES 

SECTION 1:   Commitment to Safety 
Centralina is committed to establishing a safe work environment for employees and shall establish 
policies and procedures regarding safety practices and precautions as needed and/or required. 
Further, employees are expected to work in a safe and responsible manner during the performance 
of their duties and shall notify their supervisor in the event of an injury or property damage 
occurring in the office or while on business for Centralina. All employees are encouraged to partner 
with management to ensure maximum safety for all. 

In the event of an emergency, employees must notify the appropriate emergency personnel by 
calling 911. 

SECTION 2:   Drug-Free Workplace Policy 

In compliance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, Centralina is committed to providing a 
safe and productive work environment for its employees. Alcohol and drug abuse pose a threat to 
the health and safety of Centralina employees and to the security of our equipment and facilities. 

This policy statement outlines the practice and procedure designed to correct instances of 
identified alcohol and/or drug use in the workplace.  

Work Rules. Centralina employees are not to arrive at work or conduct Centralina business 
(whether or not the employee is actually on work premises at the time) while under the influence 
of alcohol or illegal drugs. This policy also covers the times when employees are driving Centralina 
vehicles.  

Centralina further prohibits all employees, including employees performing work under contracts, 
from possessing, selling, or distributing alcohol or illegal drugs at the workplace or while 
conducting company business. Illegal drug use also includes the misuse of otherwise legal 
prescriptions and over-the-counter drugs.  

Employee Assistance and Drug-Free Awareness. Illegal drug use and alcohol misuse have a 
number of adverse health and safety consequences. Information about these dangers and sources 
of help for drug/alcohol problems are available through Centralina’s Employee Assistance Program. 
Employees who think they may have an alcohol or drug usage problem are urged to voluntarily 
seek confidential assistance from Centralina’s Employee Assistance Program. Centralina will assist 
and support employees who voluntarily seek help for such problems before becoming subject to 
discipline and/or termination.  

Employees who have work performance related problems and who continue to be substance 
abusers and refuse to seek help or continue substance abuse even while enrolled in counseling or 
rehabilitation programs will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination. 

Crimes Involving Drugs. Centralina does not wish to intrude into the private lives of its 
employees but recognizes that employee’s off-the-job involvement with drugs and alcohol may 
have an impact on the workplace. Therefore, Centralina reserves the right to take appropriate 
disciplinary action for drug usage/sale/distribution while off company premises. All employees who 

Formatted: Normal, Left

59



  
 

  
CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 36  

 

are convicted of, plead guilty to, or are sentenced for a crime involving illegal drugs or alcohol are 
required to report the conviction, plea or sentence to their supervisor within five days. Failure to 
comply will result in disciplinary action up to and including termination.  
 
SECTION 3:   Workplace Violence Prevention 
 
Centralina is committed to providing a safe, violence-free workplace for our employees. Due to 
this commitment, we prohibit employees from engaging in any physical confrontation with a 
violent or potentially violent individual or from behaving in a threatening or violent manner. 
Threats, threatening language, or any other acts of aggression or violence made toward or by any 
employee will not be tolerated. A threat may include any verbal or physical harassment or abuse, 
attempts to intimidate others, menacing gestures, stalking, or any other hostile, aggressive, 
and/or destructive actions taken for the purposes of intimidation. This policy covers any violent or 
potentially violent behavior that occurs in the workplace or at company-sponsored functions. 
 
All Centralina employees bear the responsibility of keeping the work environment free from 
violence or potential violence. Any employee who witnesses or is the recipient of violent behavior 
should promptly inform their department director, supervisor or Human Resources. All threats will 
be promptly investigated. No employee will be subject to retaliation, intimidation, or discipline as 
a result of reporting a threat in good faith under this guideline. 
 
Any individual engaging in violence or presenting the threat of violence against the organization, 
its employees, or its property will be prosecuted to the full extent of the law. All acts will be 
investigated, and the appropriate action will be taken. Any such act or threatening behavior may 
result in disciplinary action up to and including termination.  
 
Weapons. Centralina prohibits the possession of weapons on its property at all times, unless in 
official capacity. This includes the building and parking lots. Weapons include, but are not limited 
to, handguns, rifles, automatic weapons, and knives that can be used as weapons (excluding 
pocketknives, utility knives, and other instruments that are used to open packages, cut string, 
and for other miscellaneous tasks), martial arts paraphernalia, stun guns, and tear gas.  
 
Additionally, Centralina employees must also adhere to the policy statements of other local 
governments and businesses as it relates to weapons while at those locations for Centralina 
business.  
 
SECTION 4:  Emergency Closings and Inclement Weather 
 
Centralina will always make every attempt to be open for business. However, in emergency 
situations the Executive Director may advise employees to leave the office or not come into the 
office due to emergency conditions. In this instance the Executive Director will implement an 
emergency plan for operations and the employee may utilize vacation leave and/or temporarily 
work from home. 
 
In cases of inclement weather, the Centralina office shall also make every attempt to be open for 
business. However, employees are asked to use their best judgment and if they believe the driving 
conditions are beyond their comfort level, the employee may utilize vacation leave and/or 
temporarily work from home. The Executive Director also reserves the right to close the office in 

60



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 37 

extreme circumstances. 

In both instances of an emergency closing and inclement weather, employees who have exhausted 
their vacation leave and do not utilize the option of working from home may elect to receive leave 
without pay by notifying their supervisor.  

Temporary work from home arrangements due to emergency closings and office closure due to 
inclement weather are allowed by the Executive Director on an as-needed basis only; employees 
not approved for an alternative work arrangement (SeeXX) are expected to return to their normal 
work schedules once directed.   

SECTION 5:  Administrative Leave with Pay Due to Emergency Closing 

The Executive Director or his/her designee has the authority to authorize administrative leave with 
pay in situations that warrant emergency closures such as in national emergencies, natural 
disasters, pandemics, civil disturbances or in other circumstances as when such leave is in the 
best interest of the organization and ensures operational continuity.   Such leave shall be for a 
duration of time determined by the Executive Director or his/her designee or as authorized by 
public health authorities or other officials. The Executive Director or his/her designee shall be 
responsible for implementing a plan for business continuity during an emergency closure to ensure 
essential business functions are maintained.  

61



  
 

  
CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 38  

 

WORKPLACE GUIDELINES 
 

SECTION 1:  Residency 
 
As a condition of employment, all persons employed subsequent to the adoption of this manual 
shall establish and maintain residence within the boundaries of the Centralina Region "F" within 
nine months from the beginning date of employment. Exceptions to this policy may be granted by 
the Executive Director. 
 
SECTION 2:  Employee Orientation 
 
The purpose of the employee orientation is to ensure that new employees have the opportunity to 
gain a better understanding of their job responsibilities. The Human Resources Manager will be 
responsible for initially acquainting the new employee with the basic information needed to 
accomplish this objective including providing an overview of benefits and other information related 
to the employment process.  
 
Department directors and supervisors are expected to continue the orientation process for new 
employees by explaining departmental procedures and specific job assignments.  
 
SECTION 3:  Office Location & Hours  
 
Centralina maintains an office location as its principle place of business for the organization and 
all employees. Employees shall use the Centralina location as their business address for official 
correspondence and identification; and as their principle place of work unless alternative work 
arrangements have been approved (See Section 4 below). 
 
The standard office hours for Centralina shall be from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 pm; Monday through 
Friday.  The payroll week shall be Saturday at 12:00 a.m. to Friday at 11:59 p.m. 
 
SECTION 4:  Work Schedules & Alternative Arrangements  
 
Centralina has the expectation that all employees follow an established work schedule that meets 
the operational needs of their department and the organization. Centralina allows for flexibility in 
individual work schedules which permits employees to vary their arrival and/or departure times 
from the standard office hours.  These schedules are a matter of agreement between the 
Department Director and/or supervisor and the employee, provided the majority of the employee’s 
workday occurs during standard office hours.  An employee's work schedule shall be assessed on 
an ongoing basis during the performance review period and may be suspended or cancelled at any 
time. Employees are expected to fulfill necessary job duties, i.e. meetings, coverage, deadlines 
regardless of their work schedule. 
 
Due the nature of the organization, many employees may have job duties or responsibilities that 
require them to visit locations within and outside of the region. Centralina expects clear 
communication between employees and their Department Director and/or Supervisor when they 
have occasional business outside of the office. Employees providing services outside of the office 

62



  
 

  
CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 39  

 

on a regular basis shall have their schedules approved in advance by their Department Director 
and/or supervisor. 
 
Once an employee’s work schedule is established, there may be situations when additional 
flexibility in work schedule and/or location is desired.  In these situations, an employee may 
request an alternative work arrangement as follows:   

 Flex Work Arrangement: request to alter an established work schedule and/or location on 
an occasional basis.  

 Work from Home Arrangement: request to establish a set day(s) to work outside of the 
Centralina office and at home. 

 Compressed Work Schedule: request to compress hours in an 80-hour work week to nine 
business days. 

 
See Sections 4a-4c below for additional information. 
 
SECTION 4a: Flex Work Arrangement 
 
The employee may request a flex work arrangement, a variation in their established work schedule 
or location, due to unusual personal circumstances, unusual workloads, or in the interest of more 
efficient operations.  Flex work arrangement requests shall be limited in duration and be requested 
in response to a specific situation; examples can include but are not limited to: 

 Alternate hours due to travel or appointments. 
 Alternate hours due to after-work or evening Council, Board or Committee meetings. 
 Work from home prior to an appointment to close to an employee’s residence. 
 Work from home to supervise contractors or technicians completing work at the employee’s 

residence. 
 Work from home following a medical procedure as recommended by a physician. 

 
Employees shall request a flex time arrangement in advance from their supervisor. The supervisor 
will approve or deny the flextime request based on staffing needs, the employee’s job duties, the 
employee’s work record and the employee’s ability to temporarily or permanently return to a 
standard work schedule when needed.  
 
All Centralina employees are eligible to request flex time regardless of their employment status.  
 
SECTION 4b: Work from Home Arrangement 
 
Centralina considers working from home a viable, flexible work arrangement when both the 
employee and the job are suited for it. Working from home may be appropriate for some 
employees and jobs but not for others. It is not an employee right, nor is it an organizational wide 
benefit and it in no way changes the terms and conditions of employment.  
 
Employees may request the option to work outside of the Centralina office at their home on a set 
day or days of the week via an established and approved work schedule. Under this policy, 
employees may request to work from home up to 3 days (or 24 hours) in a work week. 
 

63



  
 

  
CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 40  

 

The work from home alternative work arrangement is not for occasional or temporary work outside 
of the office (see Section 4a above); rather it is a set change to the employee's established work 
schedule and requires high level of predictability.  Employees that require occasional flexibility 
with their approved work from home schedule may seek advance approval from their supervisor 
via the Flex Work Arrangement policy (See Section 4a above).   
 
The remainder of this section outlines eligibility and general terms of the work from home 
arrangements offered by Centralina. All employees whose work from home arrangements have 
been approved shall be required to sign a “Work from Home Agreement” which outlines the specific 
terms and conditions of the arrangement. 
 
Centralina expects that the employee working from home maintain an acceptable level of 
performance and productivity.  Thus, a work from home arrangement is subject to ongoing review 
by the employee’s supervisor and may be terminated at any time by either the employee or the 
supervisor (although it is recommended that prior notice be given and a mutual agreeable end 
point established).  
 
Eligibility. Employees who are eligible for a work from home arrangement shall:  
1. Have completed their initial Introductory Period of employment. 

 
2. Have portable job duties as defined by Human Resources. 

 
3. Consistently meet or exceed the performance expectations of their position as documented in 

past performance evaluations or other established means. 
 

4. Designate a worksite suitable for working at home. 
 

5. Attest that they will limit distractions and interruptions from dependents and others in the 
home during core office hours. 
 

6. Be reliable in meeting their day-to-day responsibilities effectively. 
 

7. Be able to work independently and productively with minimal supervision. To be productive in 
a work from home capacity, the employee must:  
 Be fully proficient in all job functions as defined by the job description. 
 Be available to attend staff meetings, training, etc. and adjust their work at home schedule 

if and when business needs dictate. 
 Consistently work independently with limited intervention by their supervisor. 
 Demonstrate the ability to learn and communicate using remote applications, in lieu of face-

to-face interactions (e.g., e-mail; telephone; conference calls, video calls).  
 Demonstrate conscientiousness about work time and productivity, and self-motivation.    
 Be able to communicate effectively with supervisors, co-workers, clients, vendors and 

Centralina members.  

Request and Approval Process. Employees shall complete a Work from Home Arrangement 
request form and submit to their Department Director for review. The Department Director can 
either deny the request or forward the request to Human Resources with a recommendation for 

64



  
 

  
CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 41  

 

approval.  Human Resources Manager shall approve all requests, except for the following which 
are subject to approval by the Executive Director: (1) requests from any Centralina supervisor; 
(2) requests seeking approval for 3 days per week or more than 8 days per month.  Department 
Directors shall notify Human Resources of any denied requests.  The Human Resources Manager 
shall work with the Department Director and employee to customize the Work from Home 
Agreement template; the final draft of the Agreement shall be signed by the employee, 
Department Director and Executive Director. 

Compensation and Work Hours. The employee’s compensation, benefits, work status and work 
responsibilities will not change due to participation in the work from home arrangement. The 
amount of time the employee is expected to work per day or pay period does not change as a 
result of participation.  Hourly employees will continue to be required to clock in and out each 
day.  
  
Location and Leave. Employees are expected to be working at their home during their work from 
home schedule. Employees are discouraged from working from public locations for extended 
periods of time due to potential internet security issues and privacy concerns; employees 
participating in video or conference calls from public locations should be cognizant of their 
surroundings.  Rest and recovery are critical for employee wellbeing and is a core Centralina value; 
therefore, Centralina does not allow “working vacations” (working either full time or partial time 
from a remote location) except for special circumstances and with a supervisor’s prior approval.  
Personal leave time normally scheduled during a teleworking employee’s scheduled workday must 
be arranged in the same manner with their immediate supervisor as employees at the centrally 
located worksite.  
  
Policies. Employees who are approved for a work from home arrangement remain obligated to 
comply with all Centralina policies and procedures, practices and supervisor instructions.    
  
Privacy and Safety. Employees shall retain the Centralina office as their primary mailing and 
business correspondence address; and are advised not to release their home address and 
telephone number while conducting Centralina business.  Employees are prohibited from meeting 
with clients, member governments, vendors or other external parties at their home.    
  
IT Equipment. Centralina may provide specific IT tools or equipment for the employee to 
perform their  current duties at home; an IT assessment will be part of the request form and work 
from home agreement.  Any Centralina equipment that is taken offsite will be inventoried and 
must be returned at the conclusion of the work from home period.  The use of equipment, software 
and other peripherals when provided by Centralina for business use is limited to the employee; 
the employee is responsible for maintaining equipment in good working condition and promptly 
notifying Centralina of any broken, damaged or malfunctioning components.  Employee shall follow 
all IT policies and procedures while working from home. 
  
Office Supplies and Functions. Office supplies are centrally provided by Centralina; employees 
working from home may request office supplies through the online Administrative Work Request 
system. All printing, copying, mailing and other business functions shall be completed at the 
Centralina office.  Centralina will not reimburse out-of-pocket expenses for office supplies, printing 

65



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 42 

or copying; Department Directors may approve out-of-pocket expenses in special circumstances 
and with prior approval by the Finance Director.  

Mileage. Employees attending in-person meetings or events on scheduled work from home day(s) 
shall follow Centralina’s mileage reimbursement policy.  

Work-Space Requirements. Permission to work from home is dependent upon the employee 
having a suitable work location at home that meets the requirements set forth below:  

 A dedicated workspace to limit distraction in the home and safely secure all business
information or work product.

 Reliable, secure and high-speed internet connection.
 Access to all required Centralina systems and platforms.
 Ability to keep equipment and files accessible to the employee yet safeguarded from access

by other members of the household and visitors.

Tax, Liability and Worker’s Compensation.  Centralina’s main office shall remain the 
employee’s primary place of work. It is the employee’s responsibility to determine any income tax 
implications of maintaining a home office area.  Centralina will not provide tax guidance nor 
will Centralina assume any additional tax liabilities related to an employee’s work from home 
arrangement.  Employees are encouraged to consult with a qualified tax professional to discuss 
income tax implications.  

Employees are covered by workers compensation during the performance of official Centralina 
business at the home worksite during work hours. The employee shall report work-related injuries 
immediately to their Supervisor and comply with all Centralina reporting requirements established 
for the purpose of reporting such claims. Centralina is not liable for injuries to third persons, 
including family members, at the home worksite and is not liable for damages to the employee’s 
personal or real property.   

Supervisor Responsibilities. Expectations of supervisors managing employees under work from 
home arrangements include:   

 Monitoring internal and external relationships and mitigating potential impacts from remote
work.

 Utilizing effective communication and reporting systems to measure employee productivity
and performance. 

 Conducting regular reviews with the employee to provide feedback and evaluate the
success of the arrangement.

 Ensuring a consistent approach to team or department management irrespective of
individual employees’ approved work arrangements.

 Ensuring a fair and equitable process in work distribution and assignments. 

SECTION 4c: Compressed Work Arrangement 

Centralina considers a compressed work schedule to be a viable, flexible option when both the 
employee and the job are suited to such an arrangement.  A compressed work arrangement is a 
set change to the employee's established work schedule whereby an employee works the 80 hours 
of a pay period in nine business days; the resulting schedule is 8 x nine-hour days, 1x eight-hour 
day and one day off every pay period. 

66



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 43 

A compressed work schedule may be appropriate for some employees and jobs but not for others. 
It is not an employee right, nor is it an organizational wide benefit and it in no way changes the 
terms and conditions of employment. A compressed work arrangement is subject to ongoing 
review by the employee’s supervisor and may be terminated at any time by either the employee 
or the supervisor (although it is recommended that prior notice be given and a mutual agreeable 
end point established). 

Employees may not combine a Compressed Work with a Work from Home Arrangement. 

Eligibility. Employees who are eligible for a compressed work arrangement shall:  
1. Be a full-time employee.

2. Have completed their initial Introductory Period of employment. 

3. Have job duties suitable for a compressed schedule as defined by Human Resources.

4. Consistently meet or exceed the performance expectations of their position as documented in
past performance evaluations or other established means. 

5. Be able to work independently and productively to meet day-to-day responsibilities within a
compressed schedule. 

6. Demonstrate conscientiousness about work time and productivity, and self-motivation.

7. Be able to communicate effectively with supervisors, co-workers, clients, vendors and
Centralina members.

Request and Approval Process. Employees shall complete a Compressed Work Arrangement 
request form and submit to their Department Director for review. The Department Director can 
either deny the request or forward the request to Human Resources with a recommendation for 
approval.  Human Resources Manager shall approve all requests. Department Directors shall notify 
Human Resources of any denied requests. 

SECTION 5:  Employment of Relatives 

No member of the immediate family of members of the Centralina Board of Delegates may be 
hired by Centralina. This provision shall not apply to an employee's family member who is 
appointed to the Board of Delegates subsequent to the hiring of the employee.  

Centralina prohibits the hiring and employment of relatives in regular positions within the same 
work unit. Further, no employee shall be in position to supervise relatives. For the purposes of 
this policy, relatives include: spouse, parent, child, sibling, in-law, grandparent, grandchild, aunt, 
uncle, cousin, step-relative, or any individual with whom an employee has a close personal 
relationship and where an actual conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest could 
arise.  

67



  
 

  
CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 44  

 

In the event, that two employees become related while working for Centralina, and hold regular 
positions within the same work unit, one employee will have to transfer to another position within 
Centralina. 
 
SECTION 6:  Outside Employment 
 
Employees are not prohibited from other employment. However, the work of Centralina shall have 
precedence over other occupational interests of employees. Outside employment for salary, wages 
or commission or self-employment by an employee must be approved in advance by the 
employee’s Department Director with notification to Human Resources if the work activities are 
related to the employee’s responsibilities at Centralina or if the employer (or client in the case of 
self-employment) is a Centralina partner, vendor or other stakeholder.  Approval or denial will be 
based on possible conflicts of interest, any interference with the employee’s ability to perform 
their duties for Centralina and interference with the employee’s regular working hours.  Activity 
related to outside employment may not take place during the employee’s regular hours nor involve 
the use of Centralina’s resources. 
 
Outside employment will present a conflict of interest if it has any type of negative impact or 
potentially negative impact on Centralina or its operations. Please see the policy on Conflicts of 
Interest.  The department director and/or supervisor shall consult the Executive Director on areas 
of concerns and/or ambiguity.  
 
Any employee who is permitted to hold outside employment is still expected to demonstrate 
satisfactory performance in his or her job responsibilities with Centralina; will be evaluated by the 
same performance standards; and will be subject to Centralina’s scheduling demands, regardless 
of any existing outside work requirements.  
 
If Centralina determines that an employee’s outside work requirements interfere with performance 
or the ability to meet the requirements of Centralina, the employee may be asked to terminate 
the outside employment and be given a specified period of time to complete that separation.  
 
External Activities. Any employee who wishes to serve in an advisory capacity for another 
organization or serve on the board of any organization that may in anyway influence work time or 
be a potential conflict with Centralina mission/goals, must first obtain approval from the Executive 
Director. The Centralia Board Chair shall approve such requests made by the Executive Director.   
Approval will be granted based on possible conflict of interest; the amount of time and type of 
activity involved; any interference with the employee’s regular work schedule; and the benefit to 
the employee and Centralina.  
 
Honoraria. Employees may, with the prior written approval of the Executive Director, receive 
honoraria for lectures and other such activities while on personal days, annual leave, or leave 
without pay. If the employee is acting in any official capacity, honoraria received by an employee 
in connection with activities relating to employment with the Centralina are to be paid to 
Centralina. 
 
SECTION 7:  Political Activity 
 
Every employee has a civic responsibility to support the principle of good government.  Employees 

Formatted: Font: Verdana, 11 pt

68



  
 

  
CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 45  

 

may join or affiliate with civic organizations of a partisan or political nature, may attend political 
meetings, and may advocate the principals or policies of civic or political organization in 
accordance with the constitution and laws of the United States and the State of North Carolina. 
 
However, employees shall not:   

 Engage in any political activity while on duty. 
 Use official Centralina communications (to include social media and the Centralina website) 

to share political comments or views. 
 Be required as a duty of his/her office in any organization or of his/her employment to 

contribute funds to any political purpose.  
 Solicit, or act as a custodian of funds for a political purpose. 
 Solicit a political contribution of other employees. 
 Use any supplies or equipment of Centralina for political purpose. 
 Hold any publicly elected governmental office. 
 Hold any campaign office for or on behalf of any candidate for public office. 

 
Employees should consult their department director, supervisor or Executive Director on any areas 
of concern and/or ambiguity.  
 
SECTION 8:  Performance Evaluation 
 
The performance evaluation process is intended to assist in the development of each employee’s 
full potential and to improve effectiveness and efficiency of Centralina operations. 
 
Department Directors and/or Supervisors shall conduct Annual Performance Evaluations with their 
employees. The Annual Performance Evaluation Cycle is July 1 through June 30 with the following 
key dates: 
 
July 1 – July 31  Evaluation cycle opens 

 Supervisor discusses goal setting 
expectations with staff for the fiscal year 

 Staff drafts goals for feedback from 
supervisor 

August 1   Online evaluation form is opened for staff to 
input their goals  

 Goals are finalized in the evaluation tool 
August 1 – March 31  Ongoing feedback and guidance 

 Mid-year check in to provide feedback and 
check progress on goals 

April 1  Period officially opens for self-evaluations 
May 15  Employee self-evaluations are due 
May 15 – June 15  Evaluation and Employee/Supervisor 

Meetings 
June 30  Evaluation cycle closes 

 
Goal Setting Expectations: 

 All staff shall have three goals in the evaluation system.  

69



  
 

  
CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 46  

 

 Directors shall have four goals, one of which shall relate to the department’s performance 
on workplan tactic implementation and meeting of revenue expectations.  

 Goals should align with the core responsibilities or duties of the position, assigned projects 
or initiatives and specific tactics in the organization’s workplan where applicable.  

 Directors shall provide additional guidance and expectations for goal setting to their staff 
and supervisors as needed.  

 Supervisors are expected to discuss staff draft goals and give feedback or guidance prior to 
goals being entered into the evaluation system.  

 Additional guidance on SMART goal setting and other topics will be available from the Human 
Resources Manager.  

 
Ongoing Supervisor and staff expectations regarding the evaluation process and any additional 
guidance regarding the evaluation tool shall be communicated with staff as needed throughout 
the evaluation process and is also available from the Human Resources Manager.  
 
The 6-Month Performance Evaluation is generally for introductory employees and is linked to the 
employee’s hire date. These evaluations should be conducted at the end of the employee’s first 6-
months. (However, Supervisors may meet with the employee before the end of the 6-month 
probationary period if performance issues arise.) Similarly, these performance evaluations shall 
be documented in writing and placed in the employee’s personnel file. 
 
Supervisors may also meet with employees at other times during the year other than the Annual 
or 6-Month Performance Appraisal Periods if there are performance issues. 
 
Upward movement within the established salary range for an employee is not automatic, but 
rather based on specific performance-related reasons. Employees may be considered for 
advancement within the established salary range based on the quality of their overall work. 
 
SECTION 9:  Dress Code 
 
The staff represents the organization and is expected to be clean, neat and dressed appropriately 
for the job function. Centralina trusts each employee’s good judgment and offers the following 
guidelines concerning appropriate dress in the work environment.  
 

 It is the responsibility of all employees to represent Centralina in a manner that is suitable 
for the public service environment and reflects favorably Centralina’s role. When in doubt, 
employees should seek guidance from their supervisor.  
 

 Centralina adopts a business casual dress code but emphasizes that more formal business 
attire may be more appropriate for certain occasions.  (This policy does NOT require 
employees to purchase casual business attire. Employees who prefer to dress in formal or 
traditional business attire should feel free to do so.) 
 

 Times when more customary business attire would be more appropriate include occasions: 
when you are conducting or attending Centralina meetings, seminars, workshops, etc. 
where you come in contact with other professionals; when clients come to meet you in the 
office; when you go out to meet clients; and when you have to represent Centralina at an 
outside community function.  

70



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 47 

 The employee’s supervisor or  Human Resources will discuss the subject of personal
appearance with the employee on occasions of confusion or oversight.

71



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 48 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

SECTION 1:  Eligibility 

Regular, full-time and part-time employees are eligible for employee benefits. Term employees 
are only eligible for federal or state-mandated employee benefits such as Workers’ Compensation 
and Social Security. Benefits are subject to change at the discretion of Centralina and the Board 
of Delegates.  

SECTION 2:  Group Health Insurance 

Centralina provides group health insurance programs for all regular employees who work thirty 
(30) or more hours per week on a regular basis. Group health and hospitalization insurance
programs are provided as follows for full-time regular employees:

 100% of the medical premium is paid for all full-time regular employees.
 50% of the dental premium is paid for all full-time regular employees.
 50% of the vision premium is paid for all full-time regular employees.

If an employee is not employed full time, he/she must pay the pro rata portion of the premium. 

Dependent coverage is available with employee paying the additional cost. Information concerning 
costs and benefits can be obtained from Human Resources.  

Coverage begins thirty (30) days following the date of hire. 

SECTION 3:  Group Life Insurance 

Centralina provides paid life insurance to its employees in ranges which correspond to two and 
one-half (2.5) times the annual base salary, and accidental death and dismemberment coverage 
of two and one-half (2.5) times that amount.  

Part-time employees can continue to participate in the Group Life Insurance as long as they work 
thirty (30) or more hours per week on a regular basis.   

Coverage begins thirty (30) days following the date of hire. 

SECTION 4:  Supplemental Health and Life Insurance 

Centralina makes available supplemental health and life insurance products through Colonial, 
Washington National and Municipal Benefits in which employees can voluntarily choose to 
participate. These options are employee paid benefits.   

SECTION 5:  Retiree Health Insurance 
An employee who meets the conditions set forth under the provision of the North Carolina Local 
Governmental Employees’ Retirement System may elect to retire and receive all benefits earned 
under the retirement plan.  

Medical Insurance. Centralina will pay a fixed amount towards the cost of an eligible retiree’s 

72



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 49 

monthly premium for retiree medical insurance, which amount will be established by the Executive 
Board or Board of Delegates (the “Base Premium Supplement”).  The Base Premium Supplement 
is Centralina’s contribution to the cost of an eligible retiree’s medical insurance. The Base Premium 
Supplement implemented and effective as of July 1, 2015 is four hundred and twenty-five Dollars 
($425).  

This Base Premium Supplement may be adjusted at the sole discretion of the Executive Board or 
Board of Delegates, and will be administered as follows:  

 If the retiree has less than fifteen (15) years of service with Centralina, as of his/her
retirement date, no Base Premium Supplement will be paid by Centralina;

 If the retiree has completed at least fifteen (15) years of service with Centralina, as of
his/her retirement date, Centralina will pay the Base Premium Supplement; and

 If the retiree has completed more than fifteen (15) years of service with Centralina, as of
his/her retirement date, the Base Premium Supplement will be increased by two (2%)
percent for each full year of completed service in excess of fifteen (15) years with a
maximum benefit of eighty (80%) percent (the resulting amount is the “Enhanced Premium
Supplement”).

Any eligible retiree’s premium in excess of the Base Premium Supplement or, if applicable, the 
Enhanced Premium Supplement, will be the responsibility of the retiree. Beginning, January 1, 
2018, the Retiree is responsible for paying the cost of the medical premium themselves. Centralina 
will then make base payments to the employee upon receipt of the retiree’s payment to the 
recognized insurer.  

Retiree medical coverage will be made available to eligible retirees annually, and if renewed a 
retiree may accept and pay for such coverage until the retiree is eligible for Medicare.  

Retiree Dental and Vision Insurance. The Premium Supplement for the retiree’s dental and 
vision insurance is dependent upon the retiree’s years of service with Centralina. The Premium 
Supplement for Dental and Vision Insurance shall be administered as follows: 

 If the retiree has less than fifteen (15) years of service with Centralina, as of his/her
retirement date, no portion of the premium for dental and vision will be paid by Centralina;

 If the retiree has completed at least fifteen (15) years of service with Centralina, as of
his/her retirement date, Centralina will pay 50% of the active employee coverage amount
for dental and vision;
o For example, if the monthly premium for dental insurance is twenty-eight (28) dollars,

Centralina will pay fourteen (14) dollars, or fifty percent towards an active employee’s
coverage. A retiree with 15 years of service to Centralina will receive 50% of the active
employee’s covered amount or seven (7) dollars.

 If the retiree has completed more than fifteen (15) years of service with Centralina, as of
his/her retirement date, the premium for dental and vision will be increased by two (2%)
percent for each full year of completed service in excess of fifteen (15) years with a

73



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 50 

maximum benefit of eighty (80%) percent. 

Retirees are responsible for paying the remaining portion to satisfy the monthly premiums. 
Retirees must designate a payment schedule for this excess at the beginning of the insurance plan 
year.  Any payments not made by the scheduled date could result in the termination of insurance 
coverage.  

Upon eligibility for Medicare, the retiree can maintain dental and vision coverage by paying the 
full cost of the premium.  

SECTION 6:  North Carolina Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System 
(NCLGERS) 

Each regular employee whose position requires at least 1,000 hours of work in a calendar year 
must participate in the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System. You 
are not considered a contributing member of NCLGERS if your work is considered temporary 
employment. Employees contribute, through payroll deduction, six (6) percent of their income on 
a pre-tax basis to this program. The NCLGERS annually determines the employers’ contribution 
amount, which is paid monthly to the system. This is a defined benefit plan and the employee is 
vested in the plan after five (5) years of contributions. The employee becomes a NCLGERS member 
on their hire date and begins to make contributions with their first pay.  

SECTION 7:  Supplemental Retirement Benefits 

Centralina offers supplemental retirement benefits for regular full-time and part-time employees 
through the NC 401K and NC 457 Prudential plans, which is a defined contribution plan. Centralina 
makes an automatic three (3) percent contribution to each regular employee’s NC 401K 
supplemental retirement fund. 

Part-time employees can continue participation into the NC 401K plan as long as they are actively 
contributing to NCLGERS.   

SECTION 8:  Social Security 

Centralina, to the extent of its lawful authority and power, has extended Social Security benefits 
for its eligible employees and eligible groups and classes of such employees. 

SECTION 9:  Workers’ Compensation 

All employees of Centralina (regular full-time, part-time, and term) are covered by the North 
Carolina Workers’ Compensation Act and are required to report all injuries arising out of and in 
the course of employment to their immediate supervisors at the time of the injury in order that 
appropriate action may be taken at once. 

Responsibility for claiming compensation under the Workers’ Compensation Act is on the injured 
employee. 

74



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 51 

SECTION 10:  Unemployment Compensation 

Centralina employees who are terminated due to a reduction in force or released from service may 
apply for benefits through the North Carolina Division of Employment Security where a 
determination of eligibility will be made. 

SECTION 11:  Disability Insurance 

Disability insurance is provided through the NCLGERS for all employee who have vested in the 
retirement system. Additional disability insurance options are available through supplemental 
insurance programs. 

SECTION 12:  Short-Term Disability 

Centralina’s short-term disability plan is a benefit that provides sixty (60) percent of gross weekly 
earnings for employees who are unable to work due to illness, injury or disability not related to 
work, after an absence of more than seven consecutive calendar days. Benefits begin on the eighth 
day of disability and continue for related absences up to a maximum of twenty-six (26) weeks. 
Employees will not be able to return to work without submitting to Human Resources a note from 
a physician or licensed health care professional authorizing their return. 

A disability claim form must be filed with Human Resources within twenty (20) days after becoming 
disabled.  A short-term disability leave must be certified by a physician's or licensed health care 
professional's statement identifying the nature of the disability and stating or estimating the date 
when the employee will be able to return to work.  If the employee cannot return on that date, 
another statement from a physician or licensed health care professional, with a new return date, 
will be required.  Employees will not be able to return to work without submitting to Human 
Resources a note from a physician or licensed health care professional authorizing the employee's 
return. 

Employees may utilize up to forty (40) percent (or sixteen hours) of leave time per week to 
supplement the sixty (60) percent received through the employer paid short-term disability plan. 

SECTION 13:  Employee Assistance Program 

Centralina recognizes that a variety of personal problems can disrupt an employee’s personal and 
work lives and therefore provides assistance for the health and well-being of its employees through 
the Employee Assistance Program (EAP).  The EAP provides free and confidential access to short-
term professional counseling services to help employees deal with a wide range of personal 
problems that can affect their job performance. Employees may choose to go to the EAP on their 
own or they may be encouraged or mandated to use the EAP by their supervisor, which will not, 
in any way, have a negative impact on employment or employment status.  

Regular full-time and part-time employees and their immediate family members (specifically those 
family members living with the employee and financially dependent on the employee, including 
college students up to 21 years of age) are also eligible for benefits under this policy.  

75



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 52 

SECTION 14:  Flexible Spending Accounts 

The Flexible Spending Account is an IRS sanctioned benefit that allows employees to use pre-tax 
dollars to cover eligible expenses including: un-reimbursed, out-of-pocket medical related 
expenses that are not covered by the insurance plan and dependent/child care expenses. 

Regular full-time and part-time employees that work thirty (30) or more hours per week are 
eligible to participate in the plan.  

Coverage begins thirty (30) days following the date of hire. 

SECTION 15:  North Carolina Local Government Employees' Federal Credit Union 

Membership in the NC Local Government Federal Credit Union is open to all Centralina employees 
and their family members for various loan services, checking and savings accounts.  

SECTION 16:  Professional Development 

The purpose of this policy is to provide employees with professional development opportunities 
that increase their skills and enhance their contributions to the organization. 

All regular full-time and part-time employees are eligible for professional development time to be 
used to attend relevant training programs (workshops, seminars, and conferences, etc.) that will 
assist the employee in performing his/her essential job functions and increase the employee’s 
contribution to the organization, providing the availability of funds. 

Employees must request permission from their immediate supervisor for approval to attend the 
training, for payment of training programs and to receive reimbursement for associated training 
expenses. 

SECTION 17:  Professional Memberships and Dues 

In order to promote active employee participation and membership in professional organizations 
related to the employee’s field of work, Centralina will cover the costs of relevant membership 
dues for local, state and national organizations, providing the availability of funds.  

Employees must request permission from their immediate supervisor for Centralina payment of 
membership dues to professional organizations. 

76



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 53 

TIME OFF AND LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

SECTION 1:   Policy 

The policy of Centralina is to provide vacation, sick, and holiday leave to regular full-time and 
part-time employees. Leave balances accrue with each bi-weekly payroll and will be pro-rated for 
employees that work less than a full-time schedule.   

SECTION 2:   Vacation Leave: Accrual Rates 

Vacation leave with pay shall be earned by all introductory and regular employees at an 
accumulative rate as follows: 

 Each employee with less than three years of service at Centralina shall earn vacation leave
at a rate of 3.69 hours per pay period.

 Each employee with three years but less than eight years of service, shall earn vacation at
the rate of 4.62 hours per pay period.

 Each employee with eight years but less than fifteen years of service, shall earn vacation at
a rate 5.54 hours per pay period.

 Each employee with 15 or more years of service, shall earn vacation at a rate of 6.46 hours
per pay period.

Vacation time shall be charged in units of actual hours taken. Requests for vacation leave should 
be submitted to the supervisor for approval.  

To assist in the recruitment process for new positions, the Executive Director or Department 
Directors may request approval to adjust the accrual rates and/or add time to a new employee’s 
vacation leave bank in recognition of that employee’s prior years of relevant experience.  

SECTION 3:   Vacation Leave: Maximum Accumulation 

Vacation leave may be accumulated up to the following amount of days based on years of 
employment: 

The daily rate of pay for accumulated leave time shall be computed on the basis of a 52-week year 
and 40 hours per week.  

Years of 
Employment 

Days 
Earned Per 
Year 

Limit of 
Accrued 
Maximum Days 

Less than 3 12 24 
Less than 8 15 45 
Less than 15 18 54 
More than 15 21 63 

77



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 54 

In circumstances where new staff members have been granted advanced leave rates, the 
maximum accumulations will be based on days earned per year.  

SECTION 4:   Excess Vacation Leave 

Employees have until the end of the fiscal year (June 30) to use vacation leave that is above the 
maximum number of days allowed per years of employment. Any excess vacation not used by the 
end of each fiscal year, shall be converted to sick leave. Employees will be notified by the finance 
department when they are close to exceeding their limit of accrued days.  

SECTION 5:   Vacation Leave: Manner of Taking 

To schedule vacation time, employees should submit their request to the supervisor for approval. 
Employees must ensure that they have enough accrued leave available to cover the dates 
requested. Vacation leave is earned and should be granted by the supervisor unless there is some 
major work responsibility that will not be met in the employee’s absence.  

Vacation will be paid at the employee’s base rate at the time the leave is taken and shall be 
charged in units of actual hours taken. If a holiday falls during the employee’s vacation, the day 
will be charged to holiday pay, as applicable rather than vacation pay.  

Normally, employees must have vacation accrued before it can be taken. However, the Executive 
Director may, under unusual circumstances, advance an employee vacation (pre-payment of 
wages) or permit the employee to utilize the option of leave without pay.  

SECTION 6:   Vacation Leave: Payment Upon Separation 

Upon separation, an employee shall be paid for unused accrued vacation leave but not to exceed 
the “limit of accrued maximum days”.  

Employees who provide the requested amount of notice (two weeks) will be considered to have 
resigned in good standing and generally will be eligible for rehire. Not providing the requested two 
(2) weeks’ notice will result in the forfeiture of accumulated vacation and sick leave payouts (if
applicable).

SECTION 7:   Sick Leave 

Sick leave with pay may be taken for personal illness, doctor's appointments or hospitalization, 
maternity/paternity related absences and for illness or death of members of the immediate family 
and/or household members. Sick leave taken due to illness or death of immediate family shall not 
exceed five (5) days. Employees must get approval from their supervisor for the use of additional 
days.  

In terms of sick leave due to personal illness, the employee’s supervisor or Human Resources may 
require verification in writing by an attending physician for employees taking sick leave for 
personal illness of three (3) days or more, or where a pattern of use indicates a need to request 
documentation. 

78



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 55 

SECTION 8:   Sick Leave: Accrual Rates and Accumulation 

Employees shall accumulate sick leave time at the rate of one (1) day per completed month of 
service with no limit on the amount that may be accumulated (3.69 hours per pay period). 

Any sick leave not used, shall accrue to the employee's account without limit while he or she is in 
the employ of Centralina; upon retirement the employee shall receive one month of additional 
work credit for each twenty days of unused sick leave reported to the NCLGERS. 

Normally, employees must have sick leave accrued before it can be taken. At the discretion of the 
Executive Director, an employee in unusual circumstances may be advanced sick leave. For non-
exempt employees, upon termination, any deficit in accrued sick leave shall be withheld from the 
employee's final paycheck. 

SECTION 9:   Transfer of Sick Leave from Previous Employer 

Employees whose date of employment at Centralina was subsequent to July 1, 1983 and who were 
previously employed by a local governmental entity in North Carolina may receive credit at 
Centralina for accumulated sick leave, provided verification of that accumulated sick leave is 
received from the entity and that the employee was not reimbursed for these days. This only 
applies to local governmental entities that were the employee’s place of employment immediately 
prior to their employment at Centralina. Up to twenty (20) days may be transferred into the 
employee’s current sick leave accrual bank. Sick leave accumulation over twenty (20) days may 
also be transferred but will be held and recorded for purposes of retirement only. 

SECTION 10:  Sick Leave: Payment upon Separation 

For regular, full-time employees hired prior to January 1, 2018 upon separation, an employee may 
be paid for unused accrued sick leave at the rate of one-third days pay for each day of accumulated 
sick leave, not to exceed a maximum of fifteen (15) days (i.e., 45 days of accrued sick leave). 
This shall be computed at the rate of annual base salary at the date of separation. The daily rate 
of pay shall be computed on the basis of a fifty-two (52) week year, forty (40) hours per week. 
Employees shall not be paid for sick leave accumulated at any other governmental entity and 
transferred to Centralina. 

Regular, full-time employees hired after January 1, 2018 will not be eligible for the above described 
benefit.  

SECTION 11:  Compassionate Leave Transfer 

The purpose of this policy is to provide employees an opportunity to assist fellow employees who 
are unable to work due to their own or immediate family members’ prolonged and catastrophic1 
illness or injury. The immediate family shall include: spouse, parent, child, sibling, in-law, 
grandparent, grandchild spouse and household members. Some prolonged medical conditions 
cause employees to exhaust all available leave and as a result, be placed on leave without pay 
status. This program allows fellow employees to voluntarily donate up to five (5) leave days (per 

79



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 56 

year, per prospective recipient) of their earned sick or vacation leave accrual to help provide 
assistance to employees in need. 

1A prolonged and catastrophic illness or injury is defined as a single life-threatening 
medical condition that requires the employee’s absence from work for a minimum of ten 
(10) cumulative workdays.

This program shall be administered by Centralina’s Finance Department with approval from the 
Executive Director. 

General Guidelines 
1. An employee may not intimidate, threaten, coerce, or attempt to intimidate, threaten or coerce

any other employee for the purpose of interfering with any right which such employee may
have with respect to donating, receiving, or using leave under this program. Such action shall
be grounds for disciplinary action up to and including termination on the basis of personal
conduct.

2. Employees must have completed one (1) full year of employment with Centralina to be eligible
to receive compassionate leave.

3. The employee must have exhausted all available leave before using donated leave.

4. Medical certification of the prolonged catastrophic illness or injury from the primary attending
physician must be provided to the Human Resources Manger prior to receiving donated leave.

5. The birth of a child does not qualify as a prolonged catastrophic illness or injury and should
be addressed by the Short-Term Disability policy.

6. This program does not apply to employees on worker’s compensation leave.

Recipient Guidelines 
1. Recipients may confidentially request compassionate leave donations for a prolonged and

catastrophic illness or injury requiring an extended treatment and/or recovery period for the
employee or immediate family member. Requests for donated leave must be made in writing
to the Executive Director.

2. Employees may also recognize the need to help a colleague and voluntarily choose to donate
leave to assist the employee.

3. The salary of any employee receiving compassionate leave shall be unaffected by the salary or
salaries of employees who donated their accumulated leave.

4. All donated leave will be credited to the recipient’s sick leave account.

5. No other compensable benefits are available to any employee receiving a donation of leave
time. Compensable benefits include, but are not limited to: holiday pay, workers compensation,
vacation, or accumulated sick leave.

80



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 57 

Donor Guidelines 
1. Any donation must be initiated by a written request from the donor to the Finance Director and

must have final approval by the Executive Director.  The donation is non-reversible and may
be anonymous to the recipient if so requested by the donor.

SECTION 12:  Bereavement Leave 

Sick leave benefits may be used when time off is needed due to a death in the employee’s 
immediate family. Sick leave taken due to death of immediate family shall not exceed five (5) 
days. Employees must get approval from their supervisor for the use of additional days.  

SECTION 13:  Medical Leave of Absence (Non-FMLA Leave) 

An employee desiring to take a leave of absence from work for reasons caused by a medical 
condition shall apply in writing for approval by their immediate supervisor. The employee must 
state the nature of the condition and anticipated dates and duration of the requested leave and 
the types of leave requested. The employee may request leave for a period of up to three (3) 
months total. The employee is obligated to return to duty by the end of the time determined 
appropriate. If an employee finds that they will not return to work, at that time, they shall request 
an extension from their immediate supervisor. Failure to report at the expiration of a leave of 
absence unless an extension has been requested and approved shall be considered a resignation. 

The employee may elect to use accumulated vacation leave (1) before going on sick leave; (2) 
after accumulated sick leave has been exhausted, and/or (3) after the temporary disability has 
ended.  If an employee wishes to retain all accumulated sick leave and vacation leave, leave 
without pay may be requested for the entire period. 

Employees who are in a paid status during a period of Medical Leave of Absence (Non-FMLA Leave) 
shall continue to accrue paid leaves of absences (sick and vacation leave). If the employee is in a 
part-time paid status the leave will be pro-rated.  

To the extent allowed by the insurance contract and applicable laws, Centralina will continue to 
provide medical, dental and vision insurance coverage for employees on an approved Medical 
Leave of Absence (Non-FMLA Leave). During this time, the employee will be responsible for paying 
his or her portion of the monthly premium(s) through payroll deduction (when the employee is on 
paid status) or by making arrangements with Centralina’s finance department.  

SECTION 14:  Military Leave 

Eligibility for military leave of absence shall be governed by and subject to the limitations and 
restrictions set forth in USERRA and other applicable federal and state laws. 

Employees must give advance notice to their supervisor of their military leave, unless impossible, 
impracticable or because of military necessity. 

An employee who is absent from work as a result of service in any of the United States uniformed 
services, will continue to receive pay for the first ten days of any such absence in a calendar 

81



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 58 

year.  Thereafter, further absence shall be without pay, although the employee may, but is not 
required to, apply accumulated vacation leave towards the further absence.  

During a military leave of absence, an employee’s length of service accumulates, and benefits 
will continue as required by applicable law. Provided an employee’s absence does not exceed 
applicable statutory limitations, employees on military leave will retain reemployment rights 
in accordance with applicable Federal and State laws. 

SECTION 15:  School Visitation Leave 

Employees who are parents, guardians or acting in place of the parents of a school-aged child are 
allowed four hours of unpaid leave per calendar year, at a mutually agreed upon time, to attend 
or otherwise be involved at that child’s school. Requests for School Leave must be made in writing 
at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the leave and a verification from the school that you 
attended or were otherwise involved at the school during the time of the leave. When possible and 
with supervisory approval, non-exempt employees may be allowed to recover expended time by 
restructuring their hours within the same workweek that the School Leave was used, in order to 
comply with the Fair Labor Standards Act.  

SECTION 16:  Jury Duty and Civil Leave 

An employee called upon for jury duty shall receive leave with pay for up to ten (10) days to 
perform such duty.  Other civil leave as may be required from time to time may be granted upon 
the approval of the Executive Director. A copy of the summons or subpoena shall be attached to 
the bi-weekly work report. In no case, however, will employees be granted civil leave to appear 
at any trial or hearing where the employee is charged with a violation of criminal or motor vehicular 
law. 

SECTION 17:  Educational Leave with Pay 

Leave at full pay during regular working hours may be granted to an employee with the prior 
approval of the Executive Director or supervisor, to permit an employee to take courses of study 
which will better equip the employee to perform assigned duties. Only one (1) course may be 
taken at a time. 

SECTION 18:  Leave without Pay 

A regular full-time or part-time employee may be granted a leave of absence without pay for a 
period of up to one (1) month by the Executive Director.  The leave shall be used for reasons 
including: continuation of education, special work that will permit Centralina to benefit by the 
experience gained or the work performed, or for other reasons deemed justified by the Executive 
Director.  

The employee shall apply in writing to his/her supervisor for leave.  The employee is obligated to 
return to duty within or at the end of the time determined appropriate by the Executive Director. 
Upon returning to duty after being on leave without pay, the employee shall be entitled to return 
to the same position held at the time leave was granted or to one of like classification, seniority, 
and pay.  If the employee decides not to return to work, the supervisor shall be notified 

82



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 59 

immediately. Failure to report at the expiration of a leave of absence, unless an extension has 
been requested, shall be considered a resignation. The following factors will be considered in Leave 
Requests: 1) reason for leave; 2) performance record; 3) business conditions; 4) tenure.  

SECTION 19:  Continuation of Fringe Benefits 

Centralina will continue contributions on behalf of employees taking paid vacation, sick, civil, 
military or education leave for life insurance, disability, group health and retirement coverage.  

Those employees on leave without pay may lose these benefits for the period that they are out 
but may be eligible for medical coverage through COBRA (medical, dental and vision). 

SECTION 20:  Holidays 

The following days are observed as holidays with pay: 

With the exception of the Christmas Holiday, when a holiday below falls on Saturday, Friday shall 
be observed as the holiday; when the holiday below falls on Sunday, Monday shall be observed as 
the holiday. 
New Year's Day 
Martin Luther King's Birthday 
Memorial Day 
Independence Day 
Labor Day 
Veteran's Day 
Thanksgiving Day and day after 
Christmas - when Christmas falls on:  

 Saturday or Sunday, take Friday and Monday;
 Monday, take Monday and Tuesday;
 Tuesday, take Monday, Tuesday, and Wednesday;
 Wednesday, take Tuesday, Wednesday, and Thursday;
 Thursday, take Wednesday, Thursday, and Friday;
 Friday, take Thursday and Friday.

Employees who are authorized or required to work one of the holidays listed above shall be granted 
leave credit commensurate with the time worked up to a maximum of eight hours per holiday. 
Such work must be approved in advance by the supervisor and Executive Director.  

Employees will also receive one floating holiday with pay during the year to use at their discretion. 

The earned holiday hours will be pro-rated for part-time employees according to their part-time 
schedule.  

83



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 60 

UNSATISFACTORY JOB PERFORMANCE AND 
FAILURE IN PERSONAL CONDUCT 

SECTION 1:   Unsatisfactory Performance 

Unsatisfactory Job Performance Defined. Unsatisfactory job performance includes any aspects 
of the employee’s job which are not performed as required to meet the standards set by the 
organization and/or the department.  

Examples of unsatisfactory job performance include, but are not limited to the following: 
 Inefficiency, negligence or incompetence in the performance of duties.
 Careless, negligent or improper use of Centralina property or equipment.
 Discourteous treatment of the public or other employees.
 Harassment of employees because of race, color, and religious creed, gender, age, sexual

orientation, national origin, genetic predisposition, or any other classification protected by
applicable discrimination laws.

 Absence without approved leave.
 Habitual pattern of failure to report for duty at the assigned time and place.
 Failure to meet work standards over a period of time.

Communication and Warning Procedures. An employee whose work is unsatisfactory over a 
period of time shall be notified by the Department Director in what way the employee's work is 
deficient and what must be done if the work is to be satisfactory. Based on circumstances, an 
employee who is suspended, demoted, dismissed, or otherwise disciplined for unsatisfactory 
performance of duties shall generally receive at least three (3) warnings before disciplinary action 
is taken.  First, one or more oral warnings should be issued by the employee's Department 
Director; second, an oral warning with a follow-up letter to the employee which sets forth the 
points covered in their discussion should be issued by the Department Director; and third, a written 
warning should be issued by the Department Director serving notice upon the employee that 
corrective action must be taken immediately in order to avoid disciplinary actions. The Department 
Director must record the dates of their discussion with the employee, the performance of 
deficiencies discussed and the corrective actions recommended and must file the information in 
the employee's personnel folder. 

Notwithstanding, Centralina retains the right to suspend, demote, dismiss, or otherwise discipline 
an employee at any time for any lawful reason.  

SECTION 2:   Failure in Personal Conduct 

An employee may be suspended, demoted, dismissed, or otherwise disciplined for causes relating 
to personal conduct detrimental to Council service (1) in order to avoid undue disruption of work, 
(2) to protect the safety of persons or property, or (3) for other serious reasons.

The following causes relating to failure in personal conduct are representative of those considered 
to be adequate grounds for suspension, demotion or dismissal: 

 Fraud in securing appointment.
 Conviction of a felony or of a misdemeanor which would adversely affect performance of

84



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 61 

duties, or entry of a plea of "no contest" to either. 
 Misappropriation of Council funds or property.
 Falsification of Council records for personal profit or to grant special privileges.
 Reporting to work under the influence of alcohol or narcotic drugs or partaking of such

things while on duty or while on public property, except that prescribed medication may be
taken within the limits set by a physician so long as medically necessary.

Notwithstanding, Centralina retains the right to suspend, demote, dismiss, or otherwise discipline 
an employee at any time for any lawful reason. 

SECTION 3:   Disciplinary Actions 

A regular employee may be placed on disciplinary suspension, demoted, dismissed, or otherwise 
disciplined for unsatisfactory job performance or failure in personal conduct.  

In the case of unsatisfactory job performance, the Department Director should normally have 
followed the procedure outlined above on communications and warning. The employee should 
normally be allowed at least ten (10) workdays to respond to the charges before any determination 
is made by the Department Director concerning a suspension or a demotion or a determination is 
made by the Executive Director concerning dismissal. 

In the case of failure in personal conduct, the employee shall be given a statement of the charges, 
will be allowed to respond in writing, and be given a prompt written statement of the decision of 
the Department Director, and the Executive Director. These steps shall normally be taken before 
the disciplinary action except in cases of suspensions where a written statement will be sent to 
the employee by certified mail or email. 

All cases of disciplinary suspension, demotion or dismissal must be approved by the Executive 
Director prior to giving final notice to the employee. The Human Resources designee shall provide 
the employee with a written notice including the recommended effective date, reasons for the 
action, and appeal rights available to the employee. 

Disciplinary Suspension. An employee who is suspended for disciplinary reasons shall be 
relieved temporarily of all duties and responsibilities and shall receive no compensation for the 
period of suspension. 

Immediate Disciplinary Suspension. An employee may be suspended without prior notice by 
the Department Director for causes related to personal conduct in order to avoid undue disruption 
of work, to protect the safety of persons or property, or for other serious reasons. When a 
Department Director suspends an employee he/she shall tell the employee to leave Council 
premises at once and remain away until further notice.  The Department Director shall notify the 
Executive Director immediately. Upon written notification, an employee shall receive no 
compensation for the period of suspension. 

A written summary giving the circumstances and facts leading to the suspension shall be prepared; 
one copy shall be delivered to the employee by certified mail or email, and one copy shall be filed 
in the employee's personnel folder. 

85



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 62 

Non-Disciplinary Suspension. During the investigation, hearing or trial of an employee on any 
criminal charge or during the investigation related to alleged detrimental personal conduct, or 
during the course of any civil action involving an employee, when suspension would, in the opinion 
of the Department Director or Human Resources, be in the best interest of the organization, the 
Department Director may recommend suspension of the employee for part or all of the proceedings 
as a non-disciplinary action. In such cases, the employee may be: 

1. Temporarily relieved of all duties and responsibilities and placed on paid or unpaid leave for
the duration of the suspension, or

2. Assigned new duties and responsibilities and allowed to receive such compensation as is in
keeping with the new duties and responsibilities.

If the employee is reinstated following the suspension, such employee shall not lose any benefits, 
other than lost pay, to which otherwise the employee would have been entitled had the suspension 
not occurred. If the employee is terminated following suspension, the employee shall not be 
eligible for any pay from the date of suspension; provided, however, all other benefits with the 
exception of accrued annual leave and sick leave shall be maintained during the period of 
suspension. 

Dismissal. Before a regular employee may be dismissed on the basis of unsatisfactory job 
performance or failure in personal conduct, the following shall occur: 

1. The Executive Director may dismiss an employee with consultation from the Department
Director.

2. A pre-dismissal conference shall normally be held between management representative(s) and
the employee. No attorneys or other such representatives for either party shall be present at
this conference; a witness or security personnel may be present if management deems it
necessary.  The management representative shall present the employee with the specific
reasons for the proposed dismissal and a brief summary of the information which management
believes supports the proposed dismissal. The employee shall have a right to respond to that
notice of proposed dismissal in the conference.

3. If, at the end of the pre-dismissal conference, the Executive Director determines that dismissal
is justified, he/she may present the employee with a letter of dismissal. However, the
management representative may elect to defer the dismissal based on information presented
by the employee, and reconsider the proposed dismissal. If, following such reconsideration,
the decision is to dismiss, then no further pre-dismissal conference is required.

4. The employee must be given written notice of the dismissal.  The written notice must include
specific reasons for the dismissal and the employee's right of appeal.

5. Upon dismissal on the basis of job performance, an employee may be given up to two (2)
weeks’ notice. A payment of up to two (2) weeks salary may be made in lieu of notice.

86



CENTRALINA REGIONAL COUNCIL | 63 

SECTION 4:   Employee Appeal 

A regular employee wishing to appeal a demotion, suspension, dismissal, or other discipline may 
present the matter in accordance with the provisions of the complaint procedure prescribed in this 
Manual. 

87



Item 5 

88



Template Revised August 2023 

Executive Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

Board Meeting 
Date: 

April 12, 2023 
Agenda Item 
Type: 

Committee 
work 
sessions: 

Regular: X 

Submitting Person: Luke Lowry 
Presentation 
Time: 

5min 

Presenter at 
Meeting: N/A 

Phone Number: 704-385-7556

Email: llowry@centralina.org 

Alternate Contact: Narissa Claiborne 
Phone Number: 717-434-2284

Email: nknight@centralina.org 
Submitting 
Department: 

Department 
Head Approval: 

Title of documents as shown in the Agenda:  Centralina Spotlight: Planning – Updates to 
plans, codes for 160D compliance. 

Description of Agenda Item: (This wording will be used to summarize the item on the agenda cover 
page.) 

Centralina staff will provide a short portrait of our work in the region related to the numerous 
land use plan updates and municipal code updates that were performed after the State’s 
adoption of Chapter 160D. 

Background & Basis of Recommendations: 

This will be a standing item on all Centralina Board meetings in 2023. The purpose is to share a 
success story of Centralina’s work, regional collaboration or local innovation from a member 
government.  

Requested Action / Recommendation: 

Receive as information. 

Time Sensitivity: 
(none or explain) None 

Budget Impact: 
(none or explain) None 

Attachments: 
(none or list) 

 Land Use Planning Sales Sheet; Success Story #1 (January 6, 2022); 
Success Story #2 (September 9th, 2022) 

89



704-372-2416 | info@centralina.org | 10735 David Taylor Drive, Suite 250, Charlotte, NC 28262 | www.centralina.org

Envision Future 
Community 
Growth Through 
Land Use Planning

A comprehensive land use plan captures the vision, values and goals for a community’s future. 

Land use plans rely heavily on community input to identify these goals and create strategies for 

achieving a shared vision. They also include context on the history and existing conditions of the 

community and a land use map to help guide future development. 

Small Area Planning: Small area 

plans identify issues and opportunities 
and craft a shared vision for a specific 
neighborhood or district. Small area 
plans incorporate strategies, policies 
and action items specific to the 

neighborhood and its stakeholders.  

Corridor Planning: Corridor plans 
develop an integrated transportation 
and land use planning framework for 

a specific street or street network. 
Corridor plans help improve 
walkability, accessibility and safety 
and align the development of 
economic opportunity with physical 

infrastructure.

In 2019, the North Carolina General Assembly updated state planning regulations for local 

jurisdictions, commonly referred to as “Chapter 160D requirements.” Contained within these 

revisions, all communities wishing to enforce zoning regulations must have an adopted land use 

plan that anticipates community growth and change. Centralina works with counties and 

municipalities to align land use plans with Chapter 160D requirements and reflect a community's 

vision for the future.

WHAT IS A LAND USE PLAN? 

Land use planning provides communities with an 

opportunity to integrate land use practice with other 

local priorities such as transportation connectivity, parks 

and recreation, infrastructure investment and economic 

development. Coordinated planning helps communities 

create vibrant places that meet the needs of current and 

future residents. Land use planning efforts can also 

illuminate areas where more focused efforts may be 

necessary. Planning for the growth and development of 

specific neighborhoods, districts and corridors can help 

communities enhance livability, mobility and economic 

vitality at a variety of scales.

WHY IS LAND USE PLANNING IMPORTANT? 

90



Centralina has experience supporting local governments with land use planning efforts and 

can assist with the creation or updates of land use, small area and corridor plans. Our land 

use planning and placemaking experts can provide technical assistance to your community 

on diverse aspects of the planning process, including: 

HOW CAN CENTRALINA HELP? 

RECENT PLANNING PROJECTS

R E A D Y  F O R  A  Q U O T E ?
Reach out to Senior Director, Michelle Nance, at (704) 348-2709 or 

mnance@centralina.org to discuss how we can help. 

Land Use Planning – Town of Dallas, Town of Stallings, Town of Stanley, Town of Wingate, 
Anson County, Stanly County

Code Updates – City of Cherryville, Town of McAdenville, Town of Stallings, Town of Stanley, 
Town of Troutman, Town of Wingate

Engagement – Town of Dallas, Village of Marvin, CONNECT Beyond Regional Transit Plan, 
Charlotte Regional TPO/Gaston-Cleveland-Lincoln MPO

GIS Projects – City of Albemarle, City of Statesville, Town of Wingate, Anson County, CDC 
Vaccination Outreach, Metrolina CommunityViz Initiative 2015, 2019

Graphic Design – Gaston-Cleveland-Lincoln MPO Metropolitan Transportation Plan 

Public Engagement: 
By seeking a range of voices through diverse engagement methods, Centralina helps local 
leaders better understand current issues and community aspirations for the future. 
Engagement also creates early support for plan recommendations. Centralina can design a 
process that works best for your community, combining in-person, virtual and hybrid public 
workshops, forums, focus groups, online surveys and social media.

Plan Development: 
Centralina will synthesize existing data and plans with public opinion and best practices to 
create strategies that encourage well-planned, livable communities. Our efforts on 
planning initiatives like CONNECT Our Future and the CONNECT Beyond regional transit 
plan help communities consider their priorities in a regional context while maintaining a 
strong sense of place for each community.

Data Analysis & Maps: 
Centralina has experience using geospatial analysis to support local government data 
needs. By combining local, state and federal databases with newly created maps and the 
wealth of data collected through regional planning projects, Centralina ensures 
communities have the information needed to make informed decisions.

Graphic Design: 
Centralina creates engaging maps, charts, branding packages and other visual elements 
that elevate public-facing documents and enhance storytelling. Our graphic design experts 
help communities craft compelling, well-designed documents that go beyond data sharing 
to “tell the story” tied to local quality of life opportunities and challenges, translating 
planning efforts and community values into a recognizable visual identity. 

91



Item 6 

92



Executive Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 
Board Meeting 
Date: April 12, 2023 Agenda Item 

Type:  Consent: Regular: X 

Submitting Person: Denise Strosser Presentation 
Time: 10 minutes 

Presenter at 
Meeting: Denise Strosser 

Phone Number: 704-348-2704
Email: dstrosser@centralina.org 

Alternate Contact: Geraldine Gardner 
Phone Number: 704-351-7130
Email: ggardner@centralina.org 

Submitting 
Department: 

Finance Department 
Head Approval: D. Strosser

Title of documents as shown in the Agenda: Audit Firm Approval 
Description of Agenda Item: (This wording will be used to summarize the item on the agenda cover 
page.) 
The Executive Board will review and approve the Finance Committee’s recommendation 
to award the next multi-year audit contract to Cherry Bekaert and to authorize the 
Executive Director to enter into a contract with said firm. 

Background & Basis of Recommendations: 

The Government Finance Officers Association recommends Government entities enter into a  
multi-year contract up to five years in duration with an audit firm. At the end of the contract term, 
the Government entity should undertake a full-scale competitive process for audit service  
in compliance with Procurement § 200.509 Audit Selection.  

Centralina ended its second 3-year term with Cherry Bekaert with the fiscal year 2022 audit. In 
compliance with procurement § 200.509 Audit Selection, we issued an audit RFP on February  
27, 2023, which closed March 24, 2023.  

Centralina posted the RFP on its website and on the Government Finance Officers 
Association website.  Additionally, the Finance Director sent a link of the RFP to 13 audit firms via 
direct email or website contact information.  We received 2 proposals for audit services from 
Cherry Bekaert and Forvis (a new company formed by the recent merger between Dixon Hughes 
Goodman and Baird Kurts Dickson). 

The full description of the review process, RFP scoring and key points to substantiate the 
recommendation are outlined in the Audit Contract Award Review Summary.  Both RFP 
responses are also provided in your package. 

Requested Action / Recommendation: 
Motion to approve Finance Committee's recommendation of Cherry Bekaert as Centralina's  
auditor and to authorize the Executive Director to enter into a contract with said firm for a four-
year term in an amount not to exceed $182,000 plus any additional single audit fees as  applicable 
annually.  
Time Sensitivity: 
(none or explain) N/A 



Budget Impact: 
(none or explain) N/A 

Attachments: 
(none or list) 

1. Audit RFP post: https://centralina.org/resources/rfq-rfp/rfp-audit-
services/

2. Audit Contract Award Review Summary
3. Final Score Cord
4. Audit RFP submitted – Cherry Bekaert
5. d. Audit RFP submitted - Forvi

https://centralina.org/resources/rfq-rfp/rfp-audit-services/


2023 Audit RFP 
Audit Firm Recommendation 

Based on the results of staff scoring and debrief we recommend to the Finance Committee that 
Cherry Bekaert to be awarded the contract.   

KEY POINTS 

• Unparalleled North Carolina Local Government Experience:
o The state of NC has some of the strictest statues and monitoring of public sectors of

all the states.  Therefore, a firm having a strong presence in NC is beneficial to
Centralina.

o Cherry Bekaert (CB) has a strong presence in public sector of NC.  They work with
and do presentations for NC Government Finance Officers Association (NCGFOA)
which works hand in hand with The NC League of Municipalities, the NC Department
of State Treasurer and UNC School of Government.

o CB also audits 4 of our members and 2 other COGs in North Carolina.  Having the
same auditor as the county is beneficial to the county since we reconcile DHHS funds
passed through to them and provide to CB for the county audit.

o We feel that Forvis may be more experienced nationally and in other states such as
Texas and Virginia but is limited in NC.

o Forvis’s clientele is mostly school districts and small towns in NC.
o In comparing the submitted audit reports from NC Department of State Treasurer,

CB audited twice many organizations as Forvis.
o Subsequent to RFP reviews, conversation with Forvis explained that one of the goals

of the merger with the 2 firms is to use BDK’s public sector expertise to break into
the public sector market on NC.

• Demonstrated Expertise & Approach to Working with Centralina:
o CB staff serve as an expert trainer/presenter for training programs in NC for GASB

and financial reporting that staff attend for audit and reporting updates.
o CB proposal had a more comprehensive approach to risk assessment as a

fundamental pillar in the audit.  They also discussed how they would ensure
Centralina staff are updated on the latest changes to Government Accounting
Auditing Principals and Uniform Guidance.

o Forvis proposal did not present the same level of in-depth approach to supporting
the Centralina team.

95



• Accessible Team:
o Location of the audit team is also important to us, CB’s team is located here in

Charlotte whereas the Forvis team would be spread throughout several states.
o Subsequent to RFP reviews, Forvis also explained there is a office here in NC with

audit staff to perform the work however the public sector expertise is in other state,
but will be available and have in person meeting as needed.

o Concern noted by a Finance Committee member was that Cherry Bekaert utilizes
contract work outside the US.  Per conversation with CB, the work performed outside
the US is low-risk work such as file setup, trial balance import and coding.  Less than
10% of work is done by the contractor.  If a necessary, CB director will request to
move all work in US.

• Price:
o CB offer was higher overall, but they offered a 45% discount that makes the fee

lower.
o The Finance Director reached out to Forvis for a best and final offer amount.
o Forvis also has a Financial Reporting system that is cloud based and charges $5,500

to use and increases annually.  Per discussion with Forvis, the Financial Reporting
system is not required to be utilized by all clients. The Finance Director doesn’t
believe the fee is necessary for the level of financial statements we produce and our
organizational size.

Reference Checks Underway 

96



FY2023 – 2025 Audit RFP Review
RFP Summary 

enter your score in red blocks Reviewer 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL 1 2 3 4 5 TOTAL

Prior Year Audit Experience - 10 points 7 7 8 9 9 40 6 8 7 6 7 34

10 10 8 8 8 44 6 7 6 8 8 35

TOTAL SECTION 1 17 17 16 17 17 84 12 15 13 14 15 69

Section 2 – Audit Approach – 25 Points
Commitment to timelines - 10 ponts

8 8 8 9 8 41 10 9 8 9 8 44

Guidance and Assistance - 10 points

8 9 8 8 8 41 8 8 7 7 7 37

Location and Technology - 5 points

ForvisCherry Bekaert

Consider the firm's commitment to expediting the audit and meeting the audit 
time schedule.  Consider timing of kick off meeting, interim field work, yearend 
work and Board meeting presentation.

Consider the level of guidance and assistance the firm will offer with new 
auditing standards and financial report presentation, make recommendations 
for improvements and streamlining procedures.

Consider the firm's experience and involvement with the public sectors in NC.  
Consider the size and origin of their clients (for example: do they audit other 
COG's)

Consider if the firm is involved in government organizations (GOOA, AICPA, 
NCLM)  Does the firm help instruct seminars and training programs related to 
new government auditing standards

Quality Control and Commitment to Governmental Accounting 
and Auditing - 10 points

Section 1 – Firm Information / Experience and 
Qualifications - 20 Points

97



5 4 4 4 4 21 5 5 3 4 3 20

TOTAL SECTION 2 21 21 24 21 20 103 23 22 22 20 18 101

Is the firm available to meet the needs of Centralia - 10 points
10 9 8 9 9 45 6 7 7 7 7 34

Qualifications of staff to be assigned to the audit - 10 points
8 8 7 9 8 40 8 8 7 7 7 37

TOTAL SECTION 3 18 17 15 18 17 85 14 15 14 14 14 71

Section 4 – Professional Fees Cost – 20 Points
10 10 9 9 9 47 5 6 8 8 6 33

8 9 9 9 10 45 7 6 6 5 5 29

TOTAL SECTION 4 18 19 18 18 19 92 12 12 14 13 11 62

Section 5 – Responsiveness – 10 Points
10 10 5 9 10 44 8 8 5 8 7 36

TOTAL SECTION 5 10 10 5 9 10 44 8 8 5 8 7 36

TOTAL SCORE 84 84 78 83 83 408 69 72 68 69 65 339

Consider the firms responsiveness to request and deliverables. - 10 points

Consider if the firm has an office in the area or if any work will be in person, 
technology and/or systems used to communicate and receive files and audit 
data.

Section 3 – Firm Availability and Key Personnel – 
20 Points

Consider if the size of the firm indicates adequate staffing potential, if they 
have an office in the Charlotte area, or if they use contractors outside the US

Consider the number and of level of staff assigned,  staff experience related to 
Centralina, involvement with accounting and government organizations, 
references to continuing education and licenses. 

Consider the hours and rate per level proposed, discounts offered and 
references to additional fees  - 10 points

Consider if the fee appears in line with prior year audit cost ($53,000 + $1500 
per single audit), if the annual increases are reasonable - 10 points

98



Proposal for Audit Services 

Centralina Regional Council 

March 14, 2023 

Daniel T. Gougherty, CPA 
Director, Cherry Bekaert LLP 

Director, Cherry Bekaert Advisory LLC 

P  704.377.1678 
E  dgougherty@cbh.com 

1111 Metropolitan Ave Ste 900, Charlotte, NC 28204 
cbh.com

99



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

Contents 

Section 1: RFP Checklist  

Section 2: Cover Letter 

Section 3: Firm Qualifications, Experience and References ...................................................................... 1 

Government Auditing Experience................................................................................................................... 1 
Thought Leadership ....................................................................................................................................... 2 
Government Audit Clients .............................................................................................................................. 3 
Government Advisory Services ...................................................................................................................... 5 
Relevant Background of Assignees ............................................................................................................... 6 
Peer Review ................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Attachment B –References Sheet ................................................................................................................. 9 

Section 4: Audit Approach ........................................................................................................................... 10 

Financial Audit Approach ............................................................................................................................. 10 
Engagement Team Information & Timeline .................................................................................................. 17 

Section 5: Proposed Pricing ........................................................................................................................ 20 

Section 6: Appendix Administrative Information ...................................................................................... 22 

Attachment D – Location of Workers Utilized by Respondent ..................................................................... 22 
Attachment E - Proof of Liability Insurance with its Limits ........................................................................... 23 
Attachment F - Certification of Financial Conditions .................................................................................... 25 

Appendix A. Team Biographies ................................................................................................................... 26 

100



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

Section 1: RFP Checklist 

Complete and submit the RFP Checklist available in Attachment A of this RFP. (Note: Respondent may 
recreate Attachment A so long as the content is consistent) 

101



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

Section 2: Cover Letter 

Provide a cover letter not exceeding two (2) pages, which is signed by an officer of the firm who is responsible 
for committing the firm’s resources. The cover letter should provide the following: - Respondent’s name, 
primary contact name, business address, phone number, fax number and email address; - Name and title of 
the individual with responsibility for the response and who will receive correspondence regarding this RFP; - 
Such other information as the Respondent deems appropriate. 

Denise Strosser, Director of Finance 
Centralina Regional Council 
10735 David Taylor Drive, Suite 250 
Charlotte, NC 28262 
Dear Ms. Strosser: 

Cherry Bekaert LLP (“Cherry Bekaert” or the “Firm”) thanks you for the opportunity to submit our proposal to 
serve Centralina Regional Council ("Centralina"). It would be our pleasure to continue our service to Centralina with 
quality-focused audit services delivered by one of the largest government audit firms in North Carolina. We bring a 
deep understanding of Centralina's needs through service to many of your peers, as well as local and Firm-wide 
resources to best serve you.  

Since 2018, we have served nearly 100 public sector entities across North Carolina, providing a wide range of 
attestation and advisory services (e.g., financial statement and compliance audits, risk assessments, internal auditing, 
operational audits, agreed upon procedures, indirect cost plans, internal control reviews, comfort letters, and strategic 
management services). Our service to the public sector throughout the State means that many of our auditors and 
advisory consultants serve multiple public sector clients. We regularly help North Carolina public sector clients: 

 Implement new Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statements and maintain compliance
with new/changing guidance.

 Ensure on-time and compliant report completion by incorporating robust pre-planning, significant interim
work, technology solutions and proven government auditing procedures, making our audit process seamless and
easy-to-navigate.

 Assess regulatory changes through year-round discussion, offering expertise and sharing lessons learned
through compelling thought leadership and custom Continuing Professional Education (“CPE”) offerings, such as
our Government Benchmarking Survey and Annual Government Seminar.

 Improve ease of use through comprehensive service plans, remote auditing, integrated IT/technology specialists
and direct access/knowledge of systems.

 Meet Government Finance Officers Association (“GFOA”) certificate program award criteria through high-
quality Annual Comprehensive Financial Reports.

Commitment to Centralina 

We are fully committed to developing a trusted, mutually beneficial relationship with Centralina. When you work with 
us, you will receive committed support from a Firm who invests the time to understand you and deliver value added 
audit and attestation services. We are committed to being a trusted advisor and your “go to” for questions and 
concerns as they arise. Our client base and references demonstrate our long history of service and timeliness in 
meeting or exceeding client expectations. 

Depth of Local & Industry Resources You Deserve 

Centralina will have access to all of the resources of one of the largest CPA firms in the United States, while being 
served by a local team based in our Charlotte and Raleigh offices (”Mid-Carolina practice”). Our team offers an 
unmatched depth of practical knowledge in the effective application of current standards. This includes the GASB, U.S. 
General Accounting Office’s Government Auditing Standards, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, 

102



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform 
Guidance”) and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. 

Our audit programs and processes are tailored specifically to your needs, streamlined through years of experience 
with similar governments. Our approach is highly automated and focused on proper planning With extensive 
experience serving counties, cities, towns and authorities throughout the state of North Carolina, we offer a critical 
mass of government experienced auditors and advisors and our Client Promise to build a mutually-beneficial 
relationship. 

Conclusion 

This proposal provides detail about our approach and the team committed to serve you, but more importantly, it 
illustrates the unique ways in which Centralina will benefit from working with Cherry Bekaert. With your engagement 
team based in our Mid-Carolina practice to serve you, paired with the deep bench strength of dedicated industry 
resources, we trust you will find Cherry Bekaert is your guide forward. 

Thank you again for this opportunity. If you have questions about this proposal or require additional information, please 
feel free to contact me directly at the contact information provided below. 

Sincerely, 

Cherry Bekaert 

Daniel T. Gougherty, CPA 
Director, Cherry Bekaert LLP 
Director, Cherry Bekaert Advisory LLC 
P: 704.377.1678 
F: 704.377.6063 
E: dgougherty@cbh.com  

1111 Metropolitan Avenue | Suite 900, Charlotte, NC 28204 

Please Note: “Cherry Bekaert” is the brand name under which Cherry Bekaert LLP and Cherry Bekaert Advisory LLC, 
independently owned entities, provide professional services in an alternative practice structure in accordance with 
applicable professional standards. Cherry Bekaert LLP is a licensed CPA firm that provides attest services, and Cherry 
Bekaert Advisory LLC and its subsidiary entities provide business advisory and non-attest services. For more details, 
visit cbh.com/disclosure. 

103



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

1 

Section 3: Firm Qualifications, Experience and References 

Respondent shall provide firm and staff qualifications and demonstrate the firm’s prior experience in audit 
engagements conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles. 

Government Auditing Experience 

Government and public sector organizations are in an environment of accelerated 
change and greater expectations from the constituents they serve. From fluctuating 
budgets, new program demands, increasingly complex compliance restrictions, political 
priorities, potential near-term economic changes, and the need from constituents for 
greater access to services, we understand the distinct challenges state and local 
governments face. We also recognize economic impacts of any kind affect state and 
local government first. 

At Cherry Bekaert, we focus on the areas of highest need and those that enable and 
improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the business of digital government. Our 
Government & Public Sector (“GPS”) team has a deep understanding of the complex 
challenges federal, state and local governments and public sector organizations face. 
As one of the largest providers of audit and accounting services to the state and local 
market, we have unique insight into the operations and business of governments. And 
in the current environment, it is critical to have the right government accountant 
providing the proper technical guidance, reducing the demands on government staff 
and allowing entities to focus on their constituents.  

With extensive knowledge of the methods and techniques applicable to government auditing, our Audit and Assurance 
team is already one of the largest providers in the state and local audit and accounting space, serving clients around 
the nation. The public sector comprises one of the largest portions of our attest client base; we provide 
innovative, effective government auditing and advisory services to 150+ local governments, public 
authorities/boards, school districts, and state and local agencies, ranging in size from $2 million to $9 billion. 
We hold a dominant position as the auditor of choice in North Carolina, Virginia, and Florida. Using a digital 
environment with data-driven practices, we increase audit efficiency and enable government managers and leaders to 
better focus on their mission and delivering results to constituents. 

Cherry Bekaert stands ready to assist our state and local government clients to achieve their organizational goals and 
manage effectively, efficiently and responsively. Many Cherry Bekaert team members have worked in government, 
helping us to better understand what you are trying to achieve and the obstacles and opportunities that may exist 
within your organization. You will find working with our team that we have a clear sense of your priorities, goals and 
objectives.  

The Firm's GPS audit practice provides seamless service delivery, quality control and continuing education for 
government engagements throughout the country. The experience gained through service (e.g., financial audits, 
control assessments, performance audits, risk assessments) to such a wide breadth and depth of public sector 
organizations provides us with invaluable insight into the issues and stresses impacting you. Our professionals have 
held key positions for the Office of Management & Budget (OMB), the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants (AICPA), and state and local committees. They attend and teach at conferences hosted by the 
Government Finance Officer Association (GFOA), the Association for School Business Officials (ASBO), the 
Association of Government Accountants (AGA), the American Association of Airport Executives (AAAE) and the 
Airports Council International (ACI). 

We understand that today’s government managers face distinct challenges from all directions. As such, we focus on 
areas of need specific to the public sector—everything from financial statement and related compliance audits to 
performance and operational audits—to help our clients manage effectively, efficiently and responsively. We have 

104



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

2 

gained market share by recruiting and developing an outstanding professional team throughout our entire footprint, 
and by establishing a cohesive leadership team that works as a collective brain trust for the sector. Our government 
professionals stay informed about market conditions and industry trends that may affect state and local governments. 
Through this commitment and dedication, we have a significant concentration of expertise which, together with our 
Firm’s size, has provided us a niche and unsurpassed reputation in this industry. 

Addressing New Accounting, Reporting, Compliance, and Audit Requirements 

Over the years, we have assisted our clients with GASB pronouncement implementation, providing research and 
advice to resolve many complex accounting issues, including:  

 Recording other post-employment benefits under GASB #43 and GASB #45

 Capitalizing intangible assets under GASB #51

 Presenting changes in fund balance under GASB #54

 Providing assistance interpreting the fair value measurement and disclosure requirements under GASB #72 and
the guidance for certain external investments pools and participants under GASB #79

 Assisting with analysis and implementation of the accounting and reporting aspects for pensions (GASB #67 and
#68) and other postemployment benefits (GASB #74 and #75)

 Assisting with the analysis of fiduciary activities (GASB #84)

 Assisting with analysis of the accounting and reporting aspects of lease accounting (GASB #87)

We typically meet with our clients during engagement planning and throughout fieldwork to discuss new 
pronouncements and issues surrounding implementation.  

We are very proactive in follow-up communication to derive appropriate solutions in the planning stages. Our 
knowledge of GASB pronouncements is complemented by our willingness to invest necessary time and resources, 
including appropriate consultation. For example, during our 2019 audit season, we began helping clients understand 
and plan to address the myriad of accounting and reporting requirements related to leases (required for 2022 financial 
statements).  

Cherry Bekaert is also proud to be one of only two firms nationally to have provided a professional from our 
government team to serve on the last two-year GASB fellow program rotation, working with GASB on technical 
matters. As a GASB fellow, Scott Anderson, a Director from our Central Florida audit practice, was on the forefront of 
evolving standards currently contemplated. Since GASB is considering significant changes to financial reporting and 
presentation, Scott’s involvement provides unique insights we can share with our clients. He finished his rotation and 
returned to the Firm in August 2022. 

Your engagement team offers an unmatched depth of knowledge in current GASB requirements, as well as future 
reporting standards such as: 

 GASB #91 – Conduit Debt

 GASB #94 – Public-Private Agreements

 GASB #96 – Subscription Based Technology Agreements

 GASB #97 – Component Unit Criteria and Deferred Compensation Plans

 GASB #101 - Compensated Absences

Thought Leadership 

The field of governmental accounting and financial management is dynamic for both you and your external auditors. 
Pronouncements from the following bodies all have significant impact on this sector: 

 GASB (altering internal accounting and external reporting)

 AICPA (modifying audit standards and procedures)

 OMB (creating new compliance demands associated with the expenditure of Federal funds)

105



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

3 

We consider the training of our professionals to be extremely important to best meet the evolving needs of our 
profession and provide the highest quality of service to our clients. Furthermore, we are dedicated to the continuing 
education of our clients and the greater Public Sector community. We offer webinars (http://www.cbh.com/events/) and 
seminars throughout the year, including the local chapters of the GFOA. It is this commitment to education and 
leadership of the public sector that has set us apart from other firms. Our professionals teach for the AICPA, 
GFOA and various other state and local government organizations. CPE topics we have provided to our clients and 
organizations in the past include: 

 GASB and/or Uniform Guidance Update

 Evolution of Internal Control

 Behavioral Ethics

 Professional Skepticism

 Risk Assessment topics

 Current Information Technology hot topics

 What’s Your Fraud I.Q.?

Additionally, Cherry Bekaert’s Government Services Blog (http://www.cbh.com/industries/government/) helps keep our 
governmental clients up to date on vital business and financial information. And our annual Government 
Benchmarking survey aggregates responses from over 150 government financial and operational leaders to capture 
and identify significant trends relevant to governments. Based on responses from local government participants, we 
can share valuable feedback that allows governmental organizations to compare their own performance, 
accomplishments and challenges with similar entities across the United States. This year’s report highlights trends in 
how entities are handling a variety of issues and provides recommendations on changes that need to be made to 
better prepare for the future. Such topics we address, in addition to those previously mentioned, include COVID-19, 
financial reporting and risk assessments. Highlights and the complete report are available at cbh.com/localgovsurvey.  

Government Audit Clients 

A representative list of our current and past North Carolina government clients includes the following, all of which were 
performed under GASB 34:   

Local Government Services GFOA Served Since 

Durham County Audit, Single Audit * 1997 

Forsyth County Audit, Single Audit * 2009 to 2017 and 2022 

Guilford County Audit, Single Audit * 2000 

Mecklenburg County 
Audit, Single Audit,  Agreed Upon 
Procedures 

* 2004 

New Hanover County Audit, Single Audit * 2015 

Randolph County Audit, Single Audit * 2005 

 Orange County   Audit, Single Audit * 2021 
  Henderson County   Audit, Single Audit * 2022 
 Cumberland County   Audit, Single Audit, Consulting * 1987-2019 and 2022 
 Greene County   Audit, Single Audit 2019 - 2021 

Tyrrell County Audit, Single Audit 2017 

  Union County  Audit, Single Audit 2015 - 2019 and 2022 

City of Asheville Audit, Single Audit * 2012 - 2017 and 2023 

106



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

4 

Local Government Services GFOA Served Since 

City of Charlotte Audit, Single Audit * 2003 

City of Durham 
Audit, Single Audit, Agreed Upon 
Procedures 

* 2012 

City of Greensboro Audit, Single Audit * 2011 

City of Greenville Audit, Single Audit, Due Diligence * 2015 

City of High Point Audit, Single Audit, Consulting * 2015 

City of Jacksonville Audit, Single Audit * 2019 - 2021 

City of Raleigh Audit, Single Audit, AUPs * 2002 

City of Reidsville Audit, Single Audit * 2017 

Town of Morrisville Audit, Single Audit * 2015 

Town of Fuquay-Varina Audit, Single Audit * 2010 

Town of Cary Audit, Single Audit, AUPs * 2002 

Town of Hillsborough Audit 2020 - 2021 

Town of Wake Forest Audit, Single Audit, Consulting * 2013 

 Town of Holly Springs   Audit, Single Audit * 2021 

Cape Fear Public Utility Authority Audit, Single Audit 2015 - 2021 

Cumberland County Board of 
Education 

Audit, Single Audit * 2012 - 2021 

NC Education Lottery Audit and AUPs * 2007 

NC Turnpike Authority Audit and AUPs 2009 

New Hanover Board of Education Audit, Single Audit * 2007 - 2021 

New Hanover County Airport 
Authority 

Audit, Single Audit 2019 

Centralina Regional Council Audit, Single Audit 2017 

Asheboro City Schools Audit, Single Audit * 1985 - 2020 

Piedmont Triad Regional Water 
Authority 

Audit 2004 - 2021 

Triangle J Council of 
Governments 

Audit, Single Audit 2010 

Metropolitan Sewerage District of 
Buncombe County 

 Audit * 2004 

107



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

5 

Government Advisory Services 

Our local offices have provided the following additional services to state and local government entities: 

Government Entity Services Served Since 

Cabarrus County Risk Advisory, ARPA Consulting 2017 
Cape Fear Public Utility Authority Fraud/Forensics 2015 
Centralina Regional Council Technology Solutions 2017 
City of Charlotte Agreed-upon Procedures, Pre/Post Implementation 

Consulting 
2001 

City of Fayetteville Pre/Post Implementation Consulting 2003 
City of Greensboro Pre/Post Implementation Consulting 2011 
City of High Point Control Readiness Consulting 2015 

City of Raleigh & Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) 

Agreed-upon Procedures 2010 

Cumberland County Benefits Consulting 2017 

Fayetteville Public Works Commission Accounting Advisory, Pre/Post Implementation 
Consulting, Control Readiness Consulting 

2014 

Greater Raleigh Convention & Visitors 
Bureau 

Accounting Advisory 2011 

North Carolina Education Lottery Agreed-upon Procedures 2007 
North Carolina Turnpike Authority Agreed-upon Procedures 2009 
Town of Apex Accounting Advisory 2021 
Town of Wake Forest Risk System & Process Consulting 2014 

Triangle Transit Agreed-upon Procedures 2001 

Trillium Health Resources Accounting Advisory, Cybersecurity, SOC Readiness, 
Technology Solutions 

2015 

Wake County Register of Deeds Risk Advisory and Organizational Assessment 2021 

Various Large State and Local 
Governments in VA and FL 

Pre- and Post-Implementation Review services - 

Various State and Local Governments 
in NC, GA, VA and FL 

Internal Review Discovery Services and Internal 
Investigation services 

- 

108



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

6 

We recognize that in addition to traditional compliance, Centralina faces numerous business issues that either 
contribute to or prohibit long-term goals and success. Cherry Bekaert’s Risk and Accounting Advisory Services, which 
is led out of the Mid-Carolinas practice, offers a wide range of specialized risk and accounting advisory services 
designed to enhance profitability, reduce expenses and meet Centralina’s goals: 

Operational Efficiency & 
Process Improvement 

Cyber Security Internal Control Maturity 
& IT Risk Assessment 

Fraud & Forensics 

Understanding a process 
starts with getting the 
right context. Cherry 
Bekaert starts by clearly 
identifying risks to 
management objectives 
including: 

 Financial Reporting

 Operations

 Compliance
Objectives

 Entity-level

 Activity-level

When risks are clearly 
understood, the purpose 
of a process becomes 
evident – as do potential 
process improvements 
needed to address risks 
and achieve management 
objectives. 

Cherry Bekaert’s Risk and 
Accounting Advisory 
Services Group assists 
clients in identifying 
relevant cybersecurity 
risks and developing 
realistic solutions and 
plans to help minimize the 
likelihood and impact of 
data being compromised. 

 IT Governance,
Security Planning and
Policies & Procedures

 Security Awareness
Training & Program
Development

 Readiness
Assessments

 Risk Assessments

 Vulnerability
Assessments 

 Attack & Penetration
Tests/Ethical Hacking

 Due Diligence for
Transactions

Internal Control Maturity 
and IT Risk Assessments 
identify, assess, and 
prioritize threats to an 
organization’s IT, 
systems, applications, 
and operations. These 
may include 
security/privacy threats, 
fraud and abuse 
exposures, and inefficient/ 
ineffective operational 
vulnerabilities. 

 IT Security

 Risk/Control
Environment

 Disaster Recovery
Planning

Cherry Bekaert’s Fraud & 
Forensic Practice 
includes experienced 
professionals trained in 
forensic accounting who 
work with public sector 
and not-for-profit 
organizations to assess 
suspected fraudulent 
activity and help 
safeguard organizations 
against future losses. 
Services include: 

 Internal Review and
Discovery Services

 Fraud Examination
and Forensic
Accounting

 Forensic Technology

 Digital Data Forensics

 Expert Witness
Testimony

 Fraud Risk
Assessment and Gap
Analysis

 Comprehensive anti-
fraud program of
controls both design
and implementation

Relevant Background of Assignees 

We consider the training of our professionals to be extremely important to best meet the evolving needs of our 
profession and provide the highest quality of service to our clients. We believe that to consistently offer our clients the 
most current information, continuing education of our personnel is a mission-critical objective. It is the policy of Cherry 
Bekaert that all professional personnel: 

 Comply with the continuing professional education requirements of the AICPA, the SEC Practice Section of the
AIPCA Division for Firms, the appropriate state boards of accountancy, the U.S. Government Accountability Office,
Yellow Book requirements and other regulatory agencies as applicable;

 Maintain an adequate awareness and understanding of current developments in technical literature; and

109



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

7 

 Assist in the training and development of staff members under their supervision.

In our commitment to training, we require all client service professionals complete at least 20 hours of qualifying CPE 
every year and at least 120 hours every three (3) years. In addition, all client service professionals who serve 
governmental entities are required to complete 80 hours of CPE every two (2) years with at least 24 hours in subjects 
that directly relate to government auditing and/or the government environment. CPE is obtained through various 
sources, including AICPA, national and state GFOA conferences, state society of CPA industry conferences and 
webinars, other industry conferences (example: AHACPA’s annual Public Housing Authority conference) and internally 
provided seminars and webinars. Government-specific CPE courses that our professionals have taken over the last 
five years, in addition to speaking engagements to provide CPE for various organizations, include the following: 

 Government Risk Assessment

 Single Audit Fundamentals

 AICPA Peer Review Update for Government

 Local Government Impacts of COVID-19

 Government ACFR Preparation

 Yellow Book 2018 Update

 Annual GASB Updates

 Auditing OPEB

 Deep Dive into GASB 77, 79, 80 and 87

 Local Government Accountability Update

 Single Audit Compliance Supplement Update

 GASB 72, Fair Value Accounting

 Uniform Guidance requirements

 Government fraud risk

 Annual GFOA GASB Updates

 Cash Flows in a Government Environment

 AICPA Clarity Standards

 GAQC Single Audit Roundtable

 GASB 84, Fiduciary Activities

 GASB 87, Leases

 2020 Single Audit Deep Dive

 Audits of State and Local Governments

 Assets and Liabilities of State and Local
Governments

 Reporting in a Single Audit

 Intermediate Government Accounting

 Testing Internal Controls in a Single Audit

 Single Audit Nuts and Bolts

 National/State GFOA Annual Conferences

 AICPA GAQC Courses

Furthermore, we are dedicated to the continuing education of our clients and the greater Public Sector community in 
addition to our employees. It is this commitment to education and leadership of the public sector that has set us apart 
from other firms. As leaders in the industry, your engagement team has been providing guidance to the public sector 
for the majority of their careers, bringing decades of combined experience to Centralina. For example, Daniel T. 
Gougherty is a speaker on topics for internal and external trainings and had spoken at the 2020 NCGFOA Winter 
Conference and the 2020 SACUBO Fall Workshop on GASB 87: Leases. Daniel was involved in the implementation 
team for GASB 87, has written an article on Coronavirus Relief Funds, and has presented on this topic at Cherry 
Bekaert’s Annual Government Seminar held virtually in August 2020. Daniel further attends the winter and summer 
NCGFOA conference regularly. 

We also offer webinars (http://www.cbh.com/events/) and seminars throughout the year, to include the local chapters 
of the GFOA. Cherry Bekaert’s Government Services Blog (http://www.cbh.com/industries/government/) helps keep 
our governmental clients up to date on vital business and financial information. Examples of recent thought leadership 
and education are depicted on the following page. 

110



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

8 

 

Peer Review 
Provide copy of most recent peer review report 

Cherry Bekaert has passed, without exception, 15 consecutive peer reviews conducted under the auspices of the 
AICPA. A copy of our most recent peer review report as well as the acceptance letter from the AICPA are included 
below. The review included a number of specific engagements for which Single Audit and Government Auditing 
Standards apply. 

The Firm is a member of the AICPA’s SEC Practice Section and Private Companies Practice Section (PCPS) of the 
Division for CPA Firms and practices under the AICPA-recognized quality control program. Selected Firm 
professionals are approved by the AICPA to perform peer review, quality assurance review and consulting review of 
other CPA firms’ quality assurance programs. Firm leaders and partners in charge of industry practice areas maintain 
vital links to policy-making bodies in public accounting. Our personnel committee assignments and industry 
associations include (but are not limited to): 

 Accounting Standards Executive Committee 

 AICPA Professional Ethics Committee 

 AICPA Auditing Standards Organization 

 AICPA Accounting and Review Services Committee 

 AICPA Technical Issues Committee, Private Companies Practice Section 

 AICPA Tax Division and its Individual Taxation Subcommittee 

 AICPA SEC Practice Section Executive Committee 

 AICPA Accounting Practice Committee

 

111



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

 
  

112



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

113



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

9 

Attachment B –References Sheet  

 

114



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

10 

Section 4: Audit Approach 

Respondent shall provide the firm’s proposed strategy and technical approach to meet the Scope of Work 
requirements outlined in Section 5 below, including any procedures, methodologies, resources, systems, etc. 

Financial Audit Approach 

Cherry Bekaert utilizes a risk-based tailored audit approach and program. The Firm employs an efficient, effective, 
compliant and time-tested audit process utilizing a methodology that facilitates quality and delivers a comprehensive 
and timely audit. Our approach focuses on a targeted examination of your financial statements by addressing the risks 
related to the fair presentation of the statements in accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. 

Our audit of Centralina will feature CCH Engagement software, a state-of-the-art automated environment enabling our 
audit documentation to be virtually paperless and our engagement team members to share files via wireless 
technology. We tailor Thomson Reuters PPC audit and accounting guidance to specifically address the audit and risk 
areas associated with each local government client. These audit programs will reflect the identified areas of risk and 
help us ensure that such areas receive the proper degree of audit consideration. 

Cherry Bekaert, like multiple accounting firms across the U.S., uses PPC's Audit and Accounting guidance and audit 
engagement workflow tools as a starting point for our audit program sheets. PPC provides the breadth and depth for 
specific industry coverage and is always at the forefront of new and changing standards. Then the audit team will tailor 
these audit programs based on the specific risks (inherent, control and overall risk of material misstatement) that have 
been identified during the planning and brainstorming session by the audit team assigned to Centralina’s audit. 

The following chart shows the key procedures and audit segmentation applied during each of the defined stages of the 
audit engagement: 

I. Planning and Inherent Risk Assessment

Planning Procedures 

1. Initial Meetings with Management: We will schedule an entrance conference to introduce all key personnel,
discuss the planned audit scope, and verify our understanding of communication channels and working
relationships. These early discussions will ensure the County's awareness and compliance with new requirements
and allow a reasonable amount of time for implementation and consultation. We will discuss the following:

 Anticipated audit issues

 New accounting principles and/or auditing updates

 New laws or regulations, including the Uniform Guidance,
and the expected impact on the County.

 Any staff concerns

 Initial audit approach and dates, as well as dates and
times for periodic audit progress meetings

 Reporting requirements and deadlines

 Assistance to be provided by County staff

 Review of any reports issued by regulatory
agencies during the year

 Audit concerns or operational changes that
could affect the audits

2. Perform Preliminary Analytical Review Procedures: We will perform a preliminary analytical review to analyze
the financial statements for unusual trends and results and to identify in advance the high audit risk areas. To
strengthen audit confidence and risk assessment compliance, Cherry Bekaert uses MindBridge, an AI-enhanced
auditing data analytic tool to analyze 100% of transactions using a risk-scoring mechanism based on predefined
control points, including rule based, statistical and AI learned selection criteria. Using data analytics provides
efficient means to spotting risks and anomalies. Having insight into riskier transactions and data anomalies enables
our engagement team to better understand the risk of material misstatement and design more effective audit
procedures. Extended audit procedures are then focused on the areas of unusual results or potential audit risk.

115



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

11 

3. Determine Audit Materiality: We will calculate materiality during the preliminary planning process for the audit.
However, it must be pointed out that this calculated materiality is only a starting point. Auditing standards define
materiality from the viewpoint of the user of the financial statements, not the auditor. The question we have to ask is,
“Would it affect the user’s conclusions regarding the financial position or results of operations of the County, if the
adjustment was not made or a particular fact was not disclosed?"

As a result, for certain areas, such as compliance requirements or potential fraud related to cash receipts, our 
materiality levels may be adjusted to take into account the user’s perspective. 

Assess the Risk of Fraud: The auditor’s consideration of inherent, fraud, and internal control risk (including control 
environment, risk assessment, communication, and monitoring) affects the nature, timing, and extent of testing. 
During the planning phase, we will identify and document all risks and associate them with significant financial 
statement line items and assertions during the Risk Assessment Synthesis (RAS). For each risk identified, we will 
also document the nature and extent of the risk and condition(s) that gave rise to the risk. Typical procedures 
include: 

 Hold audit team meetings to “brainstorm” ideas regarding how fraud could be perpetrated and concealed.

 Inquire of management and others significantly involved in financial reporting to: (1) identify known instances of
fraud and (2) determine how someone could rationalize, perpetrate, and conceal fraud.

 Evaluate the possibility that management could override internal controls.

Statement on Auditing Standard No. 99, Consideration of Fraud in a Financial Statement Audit, requires us to 
document fraud risk factors related to the misappropriation of assets and fraudulent financial reporting and to design 
and perform additional procedures, if necessary. We document these risk factors through discussions with key 
accounting department personnel during the planning stage. The goal is to identify areas of risk, inquire as to your 
knowledge of any occurrence of fraud and to inquire of any areas where you may have a concern. Should additional 
tailored procedures be required, we will develop them and integrate them into our audit approach. 

Inherent Risk Assessment: Inherent risk involves the degree to which a financial statement assertion is 
susceptible to misstatement due to the nature of the account. The objective of our inherent risk assessment is to 
take into consideration all that we have learned about the organization, changes that have occurred during the year, 
its operating environment, and about the risk of fraud and determine what our audit response, if any, should be. The 
risks identified and our planned responses to these risks will be summarized and documented in our working papers. 

II. Internal Control Documentation, Verification and Testing

Our internal control phase will be designed to carefully assess control-risk factors corresponding with all significant 
financial statement assertions. We will conform to AICPA’s risk-assessment standards, which include evaluating and 
testing internal controls to support our report on the following determinations: 

 Assets are safeguarded from loss from unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition;

 Transactions are executed in accordance with budget authority and significant provisions of applicable laws and
regulations; and

 Transactions are properly recorded, processed, and summarized to permit preparation of the financial
statements and to maintain accountability for assets.

Entity Level Controls: As part of our entity level control assessment, we will consider whether there are 
organizational-wide processes, outlined below, that promote strong internal controls. Verification of these entity level 
controls is generally performed through the use of interviews of key staff and review of documentation maintained by 
those key staff. 

 Monitoring

 Control Environment

116



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

12 

 Risk Assessment

 Information and Communication

Process Level Control Activities

Documentation - Obtain and review documentation of process level control activities applicable to:

 All significant fiscal processes

 Accounting administration

 The general ledger

 Information systems

 Year-end close and financial reporting

Verification - We will verify that all key controls identified are in place and appear to be operating effectively. This is 
done by inquiry and observation, and walk-through procedures that trace process from initiation to completion. 

Testing: The team will prepare sampling control test work plans. We will select the most effective and efficient 
testing techniques when determining the nature of the tests to apply. The nature of our testing will fall into one of the 
following three non-sampling control test categories: 

 Observation involves physically observing organization personnel performing the control technique to be tested.

 Inquiry involves making either oral or written inquiries of organization personnel responsible for specific control
techniques to determine what they do or how they perform a specific control technique.

 Inspection involves examining documents and records for evidence that a control technique actually occurred.

Determining the timing of control tests depends on the type of test. For example, observations should be conducted 
during the period under audit. Inspections, on the other hand, could be performed after year-end, as long as 
documents being examined are from the period under audit. The extent of testing is determined by auditor judgment 
to be the level necessary to assess the effectiveness of the controls. 

Our use of sampling will also consider requirements of the Uniform Guidance. If necessary, we will draw 
representative sample selections for each separate system of internal control over major federal programs. We will 
integrate these tests, to the extent possible, with required sampling for reliance on other aspects of the County’s 
internal control structure. 

III. Risk Assessment Synthesis

We use a risk assessment synthesis process to summarize results of our initial planning, inherent risk assessment, 
and documentation of entity level and process level internal controls. The risk assessment synthesis process is 
designed to: 

 Identify significant audit areas

 Document the risks of material misstatement affecting each area (including fraud risks or other significant risks)

 Assess those risks and select an audit approach that is appropriately tailored to respond to the assessed level of
risk,

 Document the linkage of the assessed risks to the audit procedures that respond to those risks.

One of the byproducts of this process will be the identification of potential improvements that could be made to 
strengthen the internal control process, eliminate duplicative controls or improve the operating efficiency of the 
County's financial processes. Any observations will be shared with the County’s management team at the conclusion 
of this phase of the audit. We will also use the lessons learned to develop our customized audit programs by 
significant area that reflects our risk assessment process. 

117



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

13 

IV. Compliance Testing

This engagement will include the issuance of an opinion on the 
annual financial statements prepared by the County and applying 
procedures and reporting on the schedule of expenditures of 
Federal awards presented as supplementary information. The 
engagement will also include consideration, testing, and reporting 
on the County's internal controls and compliance, for both laws 
and regulations that could have a material impact on the financial 
statements, as well as compliance requirements material to 
major Federal programs. The aforementioned statement of work 
will be performed in accordance with GAAS; the standards for 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the 
provisions of Uniform Guidance, and Audits of States and Local 
Governments. 

Our compliance audit procedures will be designed to identify and 
test those transactions and activities that are likely to have a 
direct and material impact on the County's basic financial 
statements and to determine whether they were carried out in 
accordance with the provisions of laws, rules, contracts, and 
grantor guidelines. Our reports will note instances of 
noncompliance that could have a direct and material effect on the 
County’s financial statements. 

The nature and extent of our compliance tests 
are derived from the following: 

 Results of our analysis of internal control
over compliance matters 

 Review of debt documents

 Correspondence with Federal and State
agencies 

 Review of the County's agreements

 Review of the County's internal policies and
procedures 

 General statutes

 Grant agreements

 AICPA Statements of Position

 AICPA Statements on Auditing Standards

 Government Auditing Standards

 Uniform Guidance Compliance Supplement

 Other applicable professional standards and
guidance 

V. Further Audit Procedures (Substantive Testing)

We will perform substantive tests to form conclusions about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatements. These customized audit procedures come directly from our risk assessment procedures. 

Conduct Substantive Tests: The objective of our substantive testing is to: 

 Determine if financial statement assertions are materially misstated.

 Form an opinion about whether the principal statements are presented fairly in accordance with the
organization’s basis of accounting.

Substantive test procedures will be applied to all significant assertions in each significant financial statement line 
item and account. As with the sampling control testing described above, the team makes use of computerized audit 
tools to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of substantive tests. The extent of substantive testing is based 
largely upon our assessed level of combined risk. For example, if we assess combined risk as low, then we can rely 
upon internal controls and perform limited testing. If, however, we assess combined risk as high, we must obtain all 
assurance from substantive testing to express an opinion on the financial statements. The two types of substantive 
tests are analytical review procedures and detail tests. 

 Analytical review procedures involve establishing an expectation of what a significant balance or transaction
total should be. If the actual amount is within a certain limit of the established expectation, then the auditor may
determine that no further testing is necessary or that additional detail testing is desirable.

 Detail tests are procedures applied to individual items selected for testing and include confirmation, physical
observation, vouching, and recalculation.

118



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

14 

Conduct Tests Related to Fraud Risks: We will perform testing for fraud risks identified during the planning phase 
that are not mitigated by internal controls. Testing will be combined with substantive and compliance testing to the 
extent practical. In addition to testing for specifically identified fraud risk, we will perform the following procedures to 
identify fraud related to management override of controls: 

 Examine journal entries and other significant adjustments. 
 Review accounting estimates. 
 Evaluate the business rationale for significant and non-recurring transactions. 

Complete Overall Analytical Review Procedures: Once all the final adjustments are recorded and a final draft of 
the financial statements has been prepared, we will conduct analytical review procedures. Specifically, we will 
review the financial statements and supporting trial balances for key relationships and determine if audit evidence is 
consistent with variances noted during preliminary analytical procedures. Our analytic review will include trend and 
comparative analysis and will encompass the use of key liquidity, performance and operational metrics. 

Determine Adequacy of Audit Procedures and Audit Scope: In the planning phase, we determined planning 
materiality based on preliminary information. Based on planning materiality, we determined design and test 
materiality levels, which impacted the nature and extent of testing. We now will determine a final materiality based 
upon audited balances. In light of the final assessment of combined risk and final materiality level, we will consider if 
the extent of substantive audit procedures was sufficient. 

Evaluate Known and Likely Misstatements: Misstatements will be evaluated both in quantitative and qualitative 
terms. Based largely on these considerations and our evaluation, we will determine the type of audit opinion and 
internal control and compliance reports to render. 

VI. Reporting 

Review of ACFR for GFOA Compliance: Before issuance of our audit reports, we will review the ACFR in 
comparison to our Firm’s standard governmental reporting checklist and the current GFOA reporting checklist to 
help ensure compliance with the certificate program requirements. We will also review any comments received from 
the most recent submission to ensure all matters are addressed appropriately. 

We will prepare the following reports in accordance with GAAS, GAS, and Uniform Guidance: 

 Opinion on the fair presentation of the basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 Opinion on the fair presentation of the other supplementary information and the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 Report on compliance and on internal control over financial reporting based on an audit of the financial 
statements performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. We will communicate:  

o All instances of noncompliance that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the report. 

o All reportable conditions and material weaknesses in internal controls over financial reporting and its 
operation in the report. 

 Report on compliance with requirements applicable to each major program and internal control over compliance 
in accordance with Uniform Guidance (formerly OMB Circular A-133). We will report/communicate:  

o All instances of noncompliance with the specific requirements for major federal program in the report on 
compliance and in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. 

119



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

15 

o All reportable conditions affecting major federal programs in the report. Further, we will identify any material
weaknesses in the report. Any finding or weaknesses shall be reported immediately to the appropriate level
of management.

 The Data Collection Form.

Review Reports with Management, Finalize and Present to Governing Body: We will review our draft auditor’s 
reports, management letter and other matters with management and solicit their input. After meeting with 
management, the auditor’s reports will be finalized and signed, and we will present the audit to the Board of 
Supervisors in accordance with Virginia statutes.  

The culmination of all of our audit testing is an opinion on the fair presentation of the financial statements. This 
objective is achieved through the conscious effort of both Cherry Bekaert and the County personnel to proactively 
address any reporting matters (e.g., GAAP, GFOA certificate program) and by meeting with management to keep all 
apprised 

Use of Technology 

Leveraging the power of technology is critical as financial and operational systems become more complex, companies 
expand nationally and internationally, and regulatory requirements change. Cherry Bekaert employs and offers 
expertise in a wide range of solutions and platforms to improve the efficiency, quality, compliance, integration and 
speed of our engagements. Our audit and advisory services combine data analysis software, wireless technology and 
engagement management software. As such, our documentation is virtually paperless with procedures documented in 
an automated environment and files shared through encrypted wireless technology among engagement team 
members. We will also provide a secure client portal for transmitting information to the engagement team over the 
internet. 

Data Analysis Software 

IDEA data analysis software is an excellent tool to test for ways to improve efficiency and effectiveness. 
ActiveData advanced data analytics and statistics assist in understanding trends and identifying anomalies. 

Workpaper Management 

We manage workpapers with CCH Engagement, allowing us to prepare, review, transfer and manage our work in 
a paperless environment. 

MindBridge 

MindBridge leverages artificial intelligence (AI) to detect unintentional errors and intentional misstatements, 
minimizing financial loss while automating our audit approach. We use its AI-enhanced risk-scoring mechanism to 
focus on higher-risk items, improving the efficiency of journal entry testing. In addition, MindBridge enables us to 
perform a revenue reconciliation and proof of cash exercise by simply uploading your general ledger, which 
reduces the revenue sample sizes our teams need to detail test. 

Secure Document Management 

Cherry Bekaert uses secure, web-based document management solutions, via Smartsheet®, for clients to transmit 
data files to the team. Authentication to the Smartsheet® portal utilizes unique login credentials, and data is 
secured through SSL encryption. 

120



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

16 

Coordination & Communication Using Smartsheet® 

Cherry Bekaert recognizes that the business landscape is rapidly changing with employees working remotely, 
businesses operating in multiple locations and technologies improving at lightning speed. To ensure seamless delivery 
and efficient communication, we will utilize Smartsheet® throughout the audit process. Cherry Bekaert utilizes this 
powerful cloud-based tool to track and manage the entire audit engagement in real-time through a highly secure 
platform. You can attach documents, log comments and notes, schedule check-in meetings, share screens and show 
request status and progress throughout the year, not just at final fieldwork or at a single point in the process. 

Our firm’s previous investment in technology and process changes allowed us to perform audit engagements 
remotely without missing a beat. We have collaborated with clients to employ our technology and tools to restructure 
the audit processes. We created virtual audit environments that provided high quality audits with highly flexible 
scheduling. This minimized disruptions in an unsettled environment and eliminated travel/in-person meeting 
requirements. However, we understand building trust in a new relationship is important and frequent interaction is 
necessary. We utilize Microsoft Teams to meet remotely with clients and Smartsheet® to stay engaged with our clients 
throughout the engagement process. We understand that remote/virtual auditing does not work in all cases, and we 
are flexible in its application. We will work with your staff to determine what procedures/activities can be conducted 
remotely versus on-site during the planning phase. 

Your engagement team will share in a way that creates efficiencies and enhances a collaborative communication 
environment. Service delivery using Smartsheet® allows us to:  

 Promote real-time and year round collaborative planning, communication and status updates

 Integrate the technology of information sharing seamlessly and without disruption

 Decompress the evidence gathering burden on your team

 Reduce distractions to your team

 Minimize your training of Cherry Bekaert staff

 Enhance specialist interaction.

Information Security Statement: The Firm takes the security of all our clients’ data very seriously. Smartsheet® 
encryption and access controls protect your data at rest and in transit. In addition, Cherry Bekaert maintains 
Information Security Policies and monitoring procedures that only allow authorized individuals to access client data 
within Smartsheet® based on their job function. For more information on how Smartsheet® delivers secure solutions, 
please visit: https://www.smartsheet.com/security-info. 

Approach to Management Communication 

Open and regular communication is a part of our Firm’s culture and an integral part 
of our service philosophy. We offer to meet as frequently as requested to: 

 Determine financial reporting strategies for operations and special transactions;
and

 Discuss newly issued accounting pronouncements and implementation issues.

Regarding management communication during the audit, we will communicate any 
accounting or internal control issues noted during the audit as soon as they arise. 
We will also communicate opportunities to improve internal control informally for 
consideration during the course of the audit and formally in a management letter at 
the audit’s conclusion. 

In preparing management comments and recommendations, we utilize a “bottom-up” review approach to avoid any 
surprises. This allows management directly responsible for the activity to review any draft comments or 
recommendations before comments are discussed at higher levels. The facts behind any observation will be agreed to 
by both Cherry Bekaert and Centralina before any finding progresses forward towards reporting. Any operational 
issues will be reported in a constructive manner; our findings will contain a statement of condition describing the 
situation and the problem that needs attention, what should be corrected, and why. 

121



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

17 

Our suggestions will withstand the four basic tests of corrective action: 

 The recommendations will be cost effective

 The recommendations will be the simplest to implement in order to address the issue

 The recommendations must go to the heart of the problem and not just correct the “symptoms”

 The corrective action will document why the deficiency occurred.

We do not dwell on matters of insignificance - rather, we design our letters to be useful and beneficial for improving our 
client’s performance. In addition to accounting issues noted during the audit, we will alert you to developing accounting 
standards. We typically communicate and resolve accounting and internal control matters as a normal part of the audit 
process, but will report any significant items immediately. 

Board of Delegate Communication 

Cherry Bekaert's approach to communication with the Board of Delegates is simple and straightforward; we will: 

 Be open and honest

 Deliver an appropriate amount detail

 Maintain routine dialogue with committee members.

We will communicate regularly to provide updates and make the Board of Delegates feel at ease regarding our 
progress, keeping them abreast of any significant issues/findings we have identified. Over the course of our audits, we 
often identify opportunities for future improvement and can share best practices from our experience with other large 
local government entities. When we issue a management letter to the committee, we strive to include a summary 
assessment of the issue(s) identified, along with a response from the responsible management team for that particular 
area of oversight. In many cases, we will make a recommendation on the best way to remediate the issue or provide 
several strategic options for the Board of Delegates consideration based on specific facts and circumstances. 

Names and qualifications of individuals who will have responsibility for this project. Include timing and 
location of preliminary and year end work and deliverables. 

Engagement Team Information & Timeline 

Cherry Bekaert has carefully selected an experienced engagement team with specialized knowledge relating to the 
unique accounting and auditing issues. The table below lists the approximate percentage of time spent by each 
member of the proposed audit team. Full bios are available in Appendix A.  

Team Member Approximate Percentage of Time Spent 

Daniel T. Gougherty, CPA 9% 
April Adams, CPA 1% 
Elizabeth Welch, CPA 20% 
Danny Allwurden 30% 
Associate (to be named later) 40% 

Given the importance of client service to our organization, Cherry Bekaert implements several proprietary, internal 
client service programs throughout the year to help us better serve our clients. A key element is an annual client 
service plan to ensure we meet your needs and expectations. The client service plan guides and directs our efforts and 
communication throughout the year. During our initial client service planning meeting, we spend time making sure we 
learn and understand your goals, objectives, challenges and other advisers important to your organization. The client 
service plan is then used to guide and direct our efforts and communication throughout the year. This includes 
timelines, standard checklists and involvement of specialist resources. 

The entire engagement team that serves Centralina will work together to share information, documents and what we 
all know about your business and service needs (goals, other relationships, delivery expectations, etc.). We will have 
periodic meetings with you to hear about your business and learn from them. This approach promotes stability by 
effectively sharing knowledge and collaboratively developing engagement solutions. We follow a “working leader” 
approach to client service. This ensures frequent and direct access to the directors/partners who maintain 

122



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

18 

responsibility for the engagement. Our Firm believes strongly that leadership engagement increases the value you 
gain from our services. We ensure staff continuity to drive efficiency, stability and familiarity with your business. This 
includes significant involvement by senior professionals before, during, and after an engagement. We employ a high 
ratio of partners and senior managers to staff.   

Additionally, we emphasize the value of communication with our clients. Open, frequent communication throughout the 
engagement is part of our Firm’s culture and an integral part of our service philosophy. Throughout the engagement, 
we will provide weekly status updates via conference call, Microsoft Teams, in person meetings and/or 
email; whichever is preferred by Centralina stakeholders and management. We will discuss options within our 
technology tools such as Smartsheet® for reminders, notifications of completed tasks, etc.  

Primary Office Information  

Our Mid Carolina practice serves clients through offices in Charlotte, 
Raleigh, Durham and Fayetteville. They manage audit engagements for 
over 40 counties, cities, towns, school boards, authorities, commissions 
and other governmental entities, while also providing a wide range of 
advisory and attestation services (e.g., agreed upon procedures, indirect 
cost plans, internal control reviews, comfort letters, and strategic 
management services). The Firm’s Charlotte practice (NC license 
#2301) will be responsible for the proposed services, bringing the 
following combined resources. 

Government Services Group 

In addition to local capacity and expertise, our Firm-wide Government & Public Sector (“GPS”) team has more than 
200 professionals experienced and trained to understand the many facets of the public sector. As one of the largest 
providers of audit and accounting services to the state and local market, we have unique insight into the operations 
and business of governments. The public sector comprises one of the largest portions of our attest client base; 
we provide innovative, effective government auditing and advisory services to 150+ local governments, public 
authorities/boards, school districts, and state and local agencies, ranging in size from $2 million to $9 billion. 
We hold a dominant position as the auditor of choice in North Carolina, Virginia, and Florida; Since 2018, we have 
served nearly 100 public sector entities across North Carolina, providing a wide range of advisory and attestation 
services. Using a digital environment with data-driven practices, we increase audit efficiency and enable government 
managers and leaders to better focus on their mission and delivering results to constituents. 

The Firm's GPS audit practice provides seamless service delivery, quality control and continuing education for 
government engagements throughout the country. The experience gained through service to such a wide breadth and 
depth of public sector organizations provides us with invaluable insight into the issues and stresses impacting you. Our 
professionals have held key positions for the Office of Management & Budget (OMB), the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), and state and local committees. They attend and teach at conferences hosted 
by the Government Finance Officer Association (GFOA), the Association for School Business Officials (ASBO), the 
Association of Government Accountants (AGA), the American Association of Airport Executives (AAAE) and the 
Airports Council International (ACI). Additionally, many Cherry Bekaert team members have worked in government, 
helping us to better understand what you are trying to achieve and the obstacles and opportunities that may exist 
within your organization. You will find working with our team that we have a clear sense of your priorities, goals and 
objectives.  

Proposed Timeline 

Planning and fieldwork timelines will be coordinated with Centralina to be as nonintrusive as possible. We recognize 
the audit process is a distraction from your day-to-day operations, so we will work with management to set a more 
detailed timeline once we confirm a date for the final trial balance and requested documents. A suggested timeline is 
shown on the following page. We can be flexible with the timeline to best meet your needs. 

Staff Level Charlotte 

Partner/Director 17 

Sr. Manager 14 

Manager 8 

Senior 20 

Staff 15 

Admin 7 

123



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

19 

Updating our Understanding of Centralina 

Meet with Centralina's management team (in person, 
video or conference calls) on a regular basis 
throughout the year 

Upon notification that Cherry Bekaert has been 
selected, Daniel Gougherty as the relationship director 
will establish a regular meeting and check-in schedule 
with you. 

Audit 

Client acceptance  Upon notification that Cherry Bekaert has been 
selected. 

Provide document request to Centralina May 1, 2023 

Fieldwork, including planning, tests of controls, 
opening balance work, and substantive testing 

Mutually convenient dates in June/July and September 

Draft financial statements, management letter and post 
audit communication letter to management for review 

October 2, 2023 

Final financial statements, management letter and post 
audit communication letter provided to management 

October 31, 2023 

124



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

20 

Section 5: Proposed Pricing 
Detailed price proposal per the Respondent’s desired format - Respondents shall provide a detailed price 
proposal based on their approach to delivering the scope of services in this RFP. 

We understand and appreciate your desire for professional service providers who are not only highly qualified, but who 
are also cost-conscious and cost-effective about the work they perform. We are mindful that cost is always one 
consideration, along with quality of the service, in selecting a professional services firm. Accordingly, we have 
structured our fee based on our previous years of experience, our knowledge of the Centralina's operations and 
accounting systems and our strong desire to continue our mutually-beneficial relationship.  

Our fees are generally based on the time required to complete the work at our established billing rates, plus clerical 
and computer charges and out-of-pocket expenses. Our fees are also based on other factors such as the complexity of 
the work, the skill required, time limits, the experience and abilities of our personnel, and the value of the services 
rendered. We have priced this engagement assuming that we will perform the audit remotely, with the exception of the 
board meeting where attendance will be in person. All services proposed herein are subject to the completion of our 
customary final client acceptance procedures. 

Future Fee Increases 
The fees listed below for subsequent years assume no significant changes occur with your operation/organization 
and/or future accounting standards. A change in fees will apply should the scope of work change. If future accounting 
standards are issued and are effective, additional fees may be required to perform the necessary procedures to be in 
compliance with the new accounting standards. Should this occur, or there is a change in scope because of an 
increase in your operations, we would meet with you to obtain your agreement on any increase in the fee ranges 
before proceeding. 

Base Year, June 30, 2023 Audit 

Professional Estimated Hours * Rate per Hour Total Fee * 

Audit Director 30 $450 $13,500 

Audit Senior Manager 60 $435 $26,100 

Audit Senior 90 $285 $25,650 

Audit Staff 120 $215 $25,800 

Subtotal $91,050 

Less Discount (41,050) 

Total Fee - 2023 $50,000 

*Total fee assumes a maximum of one (1) single audit program will be tested each year. An additional Single Audit
Fee of $7,000 per program will be charged for each program over the maximum of one (1) program. Travel costs, cost
of supplies and materials and other costs are included in the total fee.

Subsequent Two (2) Years Estimated Audit Fee* 

Total Fee – 2024 $53,000 

Total Fee – 2025 $56,000 

Total Fee - 2026 $59,000 

125



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

21 126



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

22 

Section 6: Appendix Administrative Information 

Attachment D – Location of Workers Utilized by Respondent 

127



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

23 

Attachment E - Proof of Liability Insurance with its Limits 

The Firm maintains adequate insurance coverage to meet the needs of Centralina. We have placed our professional 
liability insurance with a national carrier and our current limits of coverage are satisfactory for this engagement. We 
have provided evidence of our current insurance coverage as requested. 

 

128



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

24 129



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

25 

Attachment F - Certification of Financial Conditions 

March 14, 023 

130



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

26 

Appendix A. Team Biographies 

Daniel T. Gougherty, CPA 

Director, Cherry Bekaert LLP 

Director, Cherry Bekaert Advisory LLC 

Assurance Services 

NC-39339, FL-AC41905 

Dan has over 16 years of public accounting 
experience, including 13 years of audit services for 
state and local governments. As a member of the 
Firm’s Government Services and Not-for-Profit industry 
groups, Dan employs his expertise to assist local 
governments, not-for-profits and educational 
institutions with financial and compliance audits, 
including Uniform Grant Guidance. He has served 
some of the largest counties, municipalities, 
foundations, airports and special purpose governments 
in the states of North Carolina and Florida. 

As an Audit Director, Dan ensures the overall quality of 
an audit engagement. He advises clients in all phases 
of financial reporting. He oversees engagement 
planning and performance of audit tests. Clients have 
sought Dan’s knowledge in documenting, evaluating 
and identifying areas of improvement in internal 
controls and processes, and implementation of new 
Governmental Accounting Standard Board (“GASB”) 
standards. 

Dan has spoken at a number of internal and external 
conferences, including events for the North Carolina 
Association of Certified Public Accountants. 

Dan has more than 40 hours each year of relevant 
continuing education, including the continuing 
education required by Government Auditing Standards 
(24 hours of government accounting and auditing 
credits). 

Dan is licensed to practice as a Certified Public 
Accountant in North Carolina and Florida and is a 
member of the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants (AICPA) and North Carolina Government 
Finance Officers Association (NCGFOA). 

Education 

B.S. in Accounting, University of Central Florida 

Relevant Experience 

 Centralina Regional Council

 Piedmont Triad Regional Council

 Mecklenburg County, North Carolina

 Orange County, Florida

 City of Charlotte, North Carolina

 City of Greensboro, North Carolina

 City of High Point, North Carolina

 City of Reidsville, North Carolina

 City of Winston-Salem, North Carolina

Professional Involvement 

 American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants

 North Carolina Association of Certified Public
Accountants

131



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

27 

April Adams, CPA 

Partner, Cherry Bekaert LLP 

Partner, Cherry Bekaert Advisory LLC 

Assurance Services 

NC-29712 

An Assurance Partner in Cherry Bekaert’s Raleigh 
office, April has provided attestation services to 
governmental and not-for-profit clients since 2001. April 
uses her expertise to assist local governments with 
financial and compliance audits (including Uniform 
Grant Guidance). She has served governments of all 
sizes, ranging from the smallest to largest towns, 
counties and authorities in the state of North Carolina. 

She is a member of Cherry Bekaert’s Government 
Services Group, North Carolina Association of Certified 
Public Accountants (NCACPA), North Carolina 
Government Finance Officers Associations (NCGFOA), 
Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) and 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
(AICPA). April is also the former Chair of the NCACPA 
Governmental Accounting and Auditing Committee. 

Education 

B.S. in Accounting, North Carolina State University 

Master of Accounting, North Carolina State University 

Relevant Experience 

 Triangle J Council of Governments

 Piedmont Triad Regional Council

 Randolph County, NC

 Guilford County, NC

 Orange County, NC

 Durham County, NC

 Mecklenburg County, NC

 New Hanover County, NC

 Greene County, NC

 Tyrrell County, NC

 Cumberland County, NC

 Cape Fear Public Utility Authority

 New Hanover County Airport Authority

 City of Raleigh, NC

 City of Durham, NC

 City of Greenville, NC

Professional Involvement 

 American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“AICPA”)

 North Carolina Association of Certified Public
Accountants (“NCACPA”)

 Governmental Accounting and Auditing
Committee, NCACPA

 Greater Raleigh Chamber of Commerce
Leadership Raleigh Class 26

132



Proposal for Centralina Regional Council 

28 

Elizabeth Welch, CPA 

Senior Manager, Cherry Bekaert Advisory LLC 

Audit Services 

A Certified Public Accountant, Elizabeth has nine years of accounting and auditing experience with not-for-profit 
organizations and educational entities. She also has experience with federal and state compliance audits, as well as 
single audits of federal and state grantees. Elizabeth has performed all phases of financial audits, including 
engagement planning, performance of audit testing, supervision of other staff and report writing.  

Prior to joining Cherry Bekaert, Elizabeth served as an audit associate for a Big Four firm working primarily on an audit 
engagement for an internationally known non-profit organization. 

Education 

B.A. in Accounting & Music, Furman University 

Master of Accountancy, Wake Forest University 

Relevant Experience 

 Piedmont Triad Regional Council

 Catawba Valley Community College

 Central Piedmont Community College

 College of Charleston

 Foundation For The Carolinas

 Gaston College

 Goodwill Industries of the Southern Piedmont

 Holy Angels

 Mint Museum of Art

 The Citadel, The Military College of South Carolina

Professional & Civic Involvement 

 American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

 North Carolina Association of Certified Public Accountants

133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



Item 7 

165



Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 
Board Meeting 
Date: April 12,  2023 Agenda Item 

Type: Consent: Regular: X 

Submitting Person: Narissa Claiborne Presentation 
Time: 15 minutes 

Presenter at 
Meeting: Leslie Mozingo 

Phone Number: 202-255-5760

Email: leslie@strategics.consulting 

Alternate Contact: Geraldine Gardner 
Phone Number: 704-348-2703

Email: ggardner@centralina.org 
Submitting 
Department: 

Government Affairs & 
Member Engagement 

Department 
Head Approval: Geraldine Gardner 

Description of Agenda Item: Federal Relations Update 

Leslie Mozingo, Strategics Consulting, will present an update on Centralina’s federal 
relations efforts, including a performance report of activities for February- March 2023.  

Background & Basis of Recommendations: 

Since 2015, Centralina has contracted with Strategic Consulting for federal relations consulting 
services. The Executive Board has requested that Ms. Mozingo present performance metrics 
reports at each of its meetings. 

Requested Action / Recommendation: 

Motion to accept the Strategics Consulting performance report for February - March  2023 

Time Sensitivity: 
(none or explain) None 

Budget Impact: 
(none or explain) None 

Attachments: 
(none or list) 

Goals and Activities for Strategics Consulting: February- 
March 2023 Report 

166

mailto:leslie@strategics.consulting
mailto:ggardner@centralina.org


GOALS AND ACTIVITIES FOR STRATEGICS CONSULTING 
JANUARY – FEBRUARY 2023 REPORT 

1. Build, maintain and enhance relationships with Members of Congress and the federal agencies
• Updated Congressional contact information for the region.
• Participated in meeting with U.S. Senator Thom Tillis’ Office and followed up regarding new

protocols for requesting grant support.
• Communicated with U.S. Senator Ted Budd’s office regarding regionalism in competitive grants on

the Senate side.
• Shared notices on Congresswoman Alma Adams’ State of the District event.
• Communication regarding potential federal agency VIP visit and coordination with Congresswoman

Adams’ office.
• Provided updated Congressional Calendar.

2. Develop advocacy strategies around the approved Federal Action Plan on regional priorities and
implement in coordination with Centralina’s management
• Finalized 2023 Federal Action Plan.
• Prepared slides for, and presented to, Executive Board at January meeting and attended February

Board of Delegates meeting.
• Prepared slides for, and presented to, Regional Managers in January regarding ARPA flexibility

provision in the Omnibus Appropriations bill.
• Updated Federal Relations Calendar for, and participated in, biweekly calls with ED.
• Revised strategy for securing appropriations language encouraging regionalism in competitive grants.
• Communicated with ED on strategy for FY24 Community Projects Funding request and provided

additional materials to assist in selecting potential projects.

3. Provide information and support related to federal grant opportunities in coordination with
Centralina staff
• Provided update to Centralina ED on FY23 Omnibus Appropriations bill, including Community

Projects Funding, which included $1 million for Centralina. The project will address affordable
housing preservation for low-and moderate-income elderly, veteran, and disabled homeowners.

• Updated the Annual Forecast on all federal grants for local governments forthcoming in 2023.
• Provided weekly Grants Alerts, as well as weekly updates on Requests for Information from federal

agencies.
• Wrote two Capital Corner entries to update membership on key developments in the FY23 Omnibus

Appropriations bill and the new congressional delegation committee assignments.

4. Respond to trouble shooting requests from members and Centralina on federal issues
• Answered inquiries related to transportation grants, recycling grants, ARPA flexibility, energy

efficiency funding, and more for Centralina members.

For more information, contact Leslie Mozingo at (202) 255-5760 or leslie@strategics.consulting. 

167

http://www.strategics.consulting/
mailto:leslie@strategics.consulting


GOALS AND ACTIVITIES FOR STRATEGICS CONSULTING 
March 2023 REPORT  

1. Build, maintain, and enhance relationships with Members of Congress and the federal agencies:
• Communicated with congressional offices regarding process for submitting FY24 appropriations.
• Researched precedent for Centralina’s community project funding request.
• Reviewed and recommended revisions for Centralina’s community project funding request.
• Met with U.S. Senator Ted Budd’s office regarding regionalism in competitive grants on the Senate side.
• Submitted request for bill report language to amend definitions of local governments to include regional

councils to Senator Budd’s office in seven subcommittees. (Agriculture and Rural Development; Commerce,
Justice, Science; Energy and Water; Interior, Environment, and Related Agencies; Homeland Security; Labor,
Health and Human Services; Transportation, Housing and Urban Development).

• Scheduled meetings with U.S. Representative Patrick McHenry’s staff and U.S. Representative Bishop’s staff
regarding Centralina’s federal priorities.

• Scheduled and participated in meeting with U.S. Environmental Protection Agency regarding Brownfields
Program.

• Scheduled meeting with U.S. Department of Transportation regarding Regional Accelerators Program.

2. Develop advocacy strategies around the approved Federal Action Plan on regional priorities and implement in
coordination with Centralina’s management:
• Finalized 2023 Federal Action Plan.
• Prepared slides for, and presented to, Executive Board at January meeting and attended February Board of

Delegates meeting.
• Prepared slides for, and presented to, Regional Managers in March regarding Climate Pollution Reduction

Grant (CPRG) grant and Charging and Fueling Infrastructure Discretionary Grant Program.
• Updated Federal Relations Calendar for, and participated in, biweekly calls with ED.
• Revised strategy for securing appropriations language encouraging regionalism in competitive grants.
• Communicated with ED on strategy for FY24 Community Projects Funding request and provided additional

materials to assist in selecting potential projects.

3. Provide information and support related to federal grant opportunities in coordination with Centralina staff:
• Advised on CPRG program guidance, including COG eligibility and Centralina serving as the lead organization

for the Charlotte-Concord-Gasontia (NC-SC) MSA.
• Provided weekly Grants Alerts, as well as weekly updates on Requests for Information from federal agencies.
• Wrote Capital Corner article to update membership on key developments in the Farm bill.

4. Respond to trouble shooting requests from members and Centralina on federal issues:
• Answered inquiries related to transportation grants, recycling grants, ARPA flexibility, energy efficiency

funding, and more for Centralina members.
• Responded to inquiries regarding the community project funding process for Centralina’s FY2023 Economic

Development Initiative appropriations project.

For more information, contact Leslie Mozingo at (202) 255-5760 or leslie@strategics.consulting. 

168

http://www.strategics.consulting/
mailto:leslie@strategics.consulting


Item 8 

169



Executive Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 
Board Meeting 
Date: April 12, 2023 Agenda Item 

Type: Consent: Regular: X 

Submitting Person: Geraldine Gardner Presentation 
Time: 10 minutes 

Presenter at 
Meeting: Geraldine Gardner 

Phone Number: 704-351-7130
Email: ggardner@centralina.org 

Alternate Contact: Denise Strosser 
Phone Number: 
Email: Dstrosser@centralina.org 

Submitting 
Department: 

Executive Department 
Head Approval: G.Gardner

Title of documents as shown in the Agenda:  Centralina Tax Status Documentation 
Discussion  
Description of Agenda Item: (This wording will be used to summarize the item on the agenda cover 
page.) 

The Executive Board is asked determine the next steps to be taken, if any, to document 
Centralina's tax exempt status as a government instrumentality under U.S. Code § 115(1).    

Background & Basis of Recommendations: 
Background: 
In 2021 while working to complete the administrative steps with the IRS and NC Treasury to 
change Centralina's name, the Executive Director and Finance Officer discovered that the 
organization had no official determination letter from the IRS regarding our tax-exempt status 
and classification as a government instrumentality.    At one time Centralina was designated at 
501(c)(4) non-profit, but that status was revoked by the IRS in the early 2000s.  When we applied 
for a name change in 2021, the IRS affirmed Centralina's revoked 501(c)(4) status.   

In reviewing Centralina's files on the matter, we were unable to find records that clearly 
addressed our tax status with the IRS; we were only able to find correspondence from 2012 
between Centralina's attorney Shumaker & Associates and the then Executive Director Jim 
Prosser, acknowledging that our tax status with the IRS was unclear.  We immediately tasked our 
current attorney at Shumaker & Associates to investigate the issue and recommend next steps. 
Their findings outlined in a December 2021 memo recommended that Centralina amend its 
bylaws and charter to specifically prohibit any private party from benefitting or having an interest 
in Centralina’s earnings orassets, and that upon dissolution, assets will be solely distributed to its 
member counties and municipalities.  This change would enable the organization to be exempt 
from federal income tax as a government instrumentality under U.S. code § 115(1).   Centralina's 
bylaws and charter were amended in February 2022 accordingly.   

Shumaker attorneys then transmitted the updated charter and bylaws to the IRS and worked 
with them to ensure that we are correctly coded in the IRS system as a "government 
instrumentality" under § 115(1) rather than a 501(c)(4). This was verified in an unofficial 
“governmental information letter” received from the IRS in February 2023 that also verifies that 
Centralina does not have to file 990s as a government instrumentality. 

170



Issue for Board Input:   The "governmental information letter” received from the IRS is not an 
official IRS ruling of determination of tax status. The letter, coupled with the attorney's memo 
documenting how we qualify as a government instrumentality and tax-exempt status under § 
115(1) our only current and official documentation of the organization's tax status.  

The only way to have an official determination from the IRS is to request and pay for a Private 
Letter Ruling (PLR) to confirm Centralina qualifies for the § 115 income exclusion.  The PLR cost is 
between $42,000 - $48,000 ($38,000 IRS fee + $5,000-$10,000 attorney fees). The available source 
of funding would be Membership Dues; however, this would significantly reduce funding 
available for other mission critical activities. 

Staff is seeking input from the Board regarding any next steps to be taken to obtain additional 
documentation. 

Options for Consideration & Decision 
1. Obtain an official IRS ruling that Centralina is a government instrumentality and tax

exempt under § 115(1).
a. Benefit: Clear internal record and official IRS ruling on the tax status
b. Cost/Risk:  Financial cost for the PLR.  Membership dues would be diverted from

staff training and professional development; Board meeting costs and
communications to pay for these costs.

2. No Action - Prepare memo to our internal files with all actions taken to date.
a. Cost/Risk:

i. No official IRS ruling for our records
ii. Attorney advises that the risk of an audit by the IRS is minimal; even if we

were audited, they are confident that Centralina meets the test for the
government instrumentality under § 115(1) and the audit itself would
produce an official IRS ruling on our status.

b. Benefit:  No financial impact

3. Apply for 501(c)(3) non-profit status for Centralina that would be in parallel to the
assumed tax exemption for government instrumentalities in § 115(1).

a. Cost/Risk:
i. $6,500 ($600 IRS fee + $5,000 attorney's fees) to prepare for the designation;

ii. We would need to ensure that no federal funds specifically designated for
units of local government are put at risk with the 501(c)(3).

b. Benefit: lower cost option to have a clear IRS determination of tax-exempt status
via 501(c)(3).  Other COGs that have 501(c)(3) status including Western Piedmont
COG, which also has federally funded Aging, Workforce and Economic
Development funding.

171



Requested Action / Recommendation: 
Due to the costs of the PLR, staff recommends to the Board that we take no further action other 
than preparing detailed internal records and memos to the file for future reference.   

Time Sensitivity: 
(none or explain) Time sensitive to inform budgeting for FY23-24 

Budget Impact: 
(none or explain) $6,500 to $48,000 depending on option selected. 

Attachments: 
(none or list) 1. IRS governmental information letter received February 2023

172



16595115v1

M E M O R A N D U M

TO: Geraldine Gardner – Centralina Regional Counsel

FROM: Jack Santaniello & Andrew Bosserman - Shumaker

DATE: December 20, 2021

RE: Centralina’s Tax Status and Executive Director Powers

QUESTIONS

1) Is Centralina’s income exempt from federal income tax?

2) What is Centralina’s correct non-profit tax status?

3) What powers does Centralina’s Executive Director have under the Charter
Resolution and Bylaws?

SHORT ANSWERS

1) Centralina’s income is not exempt from federal income tax under IRC § 115(1)
because its charter and bylaws do not specifically prohibit any private party from
benefitting or having an interest in Centralina’s earnings or assets, and that
upon dissolution, assets will be solely distributed to its member counties and
municipalities. If its charter and bylaws are amended, Centralina’s income would
be exempt from federal income tax under § 115(1).

2) Centralina does not need to be a true non-profit under IRC §501(c) if its income
is exempt under § 115(1). Non-profit exempt status may be desirable if
Centralina wishes to accept public contributions or for other reasons. However,
exempt status is not required to accept tax-deductible contributions as long as
Centralina meets the “political subdivision” test.

3) Centralina’s Executive Director powers include approving certain contracts and
recommending a budget to the Executive Board.

173



Page 2

16595115v2

DISCUSSION

I. Centralina’s income is not exempt from federal income tax under IRC § 115(1)
because its charter and bylaws do not specifically prohibit any private party
from benefitting or having an interest in Centralina’s earnings or assets, and
that upon dissolution, assets will be solely distributed to its member counties
and municipalities. If its charter and bylaws are amended, Centralina’s
income would be exempt from federal income tax under § 115(1).

Generally, all income is subject to federal income tax unless a specific exception 
applies. IRC § 61. One of these exceptions is income of states and municipalities. 
According to IRC § 115(1), “gross income does not include—income derived from…the 
exercise of any essential governmental function and accruing to a State or any political 
subdivision thereof.”

Whether an activity consists of an “essential governmental function” is 
determined based on an individualized basis. Factors the IRS considers includes 
whether the activity is one traditionally considered governmental (as opposed to private 
or proprietary), whether it involves the exercise of governmental (sovereign) powers, 
the extent of government control over the activity, and the extent of government 
financial interest in the activity. Rev. Rul 77-261; 1990 EO CPE Text on 
“Instrumentalities.”

Income “accrues to a State” when the State or subdivision has an unrestricted 
right to a proportionate share of the income. Rev. Rul. 77-261. Further, upon dissolution 
of the organization, the assets of the organization must be distributed to one or more 
States or subdivisions. Rev. Proc. 2003-12 § 2.02. Even if state law satisfies the 
distribution requirement, the organization will not meet the requirements of § 115(1)
(for purposes of obtaining a ruling) unless its articles of organization also limit 
distribution of assets upon dissolution to States, subdivisions, or other qualified entities. 
Id. § 3.

Centralina’s situation is extremely similar to the association in PLR 9050052 
(1990). In PLR 9050052, the IRS ruled that the income of a tax-exempt, nonpartisan 
association of county governments was excluded from gross income per IRC §115(1). 
The association was formed to solve problems common to counties of the State. Id. The 
association performed an essential government function because the member counties 
received the benefits of improved service and reduced costs through cooperative efforts. 
Id. Crucial to the IRS’ decision that the Association’s income accrued to the State were 
the following provisions in the Association’s constitution: 

1) No part of Association’s earning may inure to the benefit of any private
interest;
2) Only Association members that are counties have a proprietary interest

174



Page 3

16595115v2

in the assets of Association; and 
3) Upon distribution of any assets during the life of the Association, or
upon dissolution or the Association, assets will be distributed solely to the
member counties. Id.

The IRS’ decision in PLR 9050052 is similar to its decision in PLR 
200909019 (2009), where it found an association’s income accrued to a State 
where the association’s articles of incorporation provided that any remaining 
assets after satisfaction of liabilities were to be distributed only to the 
association’s member states.

Here, Centralina likely performs an essential government function 
required under IRC § 115(1). According to its Charter Resolution, Centralina was 
created for the area’s county and municipal governments to “consult among 
themselves and to act in concert with reference to regional matters affecting 
health, safety, welfare, education, recreation, economic conditions, regional 
planning or regional development.” This is similar to the association in PLR 
9050052 “solving problems common to counties of the State.”

However, Centralina likely does not meet the requirement of its income 
“accruing to the State” based on its current charter and bylaws. Currently, its 
charter is not as specific regarding finances as the association’s constitution 
analyzed in PLR 9050052 and the association’s articles of incorporation in PLR 
200909019.

Centralina’s charter provides that “if such dissolution is affected by 
resolution of the member governments, such resolution shall specify the method 
of liquidating the Council’s assets and liabilities.” Centralina Charter Resolution, 
Item XII § B. This provision is not specific enough the meet the requirements of 
PLRs 9050052 and 200909019, where the association’s’ Constitution and articles 
of incorporation specifically provided for distribution solely to the member 
counties upon dissolution, along with other provisions prohibiting any private 
interest in the association’s earnings or assets.

Further, even though Centralina’s bylaws provide that its “accounting and 
fiscal control procedure shall be in accordance with the Local Government 
Budget and Fiscal Control Act of North Carolina,” this does not meet the 
requirements of Rev. Proc. 2003-12 that provisions regarding accrual to the State 
must actually be in the association’s articles of organization (or similar 
documents).

Therefore, we recommend that Centralina’s Charter Resolution and 
Bylaws be amended to explicitly provide that no private party may benefit or 
have an interest in Centralina’s earnings or assets, and that upon dissolution, 

175



Page 4

16595115v2

assets will be solely distributed to its member counties and municipalities. These 
amendments are necessary for Centralina’s income to be exempt from taxation 
under IRC § 115(1).

II. Centralina does not need to be a true non-profit under IRC §501(c) if
its income is exempt under § 115(1). Non-profit exempt status would
likely be undesirable because it would result in additional tax filing
and compliance requirements. Centralina may still accept tax-
deductible contributions if it meets the “political subdivision” test, even
if it is not exempt under § 501.

Generally, every tax-exempt organization must file an annual return or 
report with the IRS unless an exception applies. IRC § 6033(a)(1). One type of 
organization that does not have to file an annual report or return is “a State 
institution, the income of which is excluded from gross income under section 
115(1).” Treas. Reg. §§ 1.6033-2(g)(1)(v); 1.6033-6(b)(2)(v). This is consistent with 
Section B of the 2020 Form 990 Instructions, which state that “a state institution 
whose income is excluded from gross income under section 115” is not required 
to file Form 990. This conclusion is also consistent with PLR 9143057, in which 
the gross income from a 501(c)(3) business incubator formed by a state council of 
governments was exempt from tax under IRC § 115(1) and not required to file a 
Form 990 per Treas. Reg. § 1.6033-2(g)(1)(v).

Meeting a tax-exempt classification under IRC § 501(c) is not necessary 
for Centralina’s income to be tax exempt and exempt from filing requirements as 
long as Centralina meets the requirements of IRC § 115. However, Centralina 
may still meet a tax-exempt classification under IRC § 501(c) if it wishes.

One potential important issue to Centralina is the deductibility of 
contributions to Centralina. If Centralina amends its Charter Resolution and 
Bylaws to be a § 115 entity, it must also be a “political subdivision” to accept tax-
deductible contributions. § 170(c)(1). The IRS looks at a six-factor test when 
determining whether an organization is a “political subdivision” for purposes of 
§ 170. Rev. Rul. 57-128. The six factors are:

1) Whether the entity is used for a governmental purpose and performs a
governmental function;

2) Whether the entity performs its functions on behalf of one or more
states or political subdivisions;

3) Whether there are any private interests involved, or whether the state
or political subdivision involved has the powers and interests of an
owner;

4) Whether control and supervision of the entity is vested in a public

176



Page 5

16595115v2

authority;
5) Whether governmental authorization is necessary for creation or use

of the entity; and
6) The degree of financial autonomy and the source of the entity’s

operating revenues. Id.

An association of governors that provided a forum for governors to 
exchange their views on good governance was held to meet the first factor. PLR 
200909019. Centralina likely meets the first factor because it provides a forum 
for counties and municipalities to “consult among themselves and to act in 
concert with reference to regional matters.” Centralina Charter Resolution, 
Preamble.

To meet the second factor, an entity must generally be a “wholly 
governmentally controlled entity.” TAM 200222029 (2002). Here, Centralina is 
controlled by delegates of its constituent governments. Centralina Charter 
Resolution, Items V & VI. Therefore, Centralina will likely meet this test since it 
is wholly controlled by its constituent governments through their delegates.

The third factor is generally met if, upon dissolution, the assets flow to a 
governmental entity rather than private interests. Centralina will meet this 
factor if it amends its Charter Resolution and Bylaws as recommended in the 
previous section.

The fourth factor is met if the entity is governed by public officials acting 
in their official capacity. Rev. Rul. 65-26. Municipal officers acting in their 
individual, rather than official, capacity did not meet this factor. Id. Centralina 
likely meets this factor because its Charter Resolution provides that “all rights 
and privileges of membership in the Council shall be exercised on behalf of the 
member governments by their delegates to the Council.” Centralina Charter 
Resolution, Item III § C.

Centralina meets the fifth factor because it was created under specific 
state law authorization. N.C.G.S. § 160A-470-478.

The sixth factor is satisfied if an association expects to receive a significant 
part of its funding from membership dues paid by its members and the members 
have authority to oversee the use of the association’s funds. PLR 200909019. 
Centralina likely meets the sixth factor because its Charter Resolution provides 
that “the general operating expenses of the Council shall be paid from funds paid 
to the Council by each member governmental unit.” Centralina Charter 
Resolution, Item IX § A. Further, Centralina’s powers and duties include control 
over all member assessments and any other funds received. Id., Item VIII § B2.

177



Page 6

16595115v2

In conclusion, Centralina will likely meet the political subdivision test if 
it amends it bylaws as recommended in Section I. If Centralina is both a § 115 
entity and a political subdivision, its income will be tax-exempt and it will be able 
to accept tax-deductible contributions. If this is the case, tax-exempt status under 
§ 501 would be unnecessary and also result in additional filing requirements.

III. Centralina’s Executive Director has the power to approve certain
contracts and recommend a budget to the Executive Board.

All of the powers of Centralina’s Executive Director come from 
Centralina’s Bylaws. The Council has the power to “adopt By-laws containing 
such rules and regulations for the conduct of its business as it may deem 
necessary for the proper discharge of its duties and the performance of its 
functions, not inconsistent with the Charter or the laws of North Carolina.” 
Centralina Charter Resolution, Item VIII § B6.

Under its Bylaws, the main powers of Centralina’s Executive Director 
include powers to contract and recommending a budget. Centralina Regional 
Council Bylaws (August 11, 2021).

The Executive Director is authorized to “approve and contract for (a) the 
expenditure of general operating revenue in the amount or value of $50,000 or 
less, (b) the expenditures of federal, state and/or local funds of $200,000 or less,” 
as long as the contracts are consistent with the current budget. Id., Article IV § 
A2. Any contracts not meeting these guidelines must be approved by the 
Executive Board. Id., Article IV § A1.

Further, the Executive Director also may “approve and contract for 
services to be provided to member governments at cost, regardless of amount or 
value, provided the service agreement entered into by the Executive Director is 
reported to the Executive Board at its next meeting.” Id., Article IV § A3.

Other powers of the Executive Director include designating the time and 
place of Executive Board meetings, as well as preparing and recommending an 
annual budget. Id., Article VII § D2; Article X § B.

Finally, the Executive Director also has the power to write off uncollectible 
accounts of $100 or less. Id., Article X § F. The Treasurer or the Executive Board 
must approve write-offs of more than $100. Id.

178



Item 9 

179



Executive Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 
Board Meeting 
Date: April 12, 2023 Agenda Item 

Type: Consent: Regular: X 

Submitting Person: Anna Lu Wilson Presentation 
Time: 15 minutes 

Presenter at 
Meeting: Christina Danis 

Phone Number: 704-688-6502
Email: cdanis@centralina.org 

Alternate Contact: Anna Lu Wildon 
Phone Number: 704-385-4790
Email: awilson@centralina.org 

Submitting 
Department: 

CED Department 
Head Approval: Christina Danis 

Title of documents as shown in the Agenda: Broadband and Digitial Inclusion Update 
Description of Agenda Item: (This wording will be used to summarize the item on the agenda cover 
page.) 

Centralina received the BAND-NC grant which is funded by the Institute for Emerging Issues (IEI) 
at NC State to address the digital divide across the region and promote digital equity. 

Background & Basis of Recommendations: 
Building a New Digital Economy (BAND-NC) was initiated in February 2020 to address the 
challenges of broadband adoption across North Carolina and bridge the digital divide.  Rural 
communities, lower income populations, communities of color and older people have a higher 
likelihood of lacking access to broadband services and disproportionately suffer from the 
increasing reliance on digital technology.  The goal of BAND-NC is for all 100 counties in North 
Carolina to publish digital inclusion plans in order to reduce this number and close the digital 
divide.  Digital inclusion is more than an infrastructure access issue, but also includes the need 
for affordable internet subscriptions, device access and digital literacy skills.   

The objective for Centralina counties to participate in the digital inclusion planning process 
supports the state-wide effort and makes our counties more competitive for future grant funding 
initiatives.

Centralina staff will assist local county leaders to participate in a regional stakeholder lead group. 
to establish equity and inclusion goals for the Digital Inclusion Plan that each county will 
complete.  They will start by establishing what tools and resources are available, what areas and 
populations of people do not currently have access to broadband, and what strategies are 
needed so everyone can connect successfully.  

The project is an opportunity for Centralina cross-department collaboration to align the initiatives 
of the CEDS (Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy) and the RRC (Regional 
Resilience Collaborative) NCARCOG (North Carolina Association of Regional Council of 
Governments) Recovery Planning components and Connect Beyond by incorporating the 
broadband efforts into each area. 

This is an 18-month process led by Centralina staff in GAME and CED with support from Planning 
will begin July 1, 2023 

180



Requested Action / Recommendation: 

Received as information 

Time Sensitivity: 
(none or explain) none 

Budget Impact: 
(none or explain) none 

Attachments: 
(none or list) none 

181



Item 9
No attachments. Presentation 
to be made during meeting. 

182



Item 10 

183



Board Agenda Item Cover Sheet 
Board Meeting 
Date: April 12, 2023 Agenda Item 

Type: Consent: Regular: X 

Submitting Person: Linda Miller Presentation 
Time: 10 minutes 

Presenter at 
Meeting: Linda Miller 

Phone Number: 704-372-2416
Email: lmiller@centralina.org 

Alternate Contact: Katie Kutcher 
Phone Number: 704-372-2416
Email: kkutcher@centralina.org 

Submitting 
Department: Aging Department 

Head Approval: 
Description of Agenda Item: (This wording will be used to summarize the item on the agenda cover 
page.) 
The Centralina Area Agency on Aging has been awarded $295,750 in federal funds by the 
USAging Aging and Disability Vaccination Collaborative.  Based on feedback from the Executive 
Board, Centralina has adjusted the grant scope to focus on influenza and shingles vaccinations 
activities only.  Funds will support staff salaries to educate, inform, conduct outreach, and assist 
older and disabled adults with procuring vaccinations as requested.  

Background & Basis of Recommendations: 
At the direction of the Executive Board, the Aging Director contacted grant funder USAging 
regarding focusing the vaccine grant scope and deliverables only on influenza and shingles 
vaccine information and outreach, access, and supportive services. The amendment to the grant 
scope has been approved by USAging and therefore the revised contract package is being 
resubmitted to the Executive Board for approval at its April meeting. 

Requested Action / Recommendation: 
Request a motion to accept the USAging Aging and Disability Vaccination Collaboration Vaccine 
grant award in the amount of $295,750 with amended grant activities and scope of work for 
influenza and shingles vaccines only.  

Time Sensitivity: 
(none or explain) 

Grant begins upon finalization of signed agreement and the period of 
performance is through April  2024. 

Budget Impact: 
(none or explain) $295,750 of new revenue for FY22-23 and FY23-24. No match required. 

Attachments: 
(none or list) Amended USAging Vaccine Collaborative Attachment A: Scope of Work 

184

mailto:lmiller@centralina.org
mailto:kkutcher@centralina.org


Aging and Disability Vaccination Collaboration 
Attachment A: Centralina Amended Scope of Work 

Scope of Work  
Please Note: Scope of Work activities can be accomplished by the sub-grantee 
directly or through partner agencies. Sub-grantees do NOT need to complete 
every bullet point under each broader activity, but activity should occur in each 
area.  

Primary Grant Activities 
• Influenza and Shingles Vaccination Access
• Supportive Services
• General Influenza and Shingles Vaccination Information and

Outreach

Influenza and Shingles Vaccination Access: 
• Partner, support, and/or assist with local county-based and non-profit

vaccine clinics.
• Refer clients who self-identify as requiring in-home vaccinations to individual

health care providers and county based health departments, as needed.
• Identify areas in the region with populations who may need help getting

vaccinations, including those who are unable to independently travel to
a vaccination site.

• Integrate USAging vaccination messages and materials into any activity
not currently funded by similar vaccine outreach grants and programs.

• Include USAging vaccination materials in regional outreach activities.
• Report grant activity efforts as appropriate.

Supportive Services: 
• Arrange with or refer to county partners for accessible transportation to

vaccination sites for those who need assistance.
• Provide or arrange personal support (e.g., peer support) to older adults and

people with disabilities for those who need assistance.
• Help with scheduling vaccination appointments for those who need it.
• Provide necessary referral services in support of vaccination services as

identified.
• Report supportive services as appropriate.

General Influenza and Shingles Vaccination Information and Outreach: 
• Disseminate credible information about Influenza and Shingles vaccines and

help direct older adults and those with disabilities with questions to
additional sources of information.

185



• Conduct vaccine outreach, education and material dissemination utilizing
generalized or targeted campaigns; community events such as health fairs:
congregate meal site activities; Medicare Open Enrollment events and one-
on-one in-person counseling and group counseling sessions; and one-on-one
interactions with community members.

• Provide electronic copies of all written materials developed in the scope of
this award.

• Report Information and Outreach activities as appropriate.

Partnership Development: 
• Conduct outreach to local Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs),

Public Health Departments, home health agencies, physician groups, etc.
to determine the feasibility of partnerships that support increased
dissemination of information, referrals and services.

• Explore partnerships that increase vaccination outreach, including
educational activities and the dissemination of materials.

• Develop sub-contracts as needed to accomplish scope of work.
• Provide a copy of agreements with consultants and/or

subcontractors recruited to assist with work plan activities if needed.
• Report on partner inclusion in efforts as appropriate.

Training and Peer-to-Peer Engagement 
• Utilize the training, education and tools provided by USAging and ADVC

Advisory Group partners and available on the ADVC Resource Hub.
• Participate in on-boarding education, training, and technical assistance

sessions as necessary.
• Access and utilize the ADVC Resource Hub to access materials and participate

in training.
• Participate in peer-to-peer engagement opportunities as necessary to share

ideas and successes.

Reporting Requirements 

Service Delivery Documentation: 
• Cumulus will be used by USAging and all sub-grantees for weekly tracking,

reporting, and monitoring of activities associated with this initiative,
including:

o Tracking of events, which may include activities such as education,
outreach and other activities.

o Reporting on supportive services such as transportation services,
assistance with scheduling appointments for vaccinations, personal
support and referral to other services; and

o Tracking and reporting on shingles and influenza vaccinations.
• USAging will provide pre-paid subscriptions for Cumulus

(https://cumulus.care) to each sub-grantee and their associated users.
• Sub-grantees are expected to use Cumulus to track and report all grant

activities.

186

https://cumulus.care/


• Sub-grantees will have access to training tutorials, contextual “how to”
tutorials, written user guides and other support resources, all of which will be
available within the Cumulus portal.

Progress Reports 
• Sub-grantees will provide a narrative report that will respond to items such

as the following questions:
o What are the major highlights for the reporting period?
o What did you accomplish during this reporting period and how did

these accomplishments help you reach your stated project goals and
objectives(s)? Please note any significant project partners and their
role in project activities.

o What if any, challenges did you face during the reporting period and
what actions did you take to address those challenges? Please note in
your response changes, if any, to your project goal(s), objectives(s) or
activities that were made as a result of challenges faced.

o How have the activities conducted during this project period helped
you to achieve your stated goals?

o What was produced during the reporting period and how have these
products been disseminated?

• It is anticipated that narrative reports will be due according to the following
schedule:

o First Reporting Period covering grant activities until June 30, 2023—
Due to USAging on July 15, 2023;

o Second Reporting Period covering grant activities from July 1, 2023 –
December 31, 2023—Due to USAging on January 15, 2024; and

o Final Reporting Period covering grant activities from January 1, 2024 –
April 15, 2024—Due to USAging on May 15, 2024.

• Direct service document will be entered weekly to demonstrate progress
towards reaching overall program goals and/or challenges in reaching those
goals.

• Please note: reporting requirements may change slightly depending on
requests made by ACL during the grant period.

Financial Reports 
• Subgrantees will complete three financial reports utilizing the Attachment C

according to the following schedule:
o First Reporting Period covering grant activities until June 30, 2023—

Due to USAging on July 15, 2023;
o Second Reporting Period covering grant activities from July 1, 2023 –

December 31, 2023—Due to USAging on January 15, 2024; and
o Final Reporting Period covering grant activities from January 1, 2024 –

April 15, 2024—Due to USAging on May 15, 2024. The final report will
be a compilation of the overall impact of each sub-grantee’s project
and provides both empirical and anecdotal summaries.

• Attachment C will be provided to sub-grantees in Excel format
following grant award.

187


	0 - 04-12-23 EB Agenda final (2)
	Divider Pages - Item 1 (6)
	1 -  Executive Board Minutes 3-8-23 (1)
	Divider Pages - Item 2 (5)
	3 - CEDD Board Appointments Cover (2)
	3b- CEDD Appointee Memo_April (1)
	Divider Pages - Item 3 (4)
	6b- Centralina Spotlight Attachment.pdf
	Slide 1
	Slide 2




